
 

 

 

Our Ref: PH:SL:1279 

Your Ref: AA1000621 

Tel: (03) 9642 0435 

Contact: Alexandria Anthony 

 

3 November 2022 

 

Sophie Magliano 
Australian Competition & Consumer Commission 
23 Marcus Clarke Street 
Canberra ACT 2601 
 

By Email: exemptions@accc.gov.au  

 

Dear Ms Magliano, 

Application for Revocation of Authorisation A91531 – Tenpin Bowling Australia Response 

We act for Tenpin Bowling Australia (TBA). 

We refer to the letter to our client received from the Australian Competition and Consumer 

Commission (ACCC) dated 13 October 2022. 

In that letter, our client was provided the opportunity to respond to Independent Bowling Centres 

Australia’s (IBCA) 30 September 2022 application to revoke Authorisation A91531 (the 

Authorisation) by making submissions. This letter sets out our client’s submissions in response 

to IBCA’s application. 

Response to IBCA’s Application 

1. TBA is the national governing body for the sport of tenpin bowling in Australia, and it is a not-

for-profit company whose purpose is to foster and promote the sport of tenpin bowling in 

Australia, represent and promote bowlers and their interests and disseminate information to 

bowlers.  Therefore, the services that TBA provides are beneficial to both the participants in 

the sport and to bowling centre proprietors, including the bowling centre proprietors that 

IBCA represents.  TBA can only achieve these objects and carry out these services if it has 

access to sufficient income to support the activities it carries out, which are intended to 

increase participation in tenpin bowling and benefit the sport.   

2. IBCA’s application concerns the revocation of the Authorisation, which was granted by the 

ACCC on 9 June 2016.  The Authorisation is to allow TBA to require league bowlers bowling 

to be members of TBA to participate in league competitions at registered bowling centres.1  

 

1 “League Bowlers” are defined in the Membership Agreement as any person that participates in a League. 

League means any group of four or more teams of players or four or more individual players participating 
according to a pre-arranged schedule where there is a recording of results by the centre or league that includes 
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In practice, the Authorisation allows TBA to require bowling centres that wish to be registered 

with TBA to require at least 75% (this percentage number has changed during the period of 

the Authorisation, and could increase back to the original figure) of league bowlers that play 

at their bowling centre to be registered as a member with TBA, and where relevant, collect 

membership fees from the league bowlers. The purpose of the Authorisation is to increase 

membership of TBA by imposing these requirements on the bowling centres.  If a bowling 

centre fails to achieve this goal of 75% membership amongst league bowlers then TBA may 

de-register the bowling centre, although there are also options for bowling centres to pay 

extra money to TBA to make up the shortfall if the bowling centre cannot reach the required 

percentage of membership amongst league bowlers at their centre.  Therefore, it is not 

necessarily the case that a bowling centre that fails to meet the target will be deregistered.  

3. IBCA’s application seeks to have the Authorisation removed on the basis of what it alleges 

are significantly changed circumstances since the Authorisation was granted in 2016.  TBA 

does not agree with IBCA’s application and submits that it contains inaccuracies and 

misrepresentations of facts.  TBA says that while there have been some changes in the 

circumstances, these changes do not alter the need, basis or justification for the 

Authorisation.  

4. IBCA’s application states that: 

TBA required the Authorisation in order to obtain membership income from 

individual bowling competitors, bowling in independent bowling centres directly. 

Membership fees at the time accounted for 70% of TBA’s income… 

TBA’s Annual Reports indicate membership fees subject to the Authorisation now 

only account for approximately 30% of TBA’s annual income. TBA relies on 

significant sponsorship and licence agreements to secure income. 

5. TBA wishes to correct the above factual inaccuracies in IBCA’s application and states the 

following: 

(a) At the time of the Authorisation, membership fees did not account for 70% of TBA’s 

income.  

(i) In the 2015 calendar year, membership fees amounted to $727,632, which was 

42% of TBA’s annual income (see enclosed Annual Report).  

(ii) In the 2016 calendar year, membership fees amounted to $729,891, which was 

39% of TBA’s annual income (see enclosed Annual Report). 

(b) While TBA’s recent annual reports do indicate that the membership fees make up a 

smaller proportion of its annual income, it still makes up a significant proportion of its 

income. 

(i) In the 2018 calendar year, membership fees amounted to $787,220 which was 

34% of TBA’s annual income (see enclosed Annual Report).  

(ii) In the 2019 calendar year, membership fees amounted to $749,800, which was 

33% of TBA’s annual income (see enclosed Annual Report). 

(iii) In the 2020 calendar year, membership fees amounted to $651,709, which was 

35% of TBA’s annual income (see enclosed Annual Report). 

 

the recording of points, averages, handicaps and/or prizes are awarded as a result of the outcome of the scores 
bowled. 
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(iv) In the 2021 calendar year, membership fees amounted to $621,499, which was 

33% of TBA’s annual income (see enclosed Annual Report). 

(v) In the current financial year, it is expected that membership fees will generate 

$650,000, which is approximately 30-33% of its annual income.  It is expected 

that the Suncity Bowling Centre will operate at a loss for this financial year.  

Although that is not expected to continue in the future years it is not expected to 

generate a large income, and it is unlikely that it will ever generate the levels of 

income currently generated by membership registrations. The purpose of the 

centre is to reinvest funds back into the sport, particularly in high performance 

to ensure it delivers on its objects. TBA does not receive specific high 

performance funding from government (e.g.. Australian Institute of Sport) hence 

the role of the centre. 

(c) Therefore, while there has been a small change in the proportion of funding that comes 

from memberships, largely due to a decrease in member numbers following COVID, 

it still remains the second most significant source of income for TBA and therefore 

continues to be vital.  TBA therefore still requires the Authorisation, as it did in 2016.  

A loss of even 10% of its members would amount to a loss of approximately $60,000 

in funding, which TBA would find difficult to replace from other sources.  Given that 

IBCA represents over 80% of TBA’s members, if the ruling was to no longer apply to 

bowling centres represented by IBCA then this could reduce TBA’s membership 

numbers by as much as 80%, which would amount to approximately $480,000.  TBA 

could not replace this lost income through sponsorship agreements (especially as 

sponsors would be less likely to support an organisation that had lost so many 

members/had low numbers of members).   

(d) The most significant proportion of TBA’s recent income (as proven in its recent annual 

reports) are grants, particularly from the Australian Sports Commission (ASC).  In the 

2021 calendar year, grants made up about 50% of TBA’s annual income.  These 

grants however are dependent upon TBA continuing to drive participation in the sport, 

which is generally measured through membership.  Therefore, any reduction in 

membership rates would likely also impact upon funding from the ASC. A requirement 

of our annual reporting to the ASC is to where possible diversify income to reduce 

reliance on 1-2 core income streams. 

(e) If the Authorisation was revoked, this would significantly affect TBA’s ability to meet 

its obligations with the federal government and the ASC in ensuring its membership 

base.  

(f) While it is true that TBA does increasingly rely upon other sources of income aside 

from grants and membership, these other sources are insufficient to cover losses and 

are also likely to be affected by losses in the number of TBA members.  

6. It is also misleading to say as IBCA says in its application that TBA requires individuals in 

“social competitions” (as compared with league bowlers) to become members of TBA.  The 

2016 Authorisation Application states that it relates to membership numbers in respect to 

“competitive bowlers”.  It states:  

To be clear, any bowler who does not play the sport in organised competition i.e. 

league and merely bowls socially is not required to be a member of TBA and is free 

to bowl at any AMF or independent centre.  

7. The Tenpin Bowling Membership Agreement which was included in the original application 

in 2016 states that the agreement relates to “league bowlers”.  The Authorisation does not 
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relate to social bowlers (i.e. people who come into bowling centres on an ad hoc basis to 

play tenpin bowling with friends, rather than in an organised competition).  

8. Therefore, it is irrelevant to say that “[s]ocial competitors do not need or wish to be registered 

with TBA, as the support provided by TBA is not relevant to their competition or needs”.  If 

they are referring to individuals who are just playing amongst friends on a casual basis then 

they will not be affected.  If these so-called “social competitors” are playing in a relevant 

league then they will be impacted, but if they are doing so they are likely to benefit from the 

TBA membership, which is not expensive (generally in the range of $31-$50 for each 

individual for the year) and includes benefits such as discounted practice rates, 

comprehensive personal accident insurance, personal indemnity insurance for accredited 

coaches, access to support services, league and tournament rule queries, lane measuring 

and access and use of the tenpin results portal (i.e. personal statistics and results from 

leagues and tournaments are uploaded to Tenpin Results).  Broadly speaking, if someone 

is sufficiently interested in tenpin bowling to be a league bowler then they will derive a benefit 

from their membership that outweighs the cost of the membership.   

9. IBCA states that there is a financial detriment to IBCA members as a result of being required 

to collect or pursue membership fees on TBA’s behalf.  The reality is that it is not practical 

or effective for TBA to collect the membership fees in the centres.  TBA cannot practically 

have a representative in every bowling centre across Australia.  It is also unclear what 

financial detriment is incurred by bowling centres from having to collect the membership 

fees.  If the bowling centre was not benefiting (financially or otherwise) from the services that 

TBA provides then there would be no reason for the bowling centre to seek registration with 

TBA.  TBA provides services to registered bowling centres that include lane certification 

(measurement and accreditation) and the ability to host TBA Accredited Events and TBA 

Participation Programs, which provide a financial benefit to the bowling centre by increasing 

the likelihood that league bowlers and other individuals will use their bowling centre.  On 

IBCA’s submission it appears that it seeks to have a situation where TBA provides benefits 

to all bowling centres regardless of whether the bowling centre is generating enough money 

for TBA to provide those services.   

10. TBA is a not-for-profit organisation that is investing the money it receives from registrations 

back into the sport for the benefit of those involved.  It is not taking money from bowling 

centres and participants for any purpose other than to provide benefits which those same 

individuals or centres benefit from.  To the extent that bowling centres might experience a 

“financial detriment” from having to maintain membership levels above the 75% level then 

this “financial detriment” is outweighed by the benefits that the bowling centres receive from 

registration with TBA and the services TBA provides to members and registered bowling 

centres as a result of the income it receives from memberships.  

TBA Submissions 

11. TBA submits that there are substantial benefits to the public as a result of the arrangement.  

TBA relies upon the Authorisation to allow it to collect sufficient income from membership to 

allow it to provide a number of benefits to the public, including its members.   

12. While the original application was made referring to the fact that TBA had no proprietary 

interest in bowling centres and limited means of obtaining revenue, and it now has a 

proprietary interest in one bowling centre, TBA continues to require the Authorisation.  As 

set out above, the one bowling centre is not expected to generate sufficient revenue to make 

up for any losses in membership numbers that would likely arise if it could not require bowling 

centres to ensure at least the 75% membership numbers in its bowling centres amongst 

league bowlers.  The Suncity Bowling Centre facility has been established as a home base 

for the sport of tenpin bowling and to benefit the public.  It is the sports first ever High-
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Performance Centre, and will act as a home for National Training Squad athletes, some of 

the events for the Tenpin Premier League (Tenpin Bowling Australia’s major national annual 

competition) and other high-performance related activities.  It has not been set up as 

competition to other bowling centres, but rather to grow the sport of tenpin bowling and 

provide further benefits to members and bowling centres across Australia by promoting the 

sport, as well as benefits to the public.  It also allows TBA to better understand the bowling 

centres that it is representing.  It allows TBA to test out how the programs and events it 

delivers actually work in a bowling centre facility, so it can better understand and develop its 

programs and events to suit bowling centre owners that it is dealing with.  

13. Suncity Bowling Centre is intended to provide some revenue to TBA.  TBA considers it 

necessary to diversify its income streams as noted previously in relation to our reporting to 

the ASC, especially in a context where membership numbers are declining, and the majority 

of its members are ageing.  As with all sports, relying primarily upon membership numbers 

indefinitely, without trying to grow the sport and find other sources of income would constitute 

poor and short-sighted management of the organisation.  Nonetheless, it continues to 

heavily rely upon membership registrations as its second greatest source of income, and 

one that is not dependent upon unpredictable and contingent funding from government 

sources.    

14. In relation to the net public benefits test, TBA says the following:  

(a) there is a significant public benefit as a result of the Authorisation as:  

(i) it allows TBA to offer the services that it currently offers to its members, 

registered bowling centres and more broadly to the public, including through 

programs such as school programs, Bowl Patrol and Bowl Abilities, as well as 

tournaments; and 

(ii) the Authorisation provides a more efficient way of ensuring that the public 

benefit can continue than any alternative option available to TBA, and provides 

an easier method for the bowlers to pay membership fees;  

(b) the Authorisation is necessary for achieving these public benefits because:  

(i) if TBA was not allowed to engage in the proposed conduct then it would lose 

significant funding (which it still currently relies upon), and consequently its 

membership numbers would fall, and it would likely have to reduce its service 

offerings to its members, its promotion of tenpin bowling within Australia and its 

provision of programs to schools, young people and Bowl Abilities (a program 

offered to individuals with a disability);  

(ii) TBA cannot make up the shortfall in funding with increased funding from other 

sources, especially in circumstances where a reduction in membership numbers 

would impact negatively on its ability to obtain alternative sources of funding 

from grants and sponsorship;  

(iii) TBA cannot make up the shortfall in funding by setting higher game fees at 

Suncity Bowling Centre, as this would drive away interest and negatively impact 

upon the sport of tenpin bowling in Australia; and 

(iv) TBA does not have a proprietary interest in any further bowling centres, and 

could not obtain an interest in further bowling centres in the near future as this 

would require significant investment beyond what has already been invested 

into Suncity Bowling Centre, which is not feasible at this time.  The 
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circumstances in which it acquired Suncity Bowling Centre were unique and 

occurred as a result of the vendor’s interest in benefiting the sport; 

(c) there is limited public detriment, because:  

(i) the annual fees required to be paid by members/registered centres are relatively 

small (especially in comparison to many other sports) and not onerous on the 

bowling centres and league bowlers;  

(ii) social bowlers are not required to become members, and bowling centres are 

not required to become registered.  It is still possible for bowlers to choose to 

compete in a league without paying for membership if they choose to bowl in an 

unregistered bowling centre if one is accessible, and moreover it is possible for 

bowling centres to allow some league bowlers not to become members; and 

(iii) the Authorisation allows TBA to obtain sufficient funding without creating a 

significant public detriment or lessening of competition, and does not involve 

agreeing/setting game fees or any prices. 

15. TBA therefore says that there is no basis for revoking the Authorisation.  Its conduct is not 

anti-competitive.  The changes that have occurred since the Authorisation was given are not 

material in assessing the public benefit and public detriment from the Authorisation.  While 

there are some relevant changes, the changes are not at the level that they change the 

assessment of whether or not the Authorisation provides public benefits that outweigh the 

detriments.  

 

 
Yours faithfully 

 

Alexandria Anthony | Associate      
SPORTSLAWYER       
 

       

      

 

 

 



P.O. Box 244 Albion QLD 4010

Tel: (07) 3262 4455  Fax: (07) 3262 5544

Email: tenpin.bowling@tenpin.org.au  Website: www.tenpin.org.au

 www.facebook.com/TenpinBowlingAustralia  
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CHAIRMAN AND 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

We are pleased to present this annual report on behalf of the Board and 
staff of Tenpin Bowling Australia (TBA).  Where 2014 was a challenging year 
operationally, the significant decisions and agreements made with key 
stakeholders paved the way for the sport to move forward.  2015 saw some 
of these initiatives come to fruition, particularly with the implementation of 
a new 3 year membership model.   The new flexible membership model 
recognises that all centres and regions have different requirements and 
offers multiple options for bowling centres to nominate the most suitable 
option for their bowlers.  

The planning of the new membership model commenced in 2013 following 
the findings from a comprehensive independent market research project 
that indicated industry alignment and the need to adequately resource the 
National Sporting Organisation were critical priorities.  After a lengthy 
period of consultation, this new model was developed after reaching an in 
principle agreement with the industry that those that play the sport in an 
organised manner i.e. in league and/or tournaments should be required to 
contribute financially to the sport.  

As with most major organisational reform, the new model has not been 
without its challenges, however the results speak for themselves with a 
34% growth in membership to 26,250.  Coming off two consecutive years of 
declining membership, the new model has been effective in ensuring that 
league and tournament bowlers are now members of the sport and 
provides TBA with some financial stability to deliver on other strategic 
priorities. 

Trevor Thiele- Chairman

Cara Honeychurch - CEO
A key strength of our organisation is our stakeholder engagement and our 
ability to work collaboratively with stakeholders to find solutions to issues 
that are win/win.  We have invested heavily in governance reform that has 
improved the performance of our organisation.  Our commitment to Board 
gender diversity is clear with three female directors (43%) and with 4 active 
Board committees (a) Finance, Risk and Audit, b) Governance and 
Remuneration, c) Grants and d) High Performance).  

As we reached the end of our 3 year strategic plan, the achievements over 
this period are considerable.  They include:

n A sport and industry agreement reached that provides for a flexible, 
admin light membership model that ensures TBA is adequately 
resourced to deliver sport outcomes;

n Addition of several innovative and value added membership 
benefits including a rewards program plus automated league and 
tournament personal statistics for members in select venues;

n Successful implementation of the USBC coaching framework 
including a new online coaching program for entry level instructors;

n Development and implementation of the Bowling 101 program to 
increase participation for People with a Disability

2015 26,250 34%

2014 19,531 -14%

2013 22,797 -6%

2012 24,257 -1%

2011 24,458 60%

2010 15,265 N/A

YEAR NUMBER OF MEMBERS GROWTH 

32
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n A strong focus on improved corporate 
governance that has resulted in TBA’s 
compliance with most of the ASC’s Mandatory 
Governance Principles; 

n Inclusion as one of 32 sports in the new federal 
government Sporting Schools Program that aims 
to get primary school children more active;

n Development of a new Junior Participation 
Program for children aged 6-12 due to be 
launched nationally in 2017;

n Success in High Performance with medals won at 
most international Championships and the 
continued and sustained performance of Jason 
Belmonte on the PBA Tour.  

Looking to the future, for the first time in the sports 
history, TBA developed its new 3 year strategic plan 
with all key stakeholders in the room – the ASC, all 8 
States and Territories and industry representatives from 
AMF and ABPA.  This was a highly beneficial process 
that resulted in not only a new shared vision but a 
collective understanding and approach of the 
opportunities and challenges that face us over the 
coming 3 years.   The key strategic priorities are as 
follows: 

On a positive note, the shift in priorities by the ASC has 
allowed TBA to invest in the growth in participation by 
children.  Extensive studies have indicated that children 
who play sport are far more likely to be active as adults 
and lead longer, healthier lives.  Therefore in 2014 the 
Government embarked on a proactive approach to 
improving the health of all Australians through a $100 
million investment in the Sporting Schools Program 
(SSP).  Launched in July 2015, SSP is an initiative 
designed to help schools increase children’s 
participation in sport, and to connect children with 
community sport.  

TBA is thrilled to be associated with the program and 
has developed a 4 week program which can either be 
run totally at a bowling centre or 3 weeks in school with 
the final week in centre.  An important objective of SSP 
is the connection to the local community and therefore 
the requirement to conduct at least one session in a 
bowling centre not only allows children to experience 
the true sport, but enables centres, coaches, local and 
State Associations to create relationships with local 
schools.  SSP will also be an important feeder program 
into our new Junior Participation Program that is 
currently under development.  

In April TBA, in partnership with the industry, engaged 
The Kinetica Group to undertake research on 
developing a Junior Participation Program.  With 50% of 
TBA’s member base over the age of 50 and junior 
membership at a mere 8%, we must attract younger 
participants or face a significant decline in participation 
within the next 5-10 years.  

Furthermore tenpin bowling doesn’t have a national in 
centre junior participation program.  The only option 
currently available for children who want to engage in 
the sport is to join a junior league which is 
approximately 30 weeks of the year with most offering 
minimal or no coaching.  This is simply out of alignment 
with what families are looking for in junior sport 
options and the new Junior Participation Program will 
address this gap.  The development of the program is 
progressing steadily with two successful 3 week pilots 
conducted in November.  A sport has only one 
opportunity to successfully launch a new program in 
the highly competitive and crowded junior sport 
market.  TBA is committed to ensuring that we get all 
facets of the program right before launching the 
program nationally in 2017.       

Operational Results 

TBA posted a small surplus for the year of $3,602.  
Whilst total revenue grew by 10% so too did total 
expenses as a result of our investment in the Junior 
Participation Program and Sporting Schools.   Our 
strong cash reserves and lack of debt ensures that we 
have sufficient working capital to operate efficiently.  

 A key focus in 2015 other than implementing the new 
membership model was to introduce new and relevant 
benefits for our members.  In an ever evolving digital 
world, TBA partnered with Simpler Technology to 
develop innovative technology for our dedicated 
tournament and league bowlers.  
Every TBA member now has an online portal allowing 
them to edit their contact details and view their 
membership status.  However the greatest benefits are 
for members in more than 20 centres across Australia 
that are using the League Data Extractor (LDE) which 
provides detailed personal statistics on league and 
select tournament play.  

Going a step further, members in LDE centres now 
receive automatic notifications via email when they 
earn a TBA award (usually within hours of the 
achievement) and members have the option to order 
their award online.  After a highly successful launch of 
this technology we intend to expand this functionality 
to over 60 centres in 2016.  

The other new membership benefit saw TBA partner 
with SportsPass to provide all members with access to a 
rewards program providing exclusive discounts and 
deals at over 300 leading national brands.  The 
SportsPass program is set to undergo a further 
expansion in mid-2016 where TBA members will earn 
cashback on online purchases made at over 1,000 
retailers.   

Sport Participation and Inclusion

A key focus area for growth in participation in recent 
years has been to increase the participation and 
engagement of people with a disability.  In 2014 TBA 
successfully introduced the “Bowling 101” program, an   
8 week program aimed at brand new bowlers to teach 
the fundamentals of the sport.  Mid way through 2015 
our National Inclusion Coordinator resigned and due to 
changes in the ASC participation funding framework 
this role has not been replaced.  This unfortunately has 
not allowed TBA to invest in growing this program.  As 
we await the announcement of the Federal Budget in 
May and the subsequent funding provided to sport, 
should any further participation funding be allocated to 
TBA we will look to reinstate the National Inclusion 
Coordinator role.    

1. Membership Engagement for Future Growth 

2. Working with Industry

3. Increase Participation in targeted groups

4. Volunteer and Coaching Development

2015-2018 STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

54
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Operational Results 

TBA posted a small surplus for the year of $3,602.  
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Participation Program and Sporting Schools.   Our 
strong cash reserves and lack of debt ensures that we 
have sufficient working capital to operate efficiently.  
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them to edit their contact details and view their 
membership status.  However the greatest benefits are 
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Going a step further, members in LDE centres now 
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with SportsPass to provide all members with access to a 
rewards program providing exclusive discounts and 
deals at over 300 leading national brands.  The 
SportsPass program is set to undergo a further 
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Sport Participation and Inclusion

A key focus area for growth in participation in recent 
years has been to increase the participation and 
engagement of people with a disability.  In 2014 TBA 
successfully introduced the “Bowling 101” program, an   
8 week program aimed at brand new bowlers to teach 
the fundamentals of the sport.  Mid way through 2015 
our National Inclusion Coordinator resigned and due to 
changes in the ASC participation funding framework 
this role has not been replaced.  This unfortunately has 
not allowed TBA to invest in growing this program.  As 
we await the announcement of the Federal Budget in 
May and the subsequent funding provided to sport, 
should any further participation funding be allocated to 
TBA we will look to reinstate the National Inclusion 
Coordinator role.    

1. Membership Engagement for Future Growth 

2. Working with Industry

3. Increase Participation in targeted groups

4. Volunteer and Coaching Development
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High Performance

Our Youth and Senior High Performance athletes had 
outstanding results in international championships 
throughout 2015.  Katey Furze and Emily Rigney 
combined in the Women’s Doubles to win Bronze at the 
Asian Youth Championship in Macau in March.  Emily 
went on to win Silver in the Women’s Masters.  

An emerging pathway for our elite youth bowlers is the 
opportunity for select athletes to join the NCAA US 
College program.  In 2015, Katey Furze, Stephen 
Cowland and Emily Rigney were all awarded 
scholarships to various colleges and will have the 
opportunity to not only work with some of the best 
bowling coaches in the United States but also further 
their educational opportunities.  

In August, National Coach Andrew Frawley took to the 
lanes to compete in the World Senior Championship in 
Las Vegas winning Gold in Men’s Singles and Masters.  
Other medals included Silver in the Men’s Teams 
(Andrew Frawley, Warren Stewart, Shaun Cummings 
and Robert Chinner), Bronze in Men’s Doubles (Robert 
Chinner and Shaun Cummings), Men’s All Events (Shaun 
Cummings) and Women’s Teams (Jeanette Baker, Kerry 
Kennedy, Robyn Flynn and Susanne Jack).

Jason Belmonte continued his incredible form on the 
US PBA Tour once again showing he is the best bowler 
in the world by winning his third consecutive Player of 
the Year honour.  Along the way he became the first 
player to win the USBC Masters in 3 consecutive years 
(2013-2015) and won his 2nd PBA Tournament of 
Champions title.  

Sam Cooley is emerging as another outstanding athlete 
on the international stage winning the Hong Kong leg of 
the Asian Bowling Tour and finishing 2nd in the 
Malaysian Open in 2015.  Sam has now joined the PBA 
Tour and started his career in impressive fashion 
finishing 3rd in the PBA Player’s Championship in 
February 2016.  
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The past year has 
seen has seen 
considerable 
success and 
progress for 
Australian sport, as 
the Australian 
Sports Commission 
(ASC) and national 
sporting 
organisations 
(NSOs) continue to 
build on our 
nation's proud 
sporting tradition.

The Government's 2014–15 investment of 
nearly $120 million into Australian sport 
continues to be refined to ensure funding is 
aligned to sports with the greatest potential 
to contribute to Australia's Winning Edge 
2012–2022 targets, and drive greater 
participation outcomes for sport.

The sporting landscape has changed rapidly in 
recent years, as have the options for people's 
scarce leisure time. More than ever before, 
sport faces tough competition for our 
attention from electronic media and other 
sedentary pursuits.

In March the Commission launched 
Play.Sport.Australia. — our plan to help NSOs 
build participation in sport and make sure all 
Australians enjoy its benefits. Sports have the 
opportunity to attract more than 4.5 million 
Australians into their communities. It's 
important that we work together to ensure 
that more Australians, particularly young 
Australians, participate in sport more often 
and that we have strong sporting 
organisations that deliver the products and 
opportunities Australians want. 

Other highlights in 2014–15 included:
n The transition to Sporting Schools and 

the development of its website — the 
main portal for sporting organisations, 
schools, coaches and parents to access 
this $100 million program which aims to 
reach more than 850,000 children.

n The development of the AusPlay survey 
— The ASC has committed to 
introducing a new national survey to 
better understand how Australians 
engage with, and play, sport. Good 
decisions require good data and this 
initiative by the ASC is critical.

And through Australia's Winning Edge we will 
continue to give our athletes the best chances 
at international success.

So now, more than ever, we have a clear plan 
to make sure all Australians enjoy sport and 
maximise our chances of success. On behalf of 
the ASC I thank you for your hard work in 
helping us achieve these goals and I look 
forward to working with you in to the future.

John Wylie AM
Chair
Australian Sports Commission 

AUSTRALIAN SPORTS COMMISSION 

98



The past year has 
seen has seen 
considerable 
success and 
progress for 
Australian sport, as 
the Australian 
Sports Commission 
(ASC) and national 
sporting 
organisations 
(NSOs) continue to 
build on our 
nation's proud 
sporting tradition.

The Government's 2014–15 investment of 
nearly $120 million into Australian sport 
continues to be refined to ensure funding is 
aligned to sports with the greatest potential 
to contribute to Australia's Winning Edge 
2012–2022 targets, and drive greater 
participation outcomes for sport.

The sporting landscape has changed rapidly in 
recent years, as have the options for people's 
scarce leisure time. More than ever before, 
sport faces tough competition for our 
attention from electronic media and other 
sedentary pursuits.

In March the Commission launched 
Play.Sport.Australia. — our plan to help NSOs 
build participation in sport and make sure all 
Australians enjoy its benefits. Sports have the 
opportunity to attract more than 4.5 million 
Australians into their communities. It's 
important that we work together to ensure 
that more Australians, particularly young 
Australians, participate in sport more often 
and that we have strong sporting 
organisations that deliver the products and 
opportunities Australians want. 

Other highlights in 2014–15 included:
n The transition to Sporting Schools and 

the development of its website — the 
main portal for sporting organisations, 
schools, coaches and parents to access 
this $100 million program which aims to 
reach more than 850,000 children.

n The development of the AusPlay survey 
— The ASC has committed to 
introducing a new national survey to 
better understand how Australians 
engage with, and play, sport. Good 
decisions require good data and this 
initiative by the ASC is critical.

And through Australia's Winning Edge we will 
continue to give our athletes the best chances 
at international success.

So now, more than ever, we have a clear plan 
to make sure all Australians enjoy sport and 
maximise our chances of success. On behalf of 
the ASC I thank you for your hard work in 
helping us achieve these goals and I look 
forward to working with you in to the future.

John Wylie AM
Chair
Australian Sports Commission 

AUSTRALIAN SPORTS COMMISSION 

98



MEN’S WINNING TEAMS WOMEN’S WINNING TEAMS

1963 NA
1964 NA
1965 New South Wales
1966 Queensland 
1967 Victoria 
1968 New South Wales
1969 New South Wales 
1970 New South Wales 
1971 New South Wales
1972 New South Wales 
1973 Victoria 
1974 South Australia
1975 South Australia 
1976 Victoria 
1977 Victoria
1978 Victoria 
1979 New South Wales 
1980 Victoria
1981 Queensland 
1982 South Australia 
1983 New South Wales
1984 New South Wales 
1985 New South Wales 
1986 New South Wales
1987 Queensland 
1988 South Australia 
1989 Queensland
1990 Queensland 
1991 New South Wales 
1992 New South Wales
1993 New South Wales 
1994 New South Wales 
1995 Victoria
1996 New South Wales 
1997 New South Wales 
1998 New South Wales
1999 New South Wales 
2000 New South Wales 
2001 New South Wales
2002 Queensland 
2003 New South Wales 
2004 New South Wales
2005 New South Wales 
2006 New South Wales 
2007 New South Wales
2008 Northern Territory 
2009 New South Wales 
2010 Queensland
2011 New South Wales 
2012 Queensland 
2013 Queensland
2014 Victoria
2015 Victoria

1963 South Australia 
1964 New South Wales 
1965 New South Wales
1966 New South Wales 
1967 Victoria 
1968 New South Wales
1969 Victoria 
1970 South Australia 
1971 New South Wales
1972 New South Wale 
1973 New South Wales 
1974 Victoria
1975 Victoria 
1976 New South Wales 
1977 New South Wales
1978 Victoria 
1979 Victoria 
1980 Victoria
1981 Victoria 
1982 Victoria 
1983 Victoria
1984 Victoria 
1985 Tasmania 
1986 New South Wales
1987 South Australia 
1988 South Australia 
1989 Victoria
1990 New South Wales 
1991 Victoria 
1992 New South Wales
1993 New South Wales 
1994 Victoria 
1995 Victoria
1996 Victoria 
1997 Victoria 
1998 New South Wales
1999 New South Wales 
2000 Victoria 
2001 Northern Territory
2002 New South Wales 
2003 New South Wales 
2004 Victoria
2005 New South Wales 
2006 Victoria 
2007 New South Wales
2008 New South Wales 
2009 Tasmania 
2010 New Zealand
2011 New Zealand 
2012 Western Australia
2013 Queensland
2014 Northern Territory
2015 Queensland

NATIONAL CHAMPIONSHIP HISTORY WALTER RACHUIG WINNING TEAMS

TBA DISABILITIES CHAMPIONSHIP HISTORY
Teams Doubles Singles Total

2008 73 147 189 90 865 165 2,592

2009 70 140 166 71 797 157 2,439

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2007 58 124 159 81 720 166 2,130

2006 48 98 111 62 561 139 1,734

Year Mixed

73

63

88

334

398

425

148

127

180

505

518

616

185

149

221

417

499

694

88

63

128

268

242

378

861

718

1,061

2,697

2,971

3,579

170

133

199

370

390

460

2,580

2,154

3,183

8,091

8,913

11,427

Mixed Male Female Entries Bowlers Games

AUSTRALIAN NATIONAL CHAMPIONSHIP RECORD OF ENTRIES

 Teams Doubles Singles Total

Year Male Male MaleFemale Female FemaleMixed Mixed Entries Bowlers Games

2008

2009

2010

44

46

71

25

36

36

34

158

290

101

128

66

93

397

751

261

342

1,843

2,822

452

624

11,868

15,323

30 43 170 98 75 428 212 1,911 497 12,088

2007 38 27 32 151 81 58 337 203 1,605 460 9,502

2006 57 48 43 202 139 69 445 306 2,311 517 12,385

2005 70 46 38 216 132 61 473 279 2,340 573 12,674

2004 63 46 56 190 152 72 475 328 2,456 576 12,833

2003 53 50 61 178 140 57 460 348 2,378 528 12,841

2002 57 46 26 171 139 58 420 300 2,101 460 11,345

2001 69 56 22 188 140 74 456 136 2,131 513 12,479

47

40

32

28

53

60

188

191

121

132

122

131

672

548

390

380

2,595

2,476

376

346

11,548

11,396

JUNIOR NATIONAL CHAMPIONSHIP RECORD OF ENTRIES

 Teams Doubles Singles Total

Entries Bowlers Games

2008

2009

2010

68 39 56 253 140 130 722 439 3,022 467 12,629

2007 58 32 37 225 115 80 600 360 2,435 396 11,256

2006 54 36 46 183 127 123

141 732

603 436 2,585 432 12,615

2005 69 52 53 234 158 553 3,221 539 14,485

2004 66 44 50 221 141 114 797 486 3,035 504 13,536

2003 72 44 57 237 153 76 800 475 3,072 575 12,740

Year Male Male MaleFemale Female FemaleMixed Mixed

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

33

30

26

17

17

67

66

23

40

49

25

17

18

14

11

33

30

37

23

31

44

62

45

35

26

45

45

27

39

49

176

181

182

122

100

290

326

154

204

169

111

112

100

84

63

116

132

101

96

109

105

116

86

69

56

121

120

63

87

104

503

583

615

451

371

906

1034

448

572

482

364

382

368

327

264

376

371

292

293

267

2,161

2,328

2,167

1,341

1,343

3,061

3,263

1,811

2,149

2029

300

345

310

233

210

646

629

358

432

424

10,146

10,659

10,122

8,398

7,557

16,001

16,622

11,659

12,844

12,406
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672
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2,595
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Year Male Male MaleFemale Female FemaleMixed Mixed

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

33

30

26

17

17

67

66

23

40

49

25

17

18

14

11

33

30

37

23

31

44

62

45

35

26

45

45

27

39

49

176

181

182

122

100

290

326

154

204

169

111

112

100

84

63
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132

101

96

109

105
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69

56

121

120

63
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104

503

583

615

451

371
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1034

448

572

482

364

382

368

327

264

376
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292

293
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2,328

2,167

1,341

1,343

3,061

3,263

1,811
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2029

300

345

310

233

210

646

629

358

432

424

10,146

10,659

10,122

8,398

7,557

16,001

16,622

11,659

12,844

12,406
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their report, together with the 
financial statements, on the company, Tenpin Bowling 
Australia Limited (TBA) for the year ended 31 December 
2015.

Directors
The following persons were directors of the company 
during the whole of the financial year and up to the 
date of this report, unless otherwise stated:

n Trevor Thiele
n Jessica Ryan
n James Taafe
n John Coxon
n Edi De Pellegrin (resigned 01/08/2015)
n Matthew Whitten
n Kate Gillis (resigned 03/12/2015)
n Bruce Morris (appointed 01/08/2015)

Objectives
The objectives of the company and areas of strategic 
priority are:
1. Member engagement for future growth
2. Working with Industry
3. Increase participation in targeted groups
4. Volunteer and coaching development

Strategy for achieving the objectives
Objective 1: Member engagement for future 
growth

n Streamline and enhance membership processes 
to achieve full membership

n Develop and implement a communication plan 
to support engagement and recognition

n Develop and implement a plan to grow and 
develop capabilities of Local Associations

Objective 2: Working with Industry
n Align strategic objectives and agree on common 

outcomes with key industry organisations
n Ensure seamless integration of membership data 

with industry

Objective 3: Increase participation in targeted 
groups

n Develop and implement Junior Participation 
Program 

n Develop and implement Sporting Schools 
Program

n Grow Disability Participation Program
n Deliver clear, defined and documented high 

performance pathways

Objective 4: Volunteer and coaching 
development 

n Increase coaching workforce
n Create a volunteer development and recognition 

program

Principal activities
The principal activities of the company during the 
course of the year were to manage the sport of Tenpin 
Bowling in Australia.  This includes:
1. Maintain and enforce the rules of the sport as 

governed by World Bowling
2. Develop and administer coaching programs
3. Develop programs and work collaboratively with 

industry to grow grass roots participation
4. Ensure bowling centres conform with the technical 

requirements of the sport as governed by World 
Bowling

5. Conduct National Championships that cater for 
bowlers of all abilities for juniors, youth, adult, 
senior and bowlers with a disability

6. Select national teams to represent Australia at both 
World Championship and other international events

7. Promote the sport through partnerships with 
proprietors, sponsors and the media 

During the financial year our achievements 
included:
In collaboration with the industry TBA successfully 
implemented an alternative membership model to 
increase sports registration. The new model led to a 
34% increase in membership from 19,531 in 2014 to 
26,250 in 2015 and an increase of almost $124,000 in 
registration fees received.

As part of our commitment to continually add 
innovative and relevant membership benefits, TBA 
partnered with Simpler Technology to create a 
membership portal for all TBA members.  Additionally 
for bowlers competing in centres utilising the League 
Data Extractor technology – bowlers now receive 
automatic notification when they qualify for an award 
and through their portal have access to detailed 
statistics on league and tournament scores.    

Tenpin Bowling was one of 30 sports to be included in 
the new Sporting Schools Program, led by the 
Australian Sports Commission. This program aims to 
help children develop a lifelong interest in sport and 
create a stronger engagement between the local 
community and sporting clubs.  The Sporting Schools 
Program commenced in Term 3 and over 2,550 
students participated from 45 schools across 5 States. 

Continuing our focus on attracting children to our sport, 
TBA successfully completed a 3 week trial in two 
centres of a new in centre Junior Participation Program.  
Partnering with The Kinetica Group,  the program was 
developed based on consumer driven research to 
understand the needs and desires of children and their 
parents rather than the traditional approach of taking 
an existing program and asking consumers to adapt to 
the offerings of the sport.  Pilots of the entire program 
will be conducted throughout 2016 with a national 
launch planned for term 1 in 2017.

In conjunction with Australian Disability Tenpin, TBA 
successfully hosted the third joint National Disability 
Championship held in Brisbane.  The championship 
continues to go from strength to strength with another 
record year of 3,579 entries and 460 participants 
(growth of 20% and 18% respectively).    

Australia won 8 medals at international championship 
events including 2 Gold, 1 Silver & 3 Bronze at the 
World Senior Championship.  Our youth athletes won 1 
Silver & 1 Bronze medal at the Asian Youth 
Championship placing Australia 6th on the overall 
medal tally. Furthermore Jason Belmonte joined an 
elite group of the sport's superstars when he was 
named the Professional Bowling Association (PBA) 
player of the year for the third consecutive year after 
successfully defending both the USBC Masters and the 
Tournament of Champions. Jason became the first 
player in history to win 2 majors in back to back years.    

As further testament to the quality of our High 

Performance program and athletes, Emily Rigney, Katey 
Furze and Stephen Cowland were awarded scholarships 
to NCAA Colleges in the United States.  Not only will 
this undoubtedly further their sporting careers but will 
provide invaluable education opportunities for these 
talented athletes.  

TBA continued its strong focus and commitment to 
corporate governance through a rigorous review and 
implementation of all relevant Australian Sports 
Commission (ASC) Mandatory Governance Principles.  
Highlights included its commitment to gender diversity 
with three female directors (43%) serving on the Board 
during the year and a female CEO.  Our 4 Board 
committees – Finance, Risk and Audit (FRAC); 
Governance; Grants and High Performance have been 
active with external members appointed to both the 
FRAC and Governance Committees.   
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INFORMATION ON THE DIRECTORS

Title: Non-Executive Director
Qualifications: Qualified Electrician
Experience and expertise: John has over 30 years' experience in leadership roles on various 

committees within Tenpin Bowling at local, state and national 
level. John joined the Board of TBA in 1998 and was Chairman 
from June 2007 to May 2009.

Special responsibilities: Bowlers representative 
  Rules and Ethics Committee Convener
  National Ranking System Administrator 
  National Tournament Director
  Member High Performance Committee

Qualifications & Experience

Title: Non-Executive Director – Vice Chairman
Qualifications: Bachelor of Psychology and Management/Marketing
Experience and expertise: Jessica has experience as a Service Delivery Manager with 

exposure to various sectors in the IT industry including mining, 
telecommunications and energy focusing on continual service 
improvement and cost reduction.   Jessica is a former member of 
the NSWTBA Board. 

Special responsibilities: Bowlers representative
  Member of Grants Committee (Chair)
  Member High Performance Committee (Chair)

Qualifications & Experience

Title: Non-Executive Director
Qualifications: Diploma of Business specialising in Accounting: CPA
Experience and expertise: James has over 30 years' experience as a Financial Controller and 

is currently employed as the CAO for Wesley College Melbourne. 
James is currently a director of VicTenpins and State Team 
Manager and has previously been President and Treasurer. James 
joined the Board of TBA in September 2008 and was elected 
Chairman in May 2010 until May 2015.

Special responsibilities: Bowlers representative 
  Member of Finance, Risk and Audit Committee (Chair)
  Member of Governance and Remuneration Committee
   Member of Grants Committee

Qualifications & Experience

John Coxon

James Taafe

Jessica Ryan

Title: Non-Executive Director - Chairman
Qualifications: BA (Accounting), ACA
Experience and expertise: Trevor has over 30 years' experience in senior finance and 

administration roles in medium and large ASX listed companies 
including positions as Chief Financial Officer and Company 
Secretary. He also has commercial, financial and treasury roles 
with both listed and private companies within various industries. 
Trevor also is a member of other Boards including Tenpin SA, Port 
Adelaide Football Club and YMCA (SA).

Special responsibilities: Member of Finance, Risk and Audit Committee 
   Member of Governance and Remuneration Committee 
  Member of Grants Committee
  Board appointed director

Qualifications & ExperienceMeetings of directors

The number of meetings of the company's Board of Directors held during the year ended 31 December 2015, and the 
number of meetings attended by each director was:

Held: represents the number of meetings held during the time the director held office or was a member of the 
relevant committee.

Contributions on winding up

The company is limited by Guarantee. Each National Voting Delegate undertakes to contribute to the company's 
property, if the company is wound up while the person is a National Voting Delegate or within one year after the 
person ceases to be National Voting Delegate, for the payment of the company's debt and liabilities contracted before 
the person ceases to be a National Voting Delegate and of the costs, charges and expenses of winding up and for the 
adjustment of the rights of the contributors amongst themselves, such amount as may be required not exceeding 
$10.00.

Auditor's independence declaration

A copy of the auditor's independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set 
out on the following page.

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of directors, pursuant to section 298(2)(a) of the Corporations Act 
2001.

 

On behalf of the directors

Vice Chairman

Chief Executive Officer

Dated this 8th day of April 2016.

Name of Director Number of Meetings  Number of    
  Attended Meetings Held

Trevor Thiele 4 4

Jessica Ryan 4 4

John Coxon 4 4

Matthew Whitten 4 4

James Taafe 4 4

Bruce Morris 0 1

Edi De Pellegrin 3 3

Kate Gillis 4 4
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Title: Non-Executive Director
Qualifications: Diploma of Art and Design specializing in Industrial Design
  Registered Building Practitioner since 2009
  Certificate III in OH&S
Experience and expertise: Edi is co-owner and director of Wyncity Bowl and Entertainment 

and has been a bowling centre proprietor since 2000.  A previous 
TBA Director in 2009, Edi holds a number of leadership positions 
within the industry and local community including the positions 
of President of ABPA and Goldpin Victoria and Chairperson of the 
Wyndham Tourism Association.   

Special responsibilities: ABPA Nominee
  Member High Performance Committee

Title: Non-Executive Director
Qualifications: Bachelor of Commerce, majoring in Marketing 
Experience and expertise: Kate was General Manager Sales and Marketing at AMF Bowling 

Centres Australia with extensive experience within Australia and 
overseas as a Marketing Executive for leading global brands 
including Gloria Jeans Coffees, Pandora Jewellery and Waterford 
Crystal.  Kate has an accomplished track record for clear 
commercial strategic planning and execution. Kate's experience 
extends to Leadership teams and cross-functional project groups 
involved with broader business issues.

Special responsibilities: AMF Nominee

Qualifications & Experience

Qualifications & Experience

Edi De Pellegrin

INFORMATION ON THE DIRECTORS

Title:  Non-Executive Director  
Experience and expertise: Bruce has over 30 years' experience in the Tenpin Bowling 

industry and is currently the proprietor of Logan City Tenpin in 
Brisbane.  Bruce has over 20 years' management experience 
across a range of businesses. Bruce joined the Board of TBA in 
August 2015 and was previously a Director of TBA from May 
2008 to April 2014. 

Special responsibilities: APBA Nominee

Qualifications & Experience

Bruce Morris

Title:  Non-Executive Director
Qualifications:  Associate Diploma Business (Accounting)
Experience and expertise: Matthew is a former member of NSWTBA Board and a former 

member of the Greater Sydney Tenpin Bowing Association Board 
thus having had involvement at the local, state and national 
board level.

Special responsibilities:  Bowlers representative until December 2015 at which time he 
commenced employment with AMF as National League Manager 
and was appointed the AMF nominee on the TBA Board. 

  Member of Grants Committee
  Member of Governance and Remuneration Committee (Chair)

Qualifications & Experience

Matthew Whitten

Kate Gillis

WESTERN AUSTRALIATASMANIA SOUTH AUSTRALIA A.C.T VICTORIANEW SOUTH WALESNORTHERN TERRITORYQUEENSLAND
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AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

UNDER SECTION 307C OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2001

TO THE DIRECTORS OF TENPIN BOWLING AUSTRALIA LTD

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 31 December 2015 there have been

i.  no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to 
the audit; and

ii.  no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

Jason O'Connor B Com CPA

Registered Company Auditor (No. 353931)

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

Dated this 19th day of April 2016.

Jason O'Connor B.Com CPA

P.O. Box 5480

BRENDALE DC QLD 4500

Mobile:

Office: 

Email: auditor@joconnorptyltd.com.au

Web: www.joconnorptyltd.com.au

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

  
 2015   2014  

  Note  $   $  

    INCOME 
   Australian Sports Commission grants 
 

444,500 320,250 

Accreditation fees 
 

17,259 75,765 

Coaching and accreditation fees 
 

23,785 36,656 

Interest received 
 

7,703 20,094 

Other income 
 

34,407 37,892 

Participation program income 
 

42,113 - 

Sports registration fees received 
 

727,632 603,777 

Tournament income 
 

444,015 492,244 

Total Income   1,741,414 1,586,678 

    EXPENDITURE 
   Administration and office overheads 
 

85,810 77,374 

Coaching and high performance expenses 
 

39,843 52,958 

Communications 
 

10,611 11,249 

Employee entitlements 
 

616,199 570,310 

Governance and meetings 
 

23,731 19,007 

Information technology expenditure  
 

40,000 - 

Insurance 
 

40,760 43,597 

Membership costs 
 

199,231 224,284 

Occupancy costs 
 

39,528 37,386 

Participation program expenses 
 

171,959 30,765 

Tournament expenses 
 

470,140 516,032 

Total Expenditure   1,737,812 1,582,962 

    Surplus before income tax expense   3,602 3,716 

Income tax expense 1.d - - 

    Surplus after income tax expense for the year 
attributable to the members.   3,602 3,716 

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax   - - 

    Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to 
the members.   3,602 3,716 
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23,731 19,007 

Information technology expenditure  
 

40,000 - 

Insurance 
 

40,760 43,597 

Membership costs 
 

199,231 224,284 

Occupancy costs 
 

39,528 37,386 

Participation program expenses 
 

171,959 30,765 

Tournament expenses 
 

470,140 516,032 

Total Expenditure   1,737,812 1,582,962 

    Surplus before income tax expense   3,602 3,716 

Income tax expense 1.d - - 

    Surplus after income tax expense for the year 
attributable to the members.   3,602 3,716 

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax   - - 

    Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to 
the members.   3,602 3,716 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

 
 

 2015   2014  

  Note   $   $  

    CURRENT ASSETS 
   Cash and cash equivalents 
 

642,488 568,605 

Accounts receivables 
 

23,618 9,059 

Prepayments 
 

12,011 26,032 

Total Current Assets   678,117 603,696 

    TOTAL ASSETS   678,117 603,696 

    CURRENT LIABILITIES 
   Accounts payables 
 

79,123 35,473 

Other payables 
 

14,665 27,254 

Income received in advance 3 242,381 198,144 

Provision for employee entitlements 
 

26,988 30,267 

Total Current Liabilities   363,157 291,138 

    NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 
   Provision for employee entitlements 
 

22,000 23,200 

Total Non-Current Liabilities   22,000 23,200 

    TOTAL LIABILITIES   385,157 314,338 

    NET ASSETS   292,960 289,358 

    EQUITY  
   Accumulated Surplus 7 292,960 289,358 

TOTAL EQUITY   292,960 289,358 

 

  
 Accumulated  

 

  
 Surplus   Total  

     $   $  

    

    Opening balance 1 January 2014 
 

285,642 285,642 

Plus surplus for the year    3,716 3,716 

  
289,358 289,358 

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax   - - 

Closing Balance 31 December 2014   289,358 289,358 

    Opening balance 1 January 2015 
 

289,358 289,358 

Plus surplus for the year    3,602 3,602 

  
292,960 292,960 

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax   - - 

Closing Balance 31 December 2015   292,960 292,960 

 

  
 2015   2014  

  Note  $   $  

    CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
   Receipts from customers 
 

1,936,761 1,796,298 

Payments to suppliers and employees 
 

(1,870,581) (1,924,923) 

Interest received   7,703 20,094 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 4 73,883 (108,531) 

    CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
   Purchase of plant and equipment   - - 

Net cash (used) by investing activities   - - 

    CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
   Proceeds from borrowings 
 

- - 

Repayment of borrowings   - - 

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities   - - 

    Net increase (decrease) in cash held 
 

73,883 (108,531) 

Cash at the beginning of the year    568,605 677,136 

Cash at the end of the year 4 642,488 568,605 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES

This general purpose financial report has been 
prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements and 
Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting 
Standards Board ('AASB'), and the Corporations Act 
2001.

The financial report covers the company of Tenpin 
Bowling Australia Limited. Tenpin Bowling Australia 
Limited (the company) is an unlisted public company 
(nonprofit) – limited by guarantee, incorporated and 
domiciled in Australia.
Reporting Basis and Conventions 

The financial report has been prepared on an accruals 
basis and is based on historical costs and does not take 
into account changing money values or, except where 
stated, current valuations of non-current assets. Cost is 
based on the fair values of the consideration given in 
exchange for assets.

The following is a summary of the material accounting 
policies adopted by the company in the preparation of 
the financial report. The accounting policies have been 
consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.
New, Revised or Amending Accounting Standards and 
Interpretations Adopted

The company has adopted all of the new, revised or 
amending Accounting Standards and Interpretations 
issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board 
('AASB') that are mandatory for the current reporting 
period.

The company has early adopted AASB 1053 'Application 
of Tiers of Australian Accounting Standards', AASB 
2010-2 'Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements' and later amending Standards, as 
relevant. No other new, revised or amending 
Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not 
yet mandatory have been early adopted.

Any significant impact on the accounting policies of the 
company from the adoption of these Accounting 
Standards and Interpretations are disclosed below. The 
adoption of these Accounting Standards and 
Interpretations did not have any significant impact on 
the financial performance or position of the company.

The following Accounting Standards and Interpretations 
are most relevant to the company:

AASB 1053 Application of Tiers of Australian Accounting 
Standards

The company has early adopted AASB 1053 from 1 
January 2013. This standard establishes a differential 
financial reporting framework consisting of two Tiers of 

As is common for organisations of this size and type, it 
is not practicable for the company to maintain an 
effective system of internal control over Tournament 
Income until their initial entry into the accounting 
records. Accordingly, the financial report in relation to 
Tournament Income is limited to the amounts banked 
and recorded in the accounting systems.
b. Employee Benefits

Provision is made for the company's liability for 
employee benefits arising from services rendered by 
employees to Balance Sheet date. Employee benefits 
expected to be settled within one year together with 
benefits arising from wages, salaries and annual leave 
which may be settled after one year, have been 
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when 
the liability is settled plus related on costs. Other 
employee benefits payable later than one year have 
been measured at the net present value.

Contributions are made by the entity to an employee 
superannuation fund and are charged as expenses 
when incurred.
c. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, 
deposits held at-call with banks, other short-term highly 
liquid investments with original maturities of three 
months or less, and bank overdrafts.
d. Income Tax

No provision for income tax has been raised, as the 
entity is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of 
the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.
e. Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of 
the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST 
incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation 
Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as 
part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of 
an item of expense. Receivables and payables in the 
Balance Sheet are shown inclusive of GST. Cash flows 
are presented in the Cash flow Statement on a gross 
basis, except for the GST component of investing and 
financing activities, which are disclosed as operating 
cash flows.
f. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the entity has a legal or 
constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for 
which it is probable that an outflow of economic 
benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably 
measured. The provision for long service leave is 
recognised and measured at the present value of the 
estimated future cash flows to be made in respect of all 
employees at the reporting date.

reporting requirements for preparing general purpose 
financial statements, being Tier 1 Australian Accounting 
Standards and Tier 2 Australian Accounting Standards - 
Reduced Disclosure Requirements. The company being 
classed as Tier 2 continues to apply the full recognition 
and measurements requirements of Australian 
Accounting Standards with substantially reduced 
disclosure in accordance with AASB 2010-2 and later 
amending Standards, as relevant.

AASB 2010-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements

The company has early adopted AASB 2010-2 from 1 
January 2013. These amendments make numerous 
modifications to a range of Australian Accounting 
Standards and Interpretations, to introduce reduced 
disclosure requirements to the pronouncements for 
application by certain types of entities in preparing 
general purpose financial statements. The adoption of 
these amendments has significantly reduced the 
company's disclosure requirements.
AASB 2011-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from the Trans-Tasman Convergence 
Project - Reduced Disclosure Requirements

AASB 2012-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements and

AASB 2012-11 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and 
Other Amendments

The company has early adopted AASB 2011-2, AASB 
2012-7 and 2012-11 amendments from 1 January 2013, 
to the extent that they related to other standards 
already adopted by the company. These amendments 
make numerous modifications to a range of Australian 
Accounting Standards and Interpretations to 
significantly reduce the company's disclosure 
requirements.
Accounting Policies 
a. R evenue

n Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised 
upon the delivery of goods to customers.

n Donations and bequests are recognised as 
revenue when received unless they are 
designated for a specific purpose, where they 
are carried forward as prepaid income on the 
balance sheet.

n Interest revenue and distribution income from 
investments is recognised on a proportional 
basis taking into account the interest rates 
applicable to the financial assets. 

n Revenue from the rendering of a service is 
recognised upon the delivery of the service to 
the customers.

n All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods 
and services tax (GST).
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g. Grants

Grants are recognised at their fair value where there is 
a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received 
and all attached conditions will be complied with.
h. Committed funds

Where funds are raised or bequeathed for a specific 
project then those funds are held as a liability, once the 
conditions are satisfied these funds are treated as 
income.
i. Plant and Equipment.

Additions for plant and equipment are only recognised 
as an asset if the value of the asset acquired is greater 
than $5,000. All assets acquired below this value are 
expensed in the year that they are acquired. 
j. Comparative Figures

Where required by Accounting Standards comparative 
figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in 
presentation for the current financial year.
NOTE 2.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, 
ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the financial statements requires 
management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the 
financial statements. Management continually 
evaluates its judgements and estimates in relation to 
assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and 
expenses. Management bases its judgements, 
estimates and assumptions on historical experience and 
on other various factors, including expectations of 
future events, which management believes to be 
reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting 
accounting judgements and estimates will seldom equal 
the related actual results. The judgements, estimates 
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities (refer to the respective notes) within the 
next financial year are discussed below.
Long service leave provision

As discussed in note 1, the liability for long service 
leave is recognised and measured at the present value 
of the estimated future cash flows to be made in 
respect of all employees at the reporting date. In 
determining the present value of the liability, estimates 
of attrition rates and pay increases through promotion 
and inflation have been taken into account.
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES

This general purpose financial report has been 
prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements and 
Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting 
Standards Board ('AASB'), and the Corporations Act 
2001.
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Limited (the company) is an unlisted public company 
(nonprofit) – limited by guarantee, incorporated and 
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The financial report has been prepared on an accruals 
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exchange for assets.

The following is a summary of the material accounting 
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the financial report. The accounting policies have been 
consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.
New, Revised or Amending Accounting Standards and 
Interpretations Adopted

The company has adopted all of the new, revised or 
amending Accounting Standards and Interpretations 
issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board 
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period.

The company has early adopted AASB 1053 'Application 
of Tiers of Australian Accounting Standards', AASB 
2010-2 'Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements' and later amending Standards, as 
relevant. No other new, revised or amending 
Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not 
yet mandatory have been early adopted.
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Standards and Interpretations are disclosed below. The 
adoption of these Accounting Standards and 
Interpretations did not have any significant impact on 
the financial performance or position of the company.

The following Accounting Standards and Interpretations 
are most relevant to the company:

AASB 1053 Application of Tiers of Australian Accounting 
Standards

The company has early adopted AASB 1053 from 1 
January 2013. This standard establishes a differential 
financial reporting framework consisting of two Tiers of 

As is common for organisations of this size and type, it 
is not practicable for the company to maintain an 
effective system of internal control over Tournament 
Income until their initial entry into the accounting 
records. Accordingly, the financial report in relation to 
Tournament Income is limited to the amounts banked 
and recorded in the accounting systems.
b. Employee Benefits

Provision is made for the company's liability for 
employee benefits arising from services rendered by 
employees to Balance Sheet date. Employee benefits 
expected to be settled within one year together with 
benefits arising from wages, salaries and annual leave 
which may be settled after one year, have been 
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when 
the liability is settled plus related on costs. Other 
employee benefits payable later than one year have 
been measured at the net present value.

Contributions are made by the entity to an employee 
superannuation fund and are charged as expenses 
when incurred.
c. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, 
deposits held at-call with banks, other short-term highly 
liquid investments with original maturities of three 
months or less, and bank overdrafts.
d. Income Tax

No provision for income tax has been raised, as the 
entity is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of 
the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.
e. Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of 
the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST 
incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation 
Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as 
part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of 
an item of expense. Receivables and payables in the 
Balance Sheet are shown inclusive of GST. Cash flows 
are presented in the Cash flow Statement on a gross 
basis, except for the GST component of investing and 
financing activities, which are disclosed as operating 
cash flows.
f. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the entity has a legal or 
constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for 
which it is probable that an outflow of economic 
benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably 
measured. The provision for long service leave is 
recognised and measured at the present value of the 
estimated future cash flows to be made in respect of all 
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financial statements, being Tier 1 Australian Accounting 
Standards and Tier 2 Australian Accounting Standards - 
Reduced Disclosure Requirements. The company being 
classed as Tier 2 continues to apply the full recognition 
and measurements requirements of Australian 
Accounting Standards with substantially reduced 
disclosure in accordance with AASB 2010-2 and later 
amending Standards, as relevant.

AASB 2010-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements

The company has early adopted AASB 2010-2 from 1 
January 2013. These amendments make numerous 
modifications to a range of Australian Accounting 
Standards and Interpretations, to introduce reduced 
disclosure requirements to the pronouncements for 
application by certain types of entities in preparing 
general purpose financial statements. The adoption of 
these amendments has significantly reduced the 
company's disclosure requirements.
AASB 2011-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from the Trans-Tasman Convergence 
Project - Reduced Disclosure Requirements

AASB 2012-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements and

AASB 2012-11 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and 
Other Amendments

The company has early adopted AASB 2011-2, AASB 
2012-7 and 2012-11 amendments from 1 January 2013, 
to the extent that they related to other standards 
already adopted by the company. These amendments 
make numerous modifications to a range of Australian 
Accounting Standards and Interpretations to 
significantly reduce the company's disclosure 
requirements.
Accounting Policies 
a. R evenue

n Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised 
upon the delivery of goods to customers.

n Donations and bequests are recognised as 
revenue when received unless they are 
designated for a specific purpose, where they 
are carried forward as prepaid income on the 
balance sheet.

n Interest revenue and distribution income from 
investments is recognised on a proportional 
basis taking into account the interest rates 
applicable to the financial assets. 

n Revenue from the rendering of a service is 
recognised upon the delivery of the service to 
the customers.

n All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods 
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g. Grants

Grants are recognised at their fair value where there is 
a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received 
and all attached conditions will be complied with.
h. Committed funds

Where funds are raised or bequeathed for a specific 
project then those funds are held as a liability, once the 
conditions are satisfied these funds are treated as 
income.
i. Plant and Equipment.

Additions for plant and equipment are only recognised 
as an asset if the value of the asset acquired is greater 
than $5,000. All assets acquired below this value are 
expensed in the year that they are acquired. 
j. Comparative Figures

Where required by Accounting Standards comparative 
figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in 
presentation for the current financial year.
NOTE 2.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, 
ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the financial statements requires 
management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the 
financial statements. Management continually 
evaluates its judgements and estimates in relation to 
assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and 
expenses. Management bases its judgements, 
estimates and assumptions on historical experience and 
on other various factors, including expectations of 
future events, which management believes to be 
reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting 
accounting judgements and estimates will seldom equal 
the related actual results. The judgements, estimates 
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities (refer to the respective notes) within the 
next financial year are discussed below.
Long service leave provision

As discussed in note 1, the liability for long service 
leave is recognised and measured at the present value 
of the estimated future cash flows to be made in 
respect of all employees at the reporting date. In 
determining the present value of the liability, estimates 
of attrition rates and pay increases through promotion 
and inflation have been taken into account.
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 2015   2014  

     $   $  

    NOTE 3: INCOME RECEIVED IN ADVANCE 
   Tournaments and events 
 

27,381 24,644 
Unexpended grant - Australian Sports Commission 

 
215,000 173,500 

    242,381 198,144 

 

 
 

 2015   2014  

     $   $  

    NOTE 4: CASH FLOW INFORMATION 
   

    a. reconciliation of cash flows from surplus 
   Surplus / (deficit) Attributable to Members 
 

3,602 3,716 

    Non-cash items 
   Depreciation 
 

- - 

    Changes in Assets and Liabilities 
   (Increase)/decrease Accounts receivable 
 

(14,559) 84,056 

(Increase)/decrease Prepayments 
 

14,021 (13,573) 

Increase/(decrease) Accounts payable 
 

43,650 (9,950) 

Increase/(decrease) Other payables 
 

(12,589) (26,588) 

Increase/(decrease) Income in advance 
 

44,237 (156,848) 

Increase/(decrease) Provision for employee entitlements 
 

(4,479) 10,656 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities   73,883 (108,531) 

    b. reconciliation of cash 
   Cash and cash equivalents   642,488 568,605 

  
642,488 568,605 

Less bank overdraft   - - 

Total Cash    642,488 568,605 

    NOTE 5: KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 
   

    The aggregate compensation made to key management personnel is set out below: 

    Aggregate compensation   269,949 206,669 

    There were no directors fees paid during 2015 (2014 - $nil). 
 

   NOTE 6: AUDITORS REMUNERATION 
   

    Audit services 
 

5,250 5,250 

Other services   - - 

    5,250 5,250 

    NOTE 7: ACCUMULATED SURPLUS 
   

    Opening balance 1 January 
 

289,358 285,642 

Plus surplus for the year  
 

3,602 3,716 

Closing Balance 31 December   292,960 289,358 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

In the directors' opinion:

n the attached financial statements and notes thereto comply with the Corporations Act 2001, the Australian 
Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements, the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other 
mandatory professional reporting requirements; 

n the attached financial statements and notes thereto give a true and fair view of the company's financial position 
as at 31 December 2015 and of its performance for the financial year ended on that date; and

n there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become 
due and payable.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors made pursuant to section 295(5)(a) of the Corporations Act 2001. 

On behalf of the directors

Vice Chairman

Chief Executive Officer

Dated this 8th day of April 2016.

NOTE 8: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There are no known contingent liabilities as at 31 
December 2015 (31 December 2014 – $nil).

NOTE 9:  COMMITMENTS

There are no material commitments as at 31 December 
2015 (31 December 2014 – $nil).

NOTE 10:  RELATED PARTIES

Transactions with Related Parties

The company's constitution requires each year that one 
director is appointed by AMF and one director is 
appointed by independent Bowling Centre Proprietors. 
During the year the company entered into numerous 
transactions with AMF and independent Bowling 
Centre Proprietors as part of the ordinary course of its 
business. 

Transactions with parties related to the company are 
made on commercial terms and are performed on an 
arm's length basis. There are no material related party 
balances at 31 December 2015 (31 December 2014 – 
$nil).

NOTE 11:  MEMBERS' GUARANTEE

The company is limited by guarantee.  Each National 
Voting Delegate undertakes to contribute to the 
company's property, if the company is wound up while 

the person is a National Voting Delegate or within one 
year after the person ceases to be a National Voting 
Delegate, for payment of the company's debts and 
liabilities contracted before the person ceases to be a 
National Voting Delegate and of the costs, charges and 
expenses of winding up and for adjustment of the 
rights of the contributors amongst themselves, such 
amount as may be required not exceeding $10.00.

NOTE 12:  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS TO 
 REPORTING DATE
There are no known subsequent events as at reporting 
date that has significantly affected, or may significantly 
affect the company's operations, the results of those 
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ALBION QLD 4010
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2015 HALL OF FAME INDUCTEEINDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF TENPIN BOWLING AUSTRALIA LTD

The Financial Report and Directors' Responsibility

The financial report comprises the statement of comprehensive income, statement of financial position, statement of 
changes in equity, statement of cash flows, accompanying notes to the financial statements, and directors' declaration 
for Tenpin Bowling Australia Limited (the company) for the year ended 31 December 2015. The directors of the 
company are responsible for the preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with 
the Corporations Act 2001.  This includes responsibility for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and 
internal controls that are designed to prevent and detect fraud and error, and for the accounting policies and 
accounting estimates inherent in the financial report.

Audit Approach

We conducted an independent audit in order to express an opinion to the members of the company.  Our audit was 
conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, in order to provide reasonable assurance as to whether 
the financial report is free of material misstatement.  The nature of an audit is influenced by factors such as the use of 
professional judgment, selective testing, the inherent limitations of internal control, and the availability of persuasive 
rather than conclusive evidence.  Therefore, an audit cannot guarantee that all material misstatements have been 
detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents fairly, in accordance 
with the Corporations Act 2001, including compliance with Accounting Standards and other mandatory financial 
reporting requirements in Australia, a view which is consistent with our understanding of the company's financial 
position, and of their performance as represented by the results of their operations and cash flows. We formed our 
audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which included: examining, on a test basis, information to provide 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial report, and assessing the appropriateness of the 
accounting policies and disclosures used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the 
directors. While we considered the effectiveness of management's internal controls over financial reporting when 
determining the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed to provide assurance on internal 
controls.

Independence

In conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian professional ethical 
pronouncements and the Corporations Act 2001. In accordance with ASIC Class Order 05/83, we declare to the best of 
our knowledge and belief that the auditor's independence declaration set out on page six of the financial report has 
not changed as at the date of providing our audit opinion.

Auditor's Opinion

In our opinion the financial report of Tenpin Bowling Australia Limited is in accordance with:

a. the Corporations Act 2001, including:

 I. giving a true and fair view of the company's financial position as at 31 December 2015 and of their 
  performance for the year ended on that date; and 

 ii. complying with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and the Corporations 
  Regulations 2001; and

b. other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia.

Jason O'Connor B Com CPA

Registered Company Auditor (No. 353931)

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional 
Standards Legislation

Dated this 19th day of April 2016.

Jason O'Connor B.Com CPA
P.O. Box 5480

BRENDALE DC QLD 4500
Mobile: 
Office: 

Email: auditor@joconnorptyltd.com.au
Web: www.joconnorptyltd.com.au

Del Da-Rae
Trish Datson

Doreen Dockery
Ron Powell

Ken Sheehan
Jean Soderland
Ruth Guerster
Percy Talbot

Eric Thompson
Jeanette Baker
Graham Smith
Steve Mackie
Vic Bubniw

John Sullivan
Jack Walton

Walter De Veer
Chris Batson

Cheryl Munson
Ed Kee

Nell Weir
Ian Bradford

Bob Cook
June Voukolos

Joe Velo
John Coxon
Sue Cassell

Eric Jang
Barb Richmond

Steve Lovell
Terry Wenban

HALL OF 
FAME MEMBERS

BRIAN BRIDGES
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I am pleased to present this annual report on behalf of the Board and staff of 
Tenpin Bowling Australia (TBA).  2016 was a highly successful year for TBA where 
many initiatives that commenced in earlier years began to come to fruition - 
namely the sports registration process, the development of our new Junior 
Participation Program - Bowl Patrol and the Sporting Schools Program (SSP).  

After the challenges of implementing the new membership model in 2015, 2016 
was a year of consolidation as both the industry and league bowlers had a clearer 
understanding of the changes and became more accepting of the fact that those 
that play the sport have an obligation to contribute financially.  

Following a 34% growth in members in 2015, it was a significant achievement to 
finish 2016 with 30,407 members a further 15% increase and finally breaking the 
30,000 members barrier.  In just 6 years our membership has doubled enabling a 
significant shift in the operations of our organisation from one largely in survival 
mode to now strongly focused on growing the sport; particularly junior 
participation which is critical for the longevity of the sport.    

In mid-2015, TBA developed its new 3 year strategic plan with input from all key 
stakeholders – the Australian Sports Commission (ASC), State & Territory 
Associations and the Industry.  This resulted in not only a new shared vision but a 
collective understanding and approach of the opportunities and challenges that 
faced us over the coming 3 years.   The key strategic priorities were identified as 
follows: 

In 2016, the focus was heavily geared towards the first three strategic priorities – 
membership engagement, working with industry and increasing participation in 
targeted groups.  

TBA worked closely with industry not only on sports registration, but particularly in 
the development of Bowl Patrol.  For any program to be successfully implemented, 
strong collaboration between the industry and TBA is critical.  TBA consulted heavily 
with the industry at regular intervals throughout the development of Bowl Patrol to 
validate that our plans and objectives for the program were achievable and aligned 
with those of the industry.    After two years of development, TBA delivered 11 
highly successful pilots across the country in the latter stages of the year and we 
are on track to launch the program nationally in over 30 centres in 2017.     

2016 was also the first full year of the SSP - Australia's largest school-based sports 
participation program.  SSP provides primary school children with access to over 30 
sports – one of which is tenpin bowling – at no cost.  Sporting Schools is the first 
step in the participation pathway and a conduit into Bowl Patrol.   

TBA continued its commitment to improving corporate governance through a 
rigorous review and implementation of all relevant ASC Mandatory Governance 
Principles.  This included the Board undergoing a Performance Review facilitated by 
the ASC in late 2016 with a list of priorities and the development of an action plan 
being a key priority for TBA in 2017.  

Our 3 Board Committees (a) Finance, Risk and Audit, b) Governance and 
Remuneration and c) Grants were extremely active in 2016 with external members 
appointed to the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee as well as the Governance and 
Remuneration Committee.  These Committees have been highly effective in 
allowing the Board to remain strategic in focus.   

1. Membership Engagement for Future Growth 

2. Working with Industry

3. Increase Participation in targeted groups

4. Volunteer and Coaching Development

2016-2018 STRATEGIC PRIORITIES
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Associations and the Industry.  This resulted in not only a new shared vision but a 
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follows: 
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validate that our plans and objectives for the program were achievable and aligned 
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are on track to launch the program nationally in over 30 centres in 2017.     

2016 was also the first full year of the SSP - Australia's largest school-based sports 
participation program.  SSP provides primary school children with access to over 30 
sports – one of which is tenpin bowling – at no cost.  Sporting Schools is the first 
step in the participation pathway and a conduit into Bowl Patrol.   

TBA continued its commitment to improving corporate governance through a 
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Principles.  This included the Board undergoing a Performance Review facilitated by 
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Operational Results 

TBA posted a small surplus for the year of $8,720.  Given the 
significant investment by TBA relating to the start-up costs 
associated with Bowl Patrol coupled with minimal growth in 
sports registration income this was an outstanding result.   
Our strong cash reserves and absence of debt ensures that 
we have sufficient working capital to operate efficiently.  

We continue to strive hard to expand our membership 
benefits to ensure they are relevant, useful and valued.  In 
partnership with Simpler Technology we more than doubled 
the number of centres in 2016 using the League Data 
Extractor (LDE) taking the total to 40.  This technology 
creates an online member portal providing detailed personal 
statistics and also allows members to edit their contact 
details.    

Importantly the LDE allows our members to receive 
automatic notifications via email when they earn a TBA 
award and the ability to order the award online with the 
touch of a button.  Even for our members who may not want 
an award, this presents an opportunity for TBA to recognise 
and congratulate our members achievements.  In 2017 we 
are excited to introduce this technology to AMF venues and 
we expect 70% of all registered bowling centres to have the 
LDE by mid-2017.   

Our other membership benefit that continues to get better 
each year is the SportsPass program which provides access 
to hundreds of discounts, 2 for 1 offers and the ability to 
earn cash back by shopping online at over 1,000 national 
partners.   Members can easily recoup their membership 
fees by making just a few purchases online for brands they 
already use daily.   

During the year we surveyed our members to gather their 
feedback on what benefits are important to them.   Once 
again the most valued membership benefit was the ability to 
access discounted practice rates at all registered centres.  
However there is strong interest in the awards program with 
over 60% interested in claiming an award if it were 
automated and 44% keen to understand more about the 
SportsPass cash back offers.   Relative to other sports our 
registration fee of $33 for adults and $22 for juniors is one of 
the lowest in the market particularly when considering the 
additional benefits provided.  

Sport Participation & Inclusion

With 50% of our members over 50 and with less than 3,000 
junior members, TBA's number one priority in 2016 was 
setting the foundations to grow junior participation.  In an 
operational sense, this meant the completion and pilot of 
Bowl Patrol and the consolidation of the Sporting Schools 
Program.   

Over a two year period TBA partnered with a sport specialist 
consulting firm, The Kinetica Group, to develop Bowl Patrol, 
a multi week junior participation program to teach kids the 
basic fundamentals of the sport before taking the next step 
into more structured pathways.  Bowl Patrol is an Australian 
program developed by TBA based on the needs and wants of 
Australian children and parents.  

Extensive research into other junior sports program in the 
market was undertaken to understand the essential 
ingredients to a successful program.  Bowl Patrol is a highly 
unique program that challenges many of the traditional 
elements of the sport.  The lane is shortened by overlaying 
carpet to bring children closer to the pins, there are no 
bumpers and the program has a shortened 5 frame game 
with a simplified scoring system to make it easier for children 
to understand.  

TBA conducted 11 pilots in 2016 across 4 States to assess if 
the program hit the mark with the preliminary research 
showing some incredibly positive results.  Parents and 
children registered a 95% satisfaction level with the program 
with over 75% of participants either re-enrolling in Bowl 
Patrol or joining a junior league.

Whilst the research and design phase of Bowl Patrol has 
been lengthy, there is only one opportunity to successfully 
launch a junior program in this highly competitive market.  It 
is critical that our product can stand alongside the more 
mainstream and established programs such as Auskick, 
Aussie Hoops and NetSetGo to name just a few.  We've 
invested heavily in the development phase to ensure that 
this program is professional with a dedicated Bowl Patrol 
website. Our coaches called 'lane rangers' are well trained 
and have access to detailed lesson plans and instructional 
videos and our centres are well versed in playing their part 
to ensure children and their parents have a great experience.  
TBA has an ambitious goal to put 10,000 children through 
Bowl Patrol over the next 3 years.  This will undoubtedly be a 
challenging goal to achieve and will require some creative 
marketing to get our message out to the general community.    

But equally important is the government initiative Sporting 
Schools which provides children across Australia the 
opportunity to partake in a 4 week tenpin bowling program 
at no cost.  In 2016, over 7,000 primary school children 
across all States and Territories participated in tenpin 
bowling with almost all children attending at least one of 
their 4 sessions in a bowling centre.  This generated over 
$50,000 in revenue to the bowling industry.  TBA is acutely 
aware of the opportunity and its responsibility to help attract 
new participants to the sport to help develop a thriving 
industry.  Our sport cannot grow without a healthy and 
prosperous industry and Bowl Patrol and Sporting Schools 
are just two examples of TBA's contribution to increasing 
participation.

2016 30,407 15%

2015 26,250 34%

2014 19,531 -14%

2013 22,797 -6%

2012 24,257 -1%

2011 24,458 60%

2010 15,265 N/A

YEAR NUMBER OF MEMBERS GROWTH 

4 5

On the lanes, Australia won 5 medals at International 
Championship events in 2016.  Our men won Bronze in the 
team event at the Asian Championships in Hong Kong.  At 
the Commonwealth Tenpin Bowling Championship in South 
Africa it was the women that performed strongly in 
particular Bec Whiting who claimed Silver in two individual 
events – Women's Singles and Masters.  Whiting also 
combined successfully with Dena Buxton to win Bronze in 
Women's Doubles.  Our Senior athletes won Bronze in the 
Women's Grand Senior Doubles at the Asian Senior 
Championship in Korea. 

Jason Belmonte had a quiet year by his lofty standards and 
did not add any PBA titles to his resume but nonetheless 
picked up his second consecutive ESPY (Excellence in Sports 
Performance Yearly Award) and made a number of PBA 
telecasts.  But Belmonte has certainly made up for it in the 
early part of 2017, winning a record 4th USBC Masters and 
PBA Players Championship in February putting him in an 
excellent position to win a 4th PBA Player of the Year award.  

Sam Cooley had a successful start to his first full year on the 
PBA tour making matchplay in 7 PBA events in 2016 with an 
impressive 3rd place in the PBA Player's Championship.  

An emerging pathway for our elite youth bowlers is the 
opportunity for select athletes to join the NCAA US College 
program.  In 2016, Katey Furze and Emily Rigney commenced 
their NCAA careers at University of Central Missouri and 
Vanderbilt respectively.  Rigney just recently was an integral 
part of the 'Dores team that finished 3rd in the NCAA 
National Championship.   

Whilst our focus on growing participation has largely centred 
on primary school children, we are delighted to report that 
both Sporting Schools and Bowl Patrol has had a high 
participation rate amongst children with a disability.  
Approximately 25% of children participating in both 
programs have a disability and we remain committed to 
ensuring that all of our programs are inclusive and that we 
actively promote participation opportunities to people with 
a disability in our community.        

High Performance

As tenpin bowling is not an Olympic or Commonwealth 
Games sport, TBA receives no dedicated High Performance 
funding from the ASC under its Winning Edge program.  The 
lack of funding coupled with other competing priorities 
particularly with regard to participation programs has meant 
we were unable to retain our National Coach, Andrew 
Frawley on a full time basis.  However Andrew continues to 
work on a consultancy capacity for TBA and attends several 
key championships in his capacity as National Coach where 
possible.  

As many of our neighbours in the Asian Zone continue to 
invest heavily in their High Performance program, it is 
undoubtedly more challenging for Australia to be 
competitive on the world stage.  One of the greatest 
obstacles for TBA to overcome is how to provide more 
support to our High Performance athletes both current and 
emerging with such limited financial resources.  However an 
exciting initiative on the horizon in 2017 is a National Junior 
Development camp for our elite and promising juniors.       

Sam Cooley

CHAIRMAN & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT
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participation.

2016 30,407 15%

2015 26,250 34%

2014 19,531 -14%

2013 22,797 -6%

2012 24,257 -1%

2011 24,458 60%

2010 15,265 N/A

YEAR NUMBER OF MEMBERS GROWTH 
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On the lanes, Australia won 5 medals at International 
Championship events in 2016.  Our men won Bronze in the 
team event at the Asian Championships in Hong Kong.  At 
the Commonwealth Tenpin Bowling Championship in South 
Africa it was the women that performed strongly in 
particular Bec Whiting who claimed Silver in two individual 
events – Women's Singles and Masters.  Whiting also 
combined successfully with Dena Buxton to win Bronze in 
Women's Doubles.  Our Senior athletes won Bronze in the 
Women's Grand Senior Doubles at the Asian Senior 
Championship in Korea. 

Jason Belmonte had a quiet year by his lofty standards and 
did not add any PBA titles to his resume but nonetheless 
picked up his second consecutive ESPY (Excellence in Sports 
Performance Yearly Award) and made a number of PBA 
telecasts.  But Belmonte has certainly made up for it in the 
early part of 2017, winning a record 4th USBC Masters and 
PBA Players Championship in February putting him in an 
excellent position to win a 4th PBA Player of the Year award.  

Sam Cooley had a successful start to his first full year on the 
PBA tour making matchplay in 7 PBA events in 2016 with an 
impressive 3rd place in the PBA Player's Championship.  

An emerging pathway for our elite youth bowlers is the 
opportunity for select athletes to join the NCAA US College 
program.  In 2016, Katey Furze and Emily Rigney commenced 
their NCAA careers at University of Central Missouri and 
Vanderbilt respectively.  Rigney just recently was an integral 
part of the 'Dores team that finished 3rd in the NCAA 
National Championship.   

Whilst our focus on growing participation has largely centred 
on primary school children, we are delighted to report that 
both Sporting Schools and Bowl Patrol has had a high 
participation rate amongst children with a disability.  
Approximately 25% of children participating in both 
programs have a disability and we remain committed to 
ensuring that all of our programs are inclusive and that we 
actively promote participation opportunities to people with 
a disability in our community.        

High Performance

As tenpin bowling is not an Olympic or Commonwealth 
Games sport, TBA receives no dedicated High Performance 
funding from the ASC under its Winning Edge program.  The 
lack of funding coupled with other competing priorities 
particularly with regard to participation programs has meant 
we were unable to retain our National Coach, Andrew 
Frawley on a full time basis.  However Andrew continues to 
work on a consultancy capacity for TBA and attends several 
key championships in his capacity as National Coach where 
possible.  

As many of our neighbours in the Asian Zone continue to 
invest heavily in their High Performance program, it is 
undoubtedly more challenging for Australia to be 
competitive on the world stage.  One of the greatest 
obstacles for TBA to overcome is how to provide more 
support to our High Performance athletes both current and 
emerging with such limited financial resources.  However an 
exciting initiative on the horizon in 2017 is a National Junior 
Development camp for our elite and promising juniors.       

Sam Cooley
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Innovations by the ASC this year included the release of 
our Integrity Guidelines for Directors and Leaders of 
Sporting Organisations, which provides directors with 
comprehensive and practical guidance for the first time 
on anti-doping, sport science and medicine, illicit 
drugs, match-fixing, child protection and member 
protection – vital issues for maintaining trust and 
respect in the sporting sector. 

We also staged our inaugural Athlete and Coaches 
Forum, giving Australia's elite athletes and coaches the 
opportunity to share their experiences and enhance 
their leadership capabilities.

And we were delighted to see fruits of our efforts to 
improve female opportunity in sports, with improved 
elite and participation opportunities in women's sport, 
better media exposure, some outstanding new 
commercial deals, and an increase in female 
representation at NSO board level from 27 per cent to 
a 39 per cent across the top 23 NSOs.

Looking ahead, ASC priorities include: 
n further institutional and governance reform in 

sport, with an emphasis on increased national 
integration and alignment 

n increased funding for sport, including new non-
government sources of funding

n further embedding sport in schools' educational 
programs 

n improved national coordination of sports 
infrastructure spending, and 

n Improved use of data and technology in sports. 

Reforms like this are often hard to achieve but have 
profound long term benefits. The evermore 
competitive environment in world sport on display in 
Rio highlights the critical importance of further reform 
if Australia is to maintain its proud reputation and 
traditions as a sporting nation.

It is appropriate to use this opportunity to recognise 
and thank the efforts of the ASC's outgoing CEO Simon 
Hollingsworth, who has led the Commission very 
capably and with considerable effect for the past five 
years. 

The ASC thanks all of our sector partners for your effort 
and contribution to Australian sport. We look forward 
to continued success and progress together.

John Wylie AM
Chair
Australian Sports Commission

The Australian Sports Commission (ASC) congratulates 
our National Sporting Organisations (NSOs) on their 
achievements this year. In particular, we congratulate 
all of our athletes who represented Australia in the Rio 
Olympic and Paralympic Games. You did so with great 
distinction. The country is proud of your commitment 
and dedication, and the manner in which you 
conducted yourself throughout the campaigns.  

In the aftermath of the Games, the Board of the ASC 
has re-committed to the core principles of Australia's 
Winning Edge, the ASC's ten year plan for high 
performance sport introduced in 2012. The four key 
principles are: high aspirations for achievement; 
evidence-based funding decisions; sports owning their 
own high performance programs; and a strong 
emphasis on improved leadership and governance. 

We are confident these principles serve the long term 
interests of sporting sector.  

We will also use the experience of the last four years to 
seek to improve implementation of Winning Edge in 
ways that will benefit the sector. 

The ASC is equally committed to increasing community 
participation in sport, particularly amongst our children 
and youth. We have been pleased this year to see our 
flagship participation program Sporting Schools reach 
over 4,300 schools in partnership with NSOs. 

AUSTRALIAN SPORTS COMMISSION 
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NATIONAL CHAMPIONSHIP HISTORY

TBA DISABILITIES CHAMPIONSHIP HISTORY
Teams Doubles Singles Total

2008 73 147 189 90 865 165 2,592

2009 70 140 166 71 797 157 2,439

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2007 58 124 159 81 720 166 2,130

2006 48 98 111 62 561 139 1,734

Year Mixed

73

63

88

334

398

425

397

148

127

180

505

518

616

575

185

149

221

417

499

694

595

88

63

128

268

242

378

369

861

718

1,061

2,697

2,971

3,579

3,305

170

133

199

370

390

460

386

2,580

2,154

3,183

8,091

8,913

11,427

10,668

Mixed Male Female Entries Bowlers Games

AUSTRALIAN NATIONAL CHAMPIONSHIP RECORD OF ENTRIES

 Singles Total

Year

2008

2009

2010

2007

2006

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

Teams

Male Female Mixed

44

46

71

25

36

36

34

30 43

38 27 32

57 48 43

67

66

23

40

49

33

30

37

23

31

45

45

27

39

49

Doubles

Male Female Mixed

158

290

101

128

66

93

170 98 75

151 81 58

202 139 69

290

326

154

204

169

116

132

101

96

109

121

120

63

87

104

Male Female Entries

397

751

261

342

1,843

2,822

428 212 1,911

337 203 1,605

445 306 2,311

906

1034

448

572

482

376

371

292

293

267

3,061

3,263

1,811

2,149

2029

Bowlers Games

452

624

11,868

15,323

497 12,088

460 9,502

517 12,385

646

629

358

432

424

16,001

16,622

11,659

12,844

12,406

47

40

32

28

53

60

188

191

121

132

122

131

672

548

390

380

2,595

2,476

376

346

11,548

11,396

JUNIOR NATIONAL CHAMPIONSHIP RECORD OF ENTRIES

 Teams Doubles Singles Total

Entries Bowlers Games

2008

2009

2010

68 39 56 253 140 130 722 439 3,022 467 12,629

2007 58 32 37 225 115 80 600 360 2,435 396 11,256

2006 54 36 46 183 127 123 603 436 2,585 432 12,615

Year Male Male MaleFemale Female FemaleMixed Mixed

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2016

33

30

26

17

17

25

17

18

14

11

44

62

45

35

26

23

50

13

33

28

45

176

181

182

122

100

111

112

100

84

63

105

116

86

69

56

116

184

69

106

52

104

503

583

615

451

371

364

382

368

327

264

2,161

2,328

2,167

1,341

1,343

397

579

254

283

1,445

2162

300

345

310

233

210

10,146

10,659

10,122

8,398

7,557

202

440

7,561

12,938

MEN’S WINNING TEAMS WOMEN’S WINNING TEAMS

1963 NA
1964 NA
1965 New South Wales
1966 Queensland 
1967 Victoria 
1968 New South Wales
1969 New South Wales 
1970 New South Wales 
1971 New South Wales
1972 New South Wales 
1973 Victoria 
1974 South Australia
1975 South Australia 
1976 Victoria 
1977 Victoria
1978 Victoria 
1979 New South Wales 
1980 Victoria
1981 Queensland 
1982 South Australia 
1983 New South Wales
1984 New South Wales 
1985 New South Wales 
1986 New South Wales
1987 Queensland 
1988 South Australia 
1989 Queensland
1990 Queensland 
1991 New South Wales 
1992 New South Wales
1993 New South Wales 
1994 New South Wales 
1995 Victoria
1996 New South Wales 
1997 New South Wales 
1998 New South Wales
1999 New South Wales 
2000 New South Wales 
2001 New South Wales
2002 Queensland 
2003 New South Wales 
2004 New South Wales
2005 New South Wales 
2006 New South Wales 
2007 New South Wales
2008 Northern Territory 
2009 New South Wales 
2010 Queensland
2011 New South Wales 
2012 Queensland 
2013 Queensland
2014 Victoria
2015 Victoria
2016 Northern Territory

1963 South Australia 
1964 New South Wales 
1965 New South Wales
1966 New South Wales 
1967 Victoria 
1968 New South Wales
1969 Victoria 
1970 South Australia 
1971 New South Wales
1972 New South Wales 
1973 New South Wales 
1974 Victoria
1975 Victoria 
1976 New South Wales 
1977 New South Wales
1978 Victoria 
1979 Victoria 
1980 Victoria
1981 Victoria 
1982 Victoria 
1983 Victoria
1984 Victoria 
1985 Tasmania 
1986 New South Wales
1987 South Australia 
1988 South Australia 
1989 Victoria
1990 New South Wales 
1991 Victoria 
1992 New South Wales
1993 New South Wales 
1994 Victoria 
1995 Victoria
1996 Victoria 
1997 Victoria 
1998 New South Wales
1999 New South Wales 
2000 Victoria 
2001 Northern Territory
2002 New South Wales 
2003 New South Wales 
2004 Victoria
2005 New South Wales 
2006 Victoria 
2007 New South Wales
2008 New South Wales 
2009 Tasmania 
2010 New Zealand
2011 New Zealand 
2012 Western Australia
2013 Queensland
2014 Northern Territory
2015 Queensland
2016 ACT

WALTER RACHUIG WINNING TEAMS
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17

18

14

11

44

62

45

35

26

23

50

13

33

28
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182
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100

111

112
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69

56
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MEN’S WINNING TEAMS WOMEN’S WINNING TEAMS

1963 NA
1964 NA
1965 New South Wales
1966 Queensland 
1967 Victoria 
1968 New South Wales
1969 New South Wales 
1970 New South Wales 
1971 New South Wales
1972 New South Wales 
1973 Victoria 
1974 South Australia
1975 South Australia 
1976 Victoria 
1977 Victoria
1978 Victoria 
1979 New South Wales 
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1981 Queensland 
1982 South Australia 
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1984 New South Wales 
1985 New South Wales 
1986 New South Wales
1987 Queensland 
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1963 South Australia 
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1966 New South Wales 
1967 Victoria 
1968 New South Wales
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1970 South Australia 
1971 New South Wales
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1974 Victoria
1975 Victoria 
1976 New South Wales 
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1980 Victoria
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1991 Victoria 
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WALTER RACHUIG WINNING TEAMS
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Title: Non-Executive Director
Qualifications: Qualified Electrician
Experience and expertise: John has over 30 years' experience in leadership roles on various 

committees within Tenpin Bowling at local, state and national level. 
John joined the Board of TBA in 1998 and was Chairman from June 2007 
to May 2009.

Special responsibilities: Bowlers representative 
  Rules and Ethics Committee Convener
  National Ranking System Administrator 
  National Tournament Director
  Member High Performance Committee

Title: Non-Executive Director (Appointed 21st May 2016)
Experience and expertise: Michael has experience as a Business Analyst for the Department of 

Immigration and Border Protection (DIBP). Michael is a former member 
of the ACTTBA Board and has over 15 years' experience in the Tenpin 
Bowling industry as a player, coach and administrator.

Special responsibilities: Bowlers representative
Member of High Performance Committee (Chair)

Qualifications & Experience Qualifications & Experience

Title: Non-Executive Director – Vice Chairman
Qualifications: Bachelor of Psychology and Management/Marketing
Experience and expertise: Jessica has experience as a Service Delivery Manager with exposure to 

various sectors in the IT industry including mining, telecommunications 
and energy focusing on continual service improvement and cost 
reduction.   Jessica is a former member of the NSWTBA Board. 

Special responsibilities: Bowlers representative
  Member of Grants Committee (Chair)
  Member High Performance Committee 

Qualifications & Experience

Title: Non-Executive Director
Qualifications: Diploma of Business specialising in Accounting: CPA
Experience and expertise: James has over 30 years' experience as a Financial Controller and is 

currently employed as the CAO for Wesley College Melbourne. James is 
currently a director of VicTenpins and State Team Manager and has 
previously been President and Treasurer. James joined the Board of TBA 
in September 2008 and was elected Chairman in May 2010 until May 
2015.

Special responsibilities: Bowlers representative 
  Member of Finance, Risk and Audit Committee (Chair)
  Member of Governance and Remuneration Committee
   Member of Grants Committee
   Member of High Performance Committee

Title: Non-Executive Director (Appointed 7th February 2017)
Qualifications: Bachelor of Economics, CPA
Experience and expertise: Richard is a retired CPA with a degree in economics from Adelaide 

University.  Richard has many years' experience in both national and 
multinational corporations in business management having held senior 
roles in diverse industries.  These include CFO of a listed agribusiness 
and CEO and Director of a number of business subsidiaries.  Most 
recently he consulted to a small group of agribusiness clients and prior 
to that spent 17 years with Elders Ltd in a wide variety of positions. 
Since retiring Richard has given his time to a number of not for profit 
organisations.

Special responsibilities: Board appointed director
Member of Finance, Risk and Audit Committee 

Qualifications & Experience Qualifications & Experience

John Coxon Michael Craig

James Taafe Richard Skinner

Jessica Ryan

Title: Non-Executive Director - Chairman
Qualifications: BA (Accounting), ACA
Experience and expertise: Trevor has over 30 years' experience in senior finance and 

administration roles in medium and large ASX listed companies, 
including positions as Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary. He 
also has commercial, financial and treasury roles with both listed and 
private companies within various industries. Trevor is a member of 
other Boards including Port Adelaide Football Club, YMCA (SA) and a 
former member of Tenpin SA.

Special responsibilities: Member of Finance, Risk and Audit Committee 
   Member of Governance and Remuneration Committee 
  Member of Grants Committee
  Board appointed director

Qualifications & Experience

Title:  Non-Executive Director  
Experience and expertise: Bruce has over 30 years' experience in the Tenpin Bowling industry and 

is currently the proprietor of Logan City Tenpin in Brisbane.  Bruce has 
over 20 years' management experience across a range of businesses. 
Bruce joined the Board of TBA in August 2015 and was previously a 
Director of TBA from May 2008 to April 2014. 

Special responsibilities: IBCA nominee on the TBA Board

Qualifications & Experience

Bruce Morris

Title:  Non-Executive Director
Qualifications:  Associate Diploma Business (Accounting)
Experience and expertise: Matthew is a former member of NSWTBA Board and a former member 

of the Greater Sydney Tenpin Bowing Association Board thus having had 
involvement at the local, state and national board level.

Special responsibilities:  National League Manager, AMF
AMF nominee on the TBA Board
Member of Governance and Remuneration Committee (Chair)

Qualifications & Experience

Matthew Whitten

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless otherwise stated.
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Principal activities
The principal activities of the company during the course of 
the year were to manage the sport of Tenpin Bowling in 
Australia.  This includes:
1. Maintain and enforce the rules of the sport as governed 

by World Bowling
2. Develop and administer coaching programs
3. Develop programs and work collaboratively with industry 

to grow grass roots participation
4. Ensure bowling centres conform with the technical 

requirements of the sport as governed by World Bowling
5. Conduct National Championships that cater for bowlers 

of all abilities for juniors, youth, adult, senior and bowlers 
with a disability

6. Select national teams to represent Australia at both 
World Championship and other international events

7. Promote the sport through partnerships with proprietors, 
sponsors and the media 

Objectives
The objectives of the company and areas of strategic priority 
are:
1. Member engagement for future growth
2. Working with Industry
3. Increase participation in targeted groups
4. Volunteer and coaching development

Strategy for achieving the objectives
Objective 1: Member engagement for future growth

n Streamline and enhance membership processes to 
achieve full membership

n Develop and implement a communication plan to 
support engagement and recognition

n Develop and implement a plan to grow and develop 
capabilities of Local Associations

Objective 2: Working with Industry
n Align strategic objectives and agree on common 

outcomes with key industry organisations
n Ensure seamless integration of membership data with 

industry

Objective 3: Increase participation in targeted groups
n Develop and implement Junior Participation Program 

(Bowl Patrol) 
n Develop and implement Sporting Schools Program
n Grow Disability Participation Program
n Deliver clear, defined and documented high 

performance pathways

Objective 4: Volunteer and coaching development 
n Increase coaching workforce
n Create a volunteer development and recognition 

program

General Information  

2016 was a highly productive and successful year for TBA.  A 
small surplus of $8K was recorded for 2016. This is the sixth 
consecutive year of profitability for the organisation during a 
period of consolidation and substantial investment in our 
junior development programs.  After introducing a new more 

TBA continued its strong focus and commitment to improving corporate governance through a rigorous review and 
implementation of all relevant Australian Sports Commission (ASC) Mandatory Governance Principles.  This included the 
organisation undergoing a Board Performance Review facilitated by the Australian Sports Commission in late 2016.  
Determining the list of priorities for the organisation and developing an action plan is a key priority for TBA and the 
Governance and Remuneration Committee in 2017.  Our 3 Board committees – Finance, Risk and Audit (FRAC); Governance 
and Remuneration, and Grants have been active with external members on both the FRAC and Governance and 
Remuneration Committees. 

Members' guarantee  

Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd. is a company limited by guarantee. In the event of, and for the purpose of winding up of the 
Company, the amount capable of being called up from each National Voting Delegate and any person or association who 
ceased to be a National Voting Delegate in the year prior to the winding up, is limited to $ 10, subject to the provisions of the 
Company's constitution.

At 31 December 2016 the collective liability of National Voting Delegates was $ 100 (2015: $ 100).

Meetings of directors  

During the financial year, 5 meetings of directors (including committees of directors) were held. Attendances by each director 
during the year were as follows:

flexible membership model in 2015 together with a 3 year 
agreement with industry, TBA reported a 15% growth in 
members in 2016 from 26,250 to 30,407. Whilst generating 
only minimal growth in sports registration income, 2016 was 
strategically important for the future of the organisation 
through re-educating league bowlers that in order for a 
National Sporting Organisation to grow and provide sport 
services, they must contribute financially. 

However the most significant achievement in 2016 was the 
development and roll out of two exciting participation 
programs for children – namely Sporting Schools and Bowl 
Patrol.  Sporting Schools is Australia's largest school-based 
sports participation program to help children foster a lifelong 
interest in sport.  Supported by the Australian government 
through the Australian Sports Commission, Sporting Schools 
is a $160 million initiative providing primary school children 
with access to over 30 sports – one of which is tenpin 
bowling – at no cost. 

2016 was the first full year of the program with tenpin 
bowling delivered to over 7,000 children in a 4 week 
program with over $50,000 in revenue delivered to the 
bowling industry.  To add to this was the much anticipated 
completion and pilot of our new Junior Participation 
Program – Bowl Patrol.  TBA delivered 11 highly successful 
pilots across the country in the latter stages of 2016 and we 
are on track to launch the program nationally in over 30 
centres in 2017.  The foundations are laid for a highly 
exciting 2017!   

Recognising that a growth in participation also requires a 
significant number of coaches, 2016 was a successful year in 
growing the number of new coaches; particularly grass roots 
coaches with an additional 80 Level 1 and 35 Bronze coaches 
accredited in 2016.  A key measure of success was our ability 
to provide coaches to deliver Sporting Schools when and 
where a school requested Tenpin Bowling.  It was testament 
to the work we have done in growing our coach workforce 
that we were able to meet demand for more than 90% of 
program requests.  An adequate coaching workforce will be 
critical as we look to launch Bowl Patrol on a grander scale in 
2017 and beyond and the Sporting Schools program 
continues to grow.  

In the High Performance area, Australia won 5 medals at 
International Championship events in 2016. Our men won 
Bronze in the team event at the Asian Championships in 
Hong Kong.  At the Commonwealth Tenpin Bowling 
Championship in South Africa it was the women that 
performed strongly in particular Bec Whiting who claimed 
Silver in two individual events – Women's Singles and 
Masters.  Whiting also combined successfully with Dena 
Buxton to win Bronze in Women's Doubles.  Our Senior 
athletes won Bronze in Women's Grand Senior Doubles at 
the Asian Senior Championship in Korea. 

Two of our most promising Youth athletes, Emily Rigney and 
Katey Furze commenced their first year at NCAA colleges on 
sporting scholarships in the United States – a wonderful 
opportunity to further their sporting and educational 
endeavours.  Furthermore Jason Belmonte won his 3rd ESPY 
(Excellence in Sports Performance Yearly Award). 

Auditor's independence declaration  

The lead auditor's independence declaration in accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, for the year 
ended 31 December 2016 has been received and can be found on page 16 of the financial report.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors:

Director

Chief Executive Officer

Dated this 2nd day of May 2017.

Name of Director Number of  Number of    
  Meetings Held Meetings Attended

Trevor Thiele 5 5

Jessica Ryan 5 2

John Coxon 5 5

Matthew Whitten 5 5

James Taafe 5 4

Bruce Morris 5 2

Michael Craig 3 3

Richard Skinner - -

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Auditor's Independence Declaration under Section 307C 
of the Corporations Act 2001 to the Directors of Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd.

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016 

TO THE DIRECTORS OF TENPIN BOWLING AUSTRALIA LTD

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 31 December 2016 there have been:

i. n o contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in 
relation to the audit; and

ii. n o contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

Jason O'Connor B Com CPA

Registered Company Auditor (No. 353931)

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

Dated this Second day of May 2017.

Jason O'Connor B.Com CPA

PO Box 3361 Warner Qld 4500

Mobile: 

Office: 

Email: auditor@joconnorptyltd.com.au

Web: www.joconnorptyltd.com.au

 Note 
2016 2015 

$ $ 

Revenue 4   1,893,590    1,741,414  

Employee benefits expense     (635,322)    (616,199) 

Other expenses 5 (1,249,548) (1,121,613) 

Profit before income tax            8,720            3,602  

Income tax expense   -    -   

Total comprehensive income for the year            8,720            3,602  
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Statement of Financial Position
31 December 2016

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

 Note 
2016 2015 

$ $ 

ASSETS    

CURRENT ASSETS    

Cash and cash equivalents 6 638,815 642,488 

Trade and other receivables 7 45,847 35,629 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  684,662 678,117 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS  -  -  

TOTAL ASSETS  684,662 678,117 

LIABILITIES    

CURRENT LIABILITIES    

Trade and other payables 8 177,139 93,788 

Employee benefits 10 52,569 38,502 

Other financial liabilities 9 148,939 242,381 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  378,647 374,671 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES    

Employee benefits 10 4,335 10,486 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  4,335 10,486 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  382,982 385,157 

NET ASSETS  301,680 292,960 

    
EQUITY    

Retained earnings  301,680 292,960 

TOTAL EQUITY  301,680 292,960 

 

2016    

  
Retained 
Earnings 

Total 

$ $ 

Balance at 1 January 2016  292,960 292,960 

Profit for the year  8,720 8,720 

Balance at 31 December 2016  301,680 301,680 

    

    
2015    

  
Retained 
Earnings 

Total 

$ $ 

Balance at 1 January 2015  289,358 289,358 

Profit for the year  3,602 3,602 

Balance at 31 December 2015  292,960 292,960 
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NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES    

Employee benefits 10 4,335 10,486 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  4,335 10,486 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  382,982 385,157 

NET ASSETS  301,680 292,960 

    
EQUITY    

Retained earnings  301,680 292,960 

TOTAL EQUITY  301,680 292,960 

 

2016    

  
Retained 
Earnings 

Total 

$ $ 

Balance at 1 January 2016  292,960 292,960 

Profit for the year  8,720 8,720 

Balance at 31 December 2016  301,680 301,680 

    

    
2015    

  
Retained 
Earnings 

Total 

$ $ 

Balance at 1 January 2015  289,358 289,358 

Profit for the year  3,602 3,602 

Balance at 31 December 2015  292,960 292,960 
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

The financial report covers Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd. as an individual entity. Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd. is a 
not-for-profit Company limited by guarantee, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. 

The functional and presentation currency of Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd. is Australian dollars.

Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated.

1 Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with 
the Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements and the Corporations Act 2001.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Income Tax 

 The Company is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.

(b) Revenue and other income 

 Revenue is recognised when the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that 
economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company and specific criteria 
relating to the type of revenue as noted below, has been satisfied.

 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is presented 
net of returns, discounts and rebates.

 All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).

 

 Grant revenue  

 Grant revenue is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when 
the entity obtains control of the grant, it is probable that the economic benefits gained from the 
grant will flow to the entity and the amount of the grant can be measured reliably.

 When grant revenue is received whereby the entity incurs an obligation to deliver economic value 
directly back to the contributor, this is considered a reciprocal transaction and the grant revenue is 
recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability until the service has been delivered to 
the contributor, otherwise the grant is recognised as income on receipt.

 Interest revenue  

 Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.

 Rendering of services  

 Revenue in relation to rendering of services is recognised depending on whether the outcome of the 
services can be estimated reliably.  If the outcome can be estimated reliably then the stage of 
completion of the services is used to determine the appropriate level of revenue to be recognised in 
the period.

 If the outcome cannot be reliably estimated then revenue is recognised to the extent of expenses 
recognised that are recoverable.

 Note 
2016 2015 

$ $ 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:    

Receipts from customers   1,785,895   1,936,761  

Payments to suppliers and employees  (1,795,020) (1,870,581) 

Interest received          5,452          7,703  

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 17       (3,673)       73,883  

    
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:    

Net cash used by investing activities   -    -   

    
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:    

Net cash used by financing activities   -    -   

    
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held        (3,673)       73,883  

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year      642,488      568,605  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 6     638,815      642,488  
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

(b) Revenue and other income 

 Other income  

 Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Company is entitled to it.

(c) Goods and services tax (GST) 

 Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), 
except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office 
(ATO).

 Receivables and payable are stated inclusive of GST.

 The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as part of receivables or 
payables in the statement of financial position.

 Cash flows in the statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of 
cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the 
taxation authority is classified as operating cash flows.

(d) Financial instruments 

 Financial instruments are recognised initially using trade date accounting, i.e. on the date that the 
Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

 On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs 
(except for instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are 
expensed as incurred).

 Impairment of financial assets

 At the end of the reporting period the Company assesses whether there is any objective evidence 
that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

 Financial assets at amortised cost

 Impairment on receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance accounts, all other impairment 
losses on financial assets at amortised cost are taken directly to the asset.

 Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against other expenses in profit 
or loss.

(e) Cash and cash equivalents 

 Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments 
which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk 
of change in value.

(f) Employee benefits 

 Provision is made for the Company's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by 
employees to the end of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are expected to be wholly 
settled within one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is 
settled.

 Employee benefits Employee benefits expected to be settled more than one year after the end of the 
reporting period have been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to 
be made for those benefits. In determining the liability, consideration is given to employee wage 
increases and the probability that the employee may satisfy vesting requirements. Cashflows are 
discounted using market yields on Australian Treasury bond rates, with terms to maturity that match 
the expected timing of cashflows. Changes in the measurement of the liability are recognised in profit 
or loss.

3 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments 

 The directors make estimates and judgements during the preparation of these financial statements regarding 
assumptions about current and future events affecting transactions and balances.

 These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing the 
financial statements, however as additional information is known then the actual results may differ from the 
estimates.

 The significant estimates and judgements made have been described below.

 

 Key estimates - fair value of financial instruments  

 The Company has certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value. Where fair value has 
not able to be determined based on quoted price, a valuation model has been used. The inputs to these 
models are observable, where possible, however these techniques involve significant estimates and therefore 
fair value of the instruments could be affected by changes in these assumptions and inputs. 

 Key estimates - receivables  

 The receivables at reporting date have been reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence 
that any of the receivables are impaired. An impairment provision is included for any receivable where the 
entire balance is not considered collectible. The impairment provision is based on the best information at the 
reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

4 Revenue and Other Income 

 Revenue from continuing operations  

5 Result for the Year 

 The result for the year includes the following specific expenses:

6 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Reconciliation of cash  

Cash and Cash equivalents reported in the statement of cash flows are reconciled to the equivalent items in the 
statement of financial position as follows:

7 Trade and Other Receivables 

  2016 2015 

$ $ 

Cash at bank and in hand  638,815 642,488 

Total cash and cash equivalents  638,815 642,488 

 

  2016 2015 

$ $ 

Cash and cash equivalents  638,815 642,488 

Balance as per statement of cash flows  638,815 642,488 

 

  2016 2015 

$ $ 

Current    

Trade receivables      32,326      23,618  

Provision for impairment (a)     (3,150)  -   

Net receivables      29,176      23,618  

Prepayments      16,671      12,011  

Total current trade and other receivables      45,847      35,629  

 

(a) Impairment of receivables  

Reconciliation of changes in the provision for impairment of receivables is as follows:

  2016 2015 

 $ $ 

Additional impairment loss recognised        3,150   -   

Balance at end of the year        3,150   -   

 

24 25

  2016 2015 

$ $ 

Revenue    

Australian Sports Commission grants  427,000 444,500 

Grants - other  62,621 9,900 

Accreditation fees  16,487 17,259 

Coaching and accreditation fees  36,145 23,785 

Interest received  5,452 7,703 

Other income  22,058 24,507 

Participation program income  110,939 42,113 

Sports registration fees received  729,891 727,632 

Tournament income  482,997 444,015 

Total revenue  1,893,590 1,741,414 

 

  2016 2015 

$ $ 

Other expenses:    

Administration and office overheads  72,706 80,263 

Bad debts  3,150 5,547 

Coaching and high performance expenses  38,567 39,844 

Communications  11,311 10,611 

Governance and meetings  28,482 23,731 

Information technology expenditure  20,000 40,000 

Insurance  42,752 40,760 

Membership costs  188,384 199,231 

Occupancy costs  40,953 39,528 

Participation program expenses  306,784 171,959 

Tournament expenses  496,459 470,140 

Total other expenses  1,249,548 1,121,614 
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8 Trade and Other Payables 11 Leasing Commitments 

(a)  Operating leases  

9 Other Financial Liabilities 

10 Employee Benefits 

14 Key Management Remuneration Bands 

15 Contingencies 

 In the opinion of the Directors, the Company did not have any contingencies at 31 December 2016 (31 
December 2015:None).

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

12 Members' Guarantee 

 The Company is incorporated under the Corporations Act 2001 and is a Company limited by guarantee. If the 
Company is wound up, the constitution states that each National Voting Delegate is required to contribute a 
maximum of $10 each towards meeting any outstandings and obligations of the Company. At 31 December 
2016 the number of National Voting Delegates was 10 (2015: 10).

13 Key Management Personnel Remuneration 

 The totals of remuneration paid to the key management personnel of Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd. during the 
year are as follows:

 
2016 2015 

$ $ 

Current   

GST & PAYE payable 42,910 25,447 

Accrued expenses 50,213 39,678 

Other payables 84,016 28,663 

Total current trade and other payables 177,139 93,788 

 

 
2016 2015 

$ $ 

Current   

Income received in advance 148,939 242,381 

Total current other financial liabilities 148,939 242,381 

 

 
2016 2015 

$ $ 

Current liabilities   

Long service leave 26,481 11,514 

Provision for employee benefits 26,088 26,988 

Total current employee benefits 52,569 38,502 

    

 2016 2015 

$ $ 

Non-current liabilities   

Long service leave 4,335 10,486 

Total non-current employee benefits 4,335 10,486 

 

2016  2015 

Remuneration Bands 
Number of 
Employees  

Remuneration Bands 
Number of 
Employees 

$75,000 - $109,999 2 
 

$75,000 - $109,999 1 

$110,000 - $145,000 1  $110,000 - $145,000 1 
 

26 27

   2016 2015 
   $ $ 

Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases:   

- not later than one year  18,152 35,420 

- between one year and five years  -  36,305 

Total minimum lease payments  18,152 71,725 

 

 
2016 2015 

$ $ 

Short-term employee benefits 326,043 288,510 

Long-term benefits 4,542 4,502 

Total remuneration 330,585 293,012 
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16 Related Parties 

(a) The Company's main related parties are as follows:  

 Key management personnel - refer to Note 13.

 Other related parties include close family members of key management personnel and entities that 
are controlled or significantly influenced by those key management personnel or their close family 
members.

 The company's constitution requires each year that one director is appointed by AMF and one 
director is appointed by independent Bowling Centre Proprietors. During the year the company 
entered into numerous transactions with AMF and independent Bowling Centre Proprietors as part of 
the ordinary course of its business.

 Transactions with parties related to the company are made on commercial terms and are performed 
on an arm's length basis. There are no material related party balances at 31 December 2016 (31 
December 2015 - $nil)

(b) Transactions with related parties  Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial 
terms and conditions no more favourable than those available to other parties unless otherwise 
stated.

 

 The following transactions occurred with related parties:

 Purchases 

KMP related parties  

Services provided  3,600  

 

The directors of the Company declare that:

1.  The financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 8 to 20, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 
2001 and:

 a. comply with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements; and

 b. give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 December 2016 and of the performance for the 
year ended on that date of the Company.

2.  In the directors' opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its 
debts as and when they become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Director

Chief Executive Officer

Dated this 2nd day of May 2017.

Directors' DeclarationNotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

 
        2,016          2,015  

 $   $  

Profit for the year             
8,720  

            
3,602  

Cash flows excluded from profit attributable to operating activities   

Changes in assets and liabilities:   

 - (increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables      (8,801)    (14,559) 

 - (increase)/decrease in prepayments       (1,416)       14,021  

 - increase/(decrease) in income in advance    (93,442) 44,237  

 - increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 83,350  31,061  

 - increase/(decrease) in employee provisions 7,916   (4,479) 
Cashflows from operations  (3,673) 73,883  
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17 Cash Flow Information 

 (a) Reconciliation of result for the year to cashflows from operating activities  

  Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

18 Events after the end of the Reporting Period 

 No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may 
significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the 
Company in future financial years.

19 Company Information 

 The registered office of and principal place of business of the company is:

 Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd.Unit 4, 139 Sandgate RoadALBION QLD 4010



16 Related Parties 

(a) The Company's main related parties are as follows:  

 Key management personnel - refer to Note 13.

 Other related parties include close family members of key management personnel and entities that 
are controlled or significantly influenced by those key management personnel or their close family 
members.

 The company's constitution requires each year that one director is appointed by AMF and one 
director is appointed by independent Bowling Centre Proprietors. During the year the company 
entered into numerous transactions with AMF and independent Bowling Centre Proprietors as part of 
the ordinary course of its business.

 Transactions with parties related to the company are made on commercial terms and are performed 
on an arm's length basis. There are no material related party balances at 31 December 2016 (31 
December 2015 - $nil)

(b) Transactions with related parties  Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial 
terms and conditions no more favourable than those available to other parties unless otherwise 
stated.

 

 The following transactions occurred with related parties:

 Purchases 

KMP related parties  

Services provided  3,600  

 

The directors of the Company declare that:

1.  The financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 8 to 20, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 
2001 and:

 a. comply with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements; and

 b. give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 December 2016 and of the performance for the 
year ended on that date of the Company.

2.  In the directors' opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its 
debts as and when they become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Director

Chief Executive Officer

Dated this 2nd day of May 2017.

Directors' DeclarationNotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2016

 
        2,016          2,015  

 $   $  

Profit for the year             
8,720  

            
3,602  

Cash flows excluded from profit attributable to operating activities   

Changes in assets and liabilities:   

 - (increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables      (8,801)    (14,559) 

 - (increase)/decrease in prepayments       (1,416)       14,021  

 - increase/(decrease) in income in advance    (93,442) 44,237  

 - increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 83,350  31,061  

 - increase/(decrease) in employee provisions 7,916   (4,479) 
Cashflows from operations  (3,673) 73,883  

 

28 29

17 Cash Flow Information 

 (a) Reconciliation of result for the year to cashflows from operating activities  

  Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

18 Events after the end of the Reporting Period 

 No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may 
significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the 
Company in future financial years.

19 Company Information 

 The registered office of and principal place of business of the company is:

 Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd.Unit 4, 139 Sandgate RoadALBION QLD 4010



Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

Opinion

We have audited the financial report of Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd. (the Company), which comprises the statement of 
financial position as at 31 December 2016, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of 
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies, and the directors' declaration.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Company is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(I) giving a true and fair view of the Company's financial position as at 31 December 2016 and of its financial 
performance for the year ended; and

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and 
the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to the directors 
of the Company, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this auditor's report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial report of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial report as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the
23directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of the financial report.

Independent audit report to the members of Tenpin Bowling Australia LTD

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting, from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by Company.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based, on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
31 December 2016 of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and whether 
the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Jason O'Connor B Com CPA
Registered Company Auditor (No. 353931)

Dated this Second day of May 2017.

Jason O'Connor B.Com CPA

PO Box 3361 Warner Qld 4500

Mobile: 0402 327773

Office: 07 3040 5320

Email: auditor@joconnorptyltd.com.au

Web: www.joconnorptyltd.com.au
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For a sport that doesn't receive any 
funding for High Performance, tenpin 
bowling continues to punch above its 
weight on the international stage with 
four Australian's achieving great 
success abroad in 2019. 

Rebecca Whiting 
The QubicaAMF World Cup is the most prestigious 
amateur singles event in the sport of bowling and 
the largest annual international sports championship 
in terms of participating nations. In 2019 over 80 
countries contested World cup glory in Palembang, 
Indonesia.  Once again Australia performed better 
than the rest with Bec Whiting winning the women's 
division and giving Australia its 9th World Champion 
in the events 55-year history.

Australia entered the famous tournament sporting a 
familiar duo in Whiting and 2018 World Cup 
Champion Sam Cooley. This was Whiting's fourth 
consecutive appearance at the World Cup with past 
appearances providing key learnings to becoming 
Australia's newest World Cup champion.

Both Australians qualified for the top four TV show; a 
feat that no other country accomplished and 
resulted in Australia winning the award of top 
country at the event (the third time Australia has 
accomplished the honour).

Whiting joins Jeanette Baker, Cara Honeychurch, 
Maxine Nable, Amanda Bradley and Ann-Maree 
Putney as the only Australian females to be crowned 
World Cup champions.  Sam Cooley and Jason 
Belmonte are the only males that have won the 
event, such is the difficultly in going all the way in 
this gruelling event.

“They are some of the best bowlers our country has 
ever seen!” explained Whiting on the company she 
was joining. “To have my name next to theirs in the 
history books is such a surreal feeling and to follow 
in their footsteps makes me feel so happy to call 
myself Australian”.

Jason Belmonte
2019 was not only another outstanding year for one 
of our brightest stars in Jason Belmonte - it was the 
last chapter of a decade-long dominance by the 
Aussie bowler from Orange, New South Wales.

In recognition of the dominance, the sports most 
prestigious magazine “Bowlers Journal International” 
selected Jason as its Male Bowler of the Decade for 
the 2010's.

In arguably the most decorated decade by any 
bowler in the 60-plus year history of the Professional 
Bowlers Association (PBA), Belmonte shattered 
numerous records, winning 11 major championships 
including four USBC Masters titles (three of those in 
a row).  He won 21 of his 22 career titles in this 
decade and joined the PBA “Millionaire's Club” in a 
record-breaking 131 tournaments.  Stellar 
performances in 2019 saw the 36-year-old cap the 
decade with a fifth PBA Player of the Year Award.

Along the way, Belmonte notched up four coveted 
ESPY Awards, sharing the spotlight with numerous 
high-profile sports stars, and collaborated with the 
crew from Dude Perfect to produce Bowling Trick 

OUR BOWLERS - PUNCHING ABOVE THEIR WEIGHT

Shots that has resulted in one of its most popular 
YouTube segments ever recorded, with over 94 
million hits since its release.

Awards and collaborations aside, arguably 
Belmonte's most impressive feat was establishing 
the two-handed delivery as a dominant technique 
that has been adopted by hundreds of thousands of 
bowlers across the globe. His powerful 'footy-pass' 
technique has achieved stunning success, universal 
admiration and a legion of young players keen to 
emulate his revolutionary two-handed style of 
bowling.  

Whiting and Belmonte were not the only Australians 
to experience success in international competition.  

New South Wales bowler  claimed silver Nixon Chan
in the singles competition at the Asian Schools 
Championship in Hong Kong.   The silver medal 
completed a busy year for Chan. Earlier in the year 
he was one of two males that was selected to 
represent Australia at the inaugural World Junior 
Championship in Paris, France.  The Hong Kong born 
Nixon was competing in his first Asian Schools event 
for Australia after requesting and gaining approval 
earlier in the year to represent his adopted home 
country.

New South Wales bowler won a silver William Clark 
medal in the singles event at the Asian Youth 
Championship in Kuching Malaysia.  The Newcastle 
born bowler commented “The ceremony was great.  
Receiving the medal with the Australian flag on my 
back - it was something special”.  Clark's 
performance throughout the tournament saw him 
qualify for the Master's event where he finished in 
fourth place, narrowly missing another medal.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Title: 
Non-Executive Director 
Chairman (Elected as Chair 
25/05/2019) 

Qualifications: 
Member of the Australian Institute of 
Company Directors

Experience and expertise: 
Shane has over 39 years’ experience as 
a player, coach and administrator in 
the sporting industry. As the General 
Manager of the South Australian 
Cricket Association for over 16 years, 
Shane has extensive experience 
developing strategy as well as 
sustainable cricket associations and 
club structures. Most recently, Shane 
has been a director on the Tenpin SA 
Board. Shane is also a high 
performance coach in cricket and 
tenpin bowling. 

Special responsibilities: 
Member Elected Director 
Member of Finance Committee 
Head Coach Junior National Training 
Squad 

Title: 
Non-Executive Director 

Qualifications: 
Bachelor of Commerce
Diploma of Sport

Experience and expertise: 
Dean is the co-founder and partner at 
The Kinetica Group, a management 
consulting business focused on the 
health, sport and community sectors.  
Through his experience at The Kinetica 
Group and as a former Director of 
Strategy and Growth at Repucom, 
Dean has extensive experience 
assisting organisations to capture 
value and make an impact.  Dean also 
worked at Tennis Australia for 5 years 
as Head of Strategy and Research

Special responsibilities: 
Board appointed director

Qualifications & Experience

Title: 
Non-Executive Director (Appointed 25 May 2019) 

Qualifications: 
Bachelor of Science, Mathematics 

Experience and expertise: 
Hish is the Strategic Partnerships and Culture Advisor at ShareTree.org, a charity focused on 
improving culture and character in organisations. His key focus is driving skills-based 
volunteering, and culture uplift through impact storytelling and culture programs.  Hish's 
management consulting and data analytics background has also seen him working across 
Participation divisions in sports such as Tennis, Cricket and Rugby Union. He is a Director on 
the board of Protegic, an IT Consulting Firm and QJ Quartzstone, an international building 
materials business. 

Special responsibilities: 
Board appointed director 

Title:  
Non-Executive Director 

Qualifications: 
Bachelor of Design and Technology
Bachelor of Industrial Arts (Education)

Experience and expertise: 
Geoff has over 40 years’ experience in 
the sport as a High Performance coach 
at State, National and International 
levels and 35 years as a pro shop 
owner and operator. Through over 30 
years’ experience as an educator, 
Geoff brings extensive experience in 
the areas of planning and budgeting.

Special responsibilities: 
Member Elected Director
Member of High Performance Sub-
Committee 

Title: 
Non-Executive Director 
(Appointed 25 May 2019) 

Experience and expertise: 
Graeme is the General Manager of the 
SuperStrike group; a chain of 4 bowling 
centres across the Newcastle region. 
Representing the independent bowling 
centres, with over 20 years' experience 
managing bowling centres and a 
passion for developing the sport, 
Graeme brings a wealth of proprietor 
experience to the Board. 

Special responsibilities: 
IBCA nominee on the TBA Board 

Qualifications & Experience Qualifications & ExperienceQualifications & Experience Qualifications & Experience

Shane Bernhardt Dean BrostekGeoff Bowness Graeme Cox 

Title: 
Non-Executive Director 
(Elected 25 May 2019) 

Qualifications: 
Bachelor of Arts in 
Communication Studies 

Experience and expertise: 
Sally is the current Director of the 
Arafura Games which returned to 
Darwin in 2019 after an 8 year hiatus. 
Prior to this, Sally was the Manager, 
Sport Competition at the Gold Coast 
2018 Commonwealth Games. Sally's 
extensive experience in multi and 
single sport events management will 
be invaluable as TBA embarks on the 
evolution of its National 
Championships. 

Special responsibilities: 
Member Elected Director 

Qualifications & Experience

Sally Jarvis 

Title: 
Non-Executive Director 

Experience and expertise: 
Experienced Regional Manager with 
over 13 years management experience 
working in the entertainment, retail, 
hospitality and sport industry. Renee is 
currently State Operations Manager 
for Zone Bowling (previously AMF 
Bowling) and Timezone Victoria and 
Tasmania with 17 venues and a team 
of more than 550.

Special responsibilities: 
Zone Bowling nominee on the TBA 
Board

Qualifications & Experience

Renee Woolley

Appointed 25th May 2019
Resigned from the Board 13th 

October 2019

Non-Executive Director 
Appointed 1st August 2015 

Resigned from the Board 25th May 2019 

Bruce Morris Matthew Whitten 

Directors have been in office for the full year unless otherwise stated. 

Non-Executive Director
Appointed 28th August 2017
Resigned 28th February 2019

Michelle Roberts

Hish Fernando
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1. General Information 

Principal activities

The principal activity of Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd. during the 
financial year was to manage the sport of Tenpin Bowling in 
Australia. This includes: 

1.  Maintain and enforce the rules of the sport as governed by 
World Bowling 

2.  Develop and administer coaching programs 

3.  Develop programs and work collaboratively with industry to 
grow grass roots participation 

4.  Ensure bowling centres conform with the technical 
requirements of the sport as governed by World Bowling 

5.  Conduct National Championships that cater for bowlers of 
all abilities for juniors, youth, adult, senior and bowlers with 
a disability 

6.  Select national teams to represent Australia at both World 
Championship and other international events 

7.  Promote the sport through partnerships with proprietors, 
sponsors and the media 

No significant changes in the nature of the Company's activity 
occurred during the financial year. 

Objectives

The Company's strategic objectives are: 

n Maximise financial and operational sustainability 

n Grow sustainable participation & increase opportunities 
for Australians to be more physically active through 
tenpin bowling 

n Deliver world class High Performance programs 

Strategy for achieving the objectives

To achieve these objectives, the Company has adopted the 
following strategies: 
Objective 1: Maximise financial and operational sustainability 

n Create strong partnerships with industry, government 
and other key organisations

n Develop and implement business models that generate 
alternative forms of revenue

n Understand our assets and commercial opportunities
n Work with State Associations to maximise opportunities 

through a one management model

Objective 2: Grow sustainable participation & increase 
opportunities for Australians to be more physically active 
through tenpin bowling 

n Engage with schools and be a sport of choice for children
n Provide exceptional opportunities and be a leading sport 

for people with a disability
n Provide exceptional opportunities and be a leading sport 

for older Australians
n Continually review and update our participation 

programs to secure the future of our sport
n Develop new fans through our digital strategy & improve 

engagement with existing members

Objective 3: Deliver world class High Performance programs 
n Create outstanding athletes, coaches and administrators 

and develop outstanding people
n Attract and deliver world class events & revolutionise 

our National Championships
n Continuously improve leadership pathways for bowlers, 

coaches and administrators

2019 was another successful year for the sport with plenty of 
goals achieved across all aspects of the organisation. Success in 
High Performance coupled with the launch of a new 
participation program (BowlAbilities) and significant progress in 
our various digital projects saw many operational and strategic 
goals achieved.

Financially, TBA reported a small surplus ($3K); an excellent 
result given a strong investment in digital offerings along with 
the continued investment in both new and existing participation 
programs. Strong cash reserves and an absence of debt places 
TBA in a strong financial position to face the significant 
challenges associated with COVID-19 that is affecting so many 
sectors of the community; particularly sport.

Revenue from sports registration ($750K) declined 4% from 
2018 as did the number of registered members (26,270). 
Despite the fall, the decline slowed considerably from 2018 (8%) 
and importantly the percentage of league bowlers who 
registered with TBA was at an all-time high (96%). The most 
significant influence on member decline is again bowling centre 
closures. Whilst closures of traditional centres continues, there 
has been strong growth in the number of smaller boutique 
bowling centres (Family Entertainment Centres) which typically 
contain fewer lanes and offer other attractions. This presents an 
opportunity for TBA to engage with a new market to assist in 
attracting new participants in the future.

Declining sports registration is an issue confronting many 
National Sporting Organisations as society demands flexible, 
innovative ways to participate in sport. Tenpin bowling is no 
exception with more than 2 million Australian’s bowling 
annually. However those committed to lengthy traditional 
weekly seasons not surprisingly continues to decline. Given our 
major source of revenue is derived from a product in decline, 
we are clear that our focus needs to shift from a mostly 
member driven organisation to creating alternative revenue 
streams. We continue to have robust conversations with 
industry around how we service our dedicated, passionate and 
loyal league bowlers whilst developing new partnerships to 
create innovative and relevant products that attract new 
participants and contribute to a thriving, profitable industry.

TBA continued its strong commitment to growing the game 
through the addition of a new participation program - 
BowlAbilities. Aimed at adults and older teens with an 
intellectual disability and/or on the Autism spectrum, the 
program was developed as a result of funding from Sport 
Australia’s Move It Aus program. With our existing Bowl Patrol 
and Sporting Schools programs highly popular amongst those 
with a disability, TBA has been eager to develop a program 
specifically targeting those in our community with additional 
needs. Our pilot programs conducted late in the year in Western 
Australia, Queensland and Victoria were highly successful with 
over 200 participants. With the program development phase 
now complete including a dedicated website, online resources 
for coaches and a strong social media presence, we look 
forward to working with our partners to provide opportunities 
for people with additional needs to engage in a new sport.

Our existing junior participation programs Bowl Patrol and 
Sporting Schools continue to be highly effective in introducing 
the sport to children. Since 2017, over 25,000 children have 
participated in tenpin bowling nationally through either Bowl 
Patrol or Sporting Schools. With more than 50% of existing 
members over the age of 50 and junior members’ accounting 

for just 10%, TBA is committed to ensuring the long term 
viability of the sport through creating engaging and relevant 
programs to introduce tenpin bowling to a new generation.

This year more than 40% of registered bowling centres hosted a 
Sporting Schools Program, not only introducing primary school 
children to bowling (particularly in regional areas), but also 
providing revenue for bowling centres in excess of $115K across 
the country during traditionally quiet periods. Approximately 
30% of our programs took place in Special Schools again 
highlighting the important role our sport plays in ensuring 
children with a disability have options to keep physically active.

Bowl Patrol, our fully in centre program for primary school 
children grew 27% with 1,379 participants in 2019. With almost 
5,000 children having participated in the program over the past 
3 years, our growth is steady but challenging in a highly 
competitive and congested junior sports market. Despite 
modest participation numbers relative to larger sports, our 
satisfaction ratings are outstanding with a rating of 4.5 
(maximum 5) with retention rates beyond the initial program 
around 70%.

2019 was a particularly busy year in the digital space with our 
most significant achievement being the launch of our new 
website. In recent times our stakeholders found information 
difficult to find and equally it was challenging for TBA to 
communicate effectively and efficiently with our members. Our 
new website is now easy to navigate and links seamlessly with 
our various social media platforms, making it simple for 
stakeholders to keep up to date with news that’s relevant to 
them. Furthermore 4 of our State and Territory Associations 
have adopted the new platform providing greater consistency 
across the sport with plans for further expansion in 2020.

Tenpin Results continues to grow in popularity with both league 
and tournament bowlers as we introduced a more 
comprehensive suite of personal, league and tournament 
statistics in 2019. With more than 90% of our members now 
able to access personal statistics, bowlers have a plethora of 
information available at their fingertips. Combined with a 
further 20% growth in the number of tournaments using the 
Tenpin Results software (175 in total), bowlers can see both 
their league and tournament results in one convenient place. 
There is no other IT system for our sport in the world that 
provides all of this information in the one convenient place and 
we will continue to evolve these offerings moving forward.

2019 saw some outstanding results for our High Performance 
athletes. Jason Belmonte not only proved he was again the best 
player in the world winning 4 PBA titles and Player of the Year 
for the 5th time, he was also named Player of the Decade (2010-
2019) by Bowler’s Journal International. To close out 2019, 
Melbourne’s Bec Whiting claimed victory in the QubicaAMF 
Bowling World Cup; the 6th Australian women to win the event. 
Furthermore our National Seniors team did Australia proud with 
the women’s team winning 2 silver and one Bronze medal at the 
World Senior Championship in Las Vegas. At the other end of 
the age spectrum, our developing athletes performed admirably 
with Australia picking up a Silver medal at both the Asian 
Schools and Asian Youth Championship.

TBA continued its strong focus on governance in 2019. A grant 
from Sport Australia allowed TBA to create a standardised 
financial system across the sport that will see consistent 
financial reporting for all States and Territories and allow an 
aggregated financial view across the sport. In early 2020, work 
will commence on creating a whole of sport strategic plan that 
involves significant consultation with each State and Territory to 
not only develop national strategies, but create meaningful and 
relevant strategic and operational plans for each State and 

Territory to capture local nuances.

An important milestone for TBA saw the release of our Child 
Safe Framework which includes our commitment statement to 
keep children and young people safe, along with a code of 
conduct for everyone involved in the sport. Ensuring our sport is 
safe for children and vulnerable people is of the highest priority 
for TBA and we are proud of the framework which has now 
been adopted by all States and Territories.

Whilst we looked forward with great excitement to build on the 
successes of 2019 with a revamped National Championship and 
new Devil’s Lair planned for July, the unprecedented 
Coronavirus pandemic has quite simply changed life as we know 
it. As the community and sports sector work through the many 
challenges, the priority for TBA will be to manage the financial 
impact and support the bowling industry to rebuild for a 
stronger future.

Members' guarantee  

Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd. is a company limited by guarantee. 
In the event of, and for the purpose of winding up of the 
Company, the amount capable of being called up from each 
National Voting Delegate and any person or association who 
ceased to be a National Voting Delegate in the year prior to the 
winding up, is limited to $ 10, subject to the provisions of the 
Company's constitution.  At 31 December 2019 the collective 
liability of National Voting Delegates was $ 100 (2018: $ 100).

2. Other items 

Meetings of directors

During the financial year, 5 meetings of directors were held. 
Attendances by each director during the year were as follows:

Auditor's independence declaration  

The lead auditor's independence declaration in accordance 
with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, for the year 
ended 31 December 2019 has been received and can be 
found on page 9 of the financial report. 

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of 
Directors: 

Director
Dated this 15th day 
of May 2020.

Director
Dated this 15th day 
of May 2020.

Name of  Attended Entitled  
Director  to Attend 

Shane Bernhardt  5 5

Renee Woolley  5 5

Geoff Bowness  5 5

Dean Brostek  4 5

Graeme Cox  3 3

Sally Jarvis  3 3

Hish Fernando  3 3

Bruce Morris  2 2

Matthew Whitten  3 3

Michelle Roberts  0 1

DIRECTORS' REPORT DIRECTORS' REPORT 
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n Develop new fans through our digital strategy & improve 
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n Create outstanding athletes, coaches and administrators 
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n Attract and deliver world class events & revolutionise 

our National Championships
n Continuously improve leadership pathways for bowlers, 

coaches and administrators
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goals achieved across all aspects of the organisation. Success in 
High Performance coupled with the launch of a new 
participation program (BowlAbilities) and significant progress in 
our various digital projects saw many operational and strategic 
goals achieved.

Financially, TBA reported a small surplus ($3K); an excellent 
result given a strong investment in digital offerings along with 
the continued investment in both new and existing participation 
programs. Strong cash reserves and an absence of debt places 
TBA in a strong financial position to face the significant 
challenges associated with COVID-19 that is affecting so many 
sectors of the community; particularly sport.

Revenue from sports registration ($750K) declined 4% from 
2018 as did the number of registered members (26,270). 
Despite the fall, the decline slowed considerably from 2018 (8%) 
and importantly the percentage of league bowlers who 
registered with TBA was at an all-time high (96%). The most 
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closures. Whilst closures of traditional centres continues, there 
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contain fewer lanes and offer other attractions. This presents an 
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attracting new participants in the future.
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and Sporting Schools programs highly popular amongst those 
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specifically targeting those in our community with additional 
needs. Our pilot programs conducted late in the year in Western 
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over 200 participants. With the program development phase 
now complete including a dedicated website, online resources 
for coaches and a strong social media presence, we look 
forward to working with our partners to provide opportunities 
for people with additional needs to engage in a new sport.

Our existing junior participation programs Bowl Patrol and 
Sporting Schools continue to be highly effective in introducing 
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viability of the sport through creating engaging and relevant 
programs to introduce tenpin bowling to a new generation.
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Sporting Schools Program, not only introducing primary school 
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the country during traditionally quiet periods. Approximately 
30% of our programs took place in Special Schools again 
highlighting the important role our sport plays in ensuring 
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Bowl Patrol, our fully in centre program for primary school 
children grew 27% with 1,379 participants in 2019. With almost 
5,000 children having participated in the program over the past 
3 years, our growth is steady but challenging in a highly 
competitive and congested junior sports market. Despite 
modest participation numbers relative to larger sports, our 
satisfaction ratings are outstanding with a rating of 4.5 
(maximum 5) with retention rates beyond the initial program 
around 70%.
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website. In recent times our stakeholders found information 
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provides all of this information in the one convenient place and 
we will continue to evolve these offerings moving forward.
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Melbourne’s Bec Whiting claimed victory in the QubicaAMF 
Bowling World Cup; the 6th Australian women to win the event. 
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the women’s team winning 2 silver and one Bronze medal at the 
World Senior Championship in Las Vegas. At the other end of 
the age spectrum, our developing athletes performed admirably 
with Australia picking up a Silver medal at both the Asian 
Schools and Asian Youth Championship.

TBA continued its strong focus on governance in 2019. A grant 
from Sport Australia allowed TBA to create a standardised 
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will commence on creating a whole of sport strategic plan that 
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not only develop national strategies, but create meaningful and 
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keep children and young people safe, along with a code of 
conduct for everyone involved in the sport. Ensuring our sport is 
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for TBA and we are proud of the framework which has now 
been adopted by all States and Territories.

Whilst we looked forward with great excitement to build on the 
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new Devil’s Lair planned for July, the unprecedented 
Coronavirus pandemic has quite simply changed life as we know 
it. As the community and sports sector work through the many 
challenges, the priority for TBA will be to manage the financial 
impact and support the bowling industry to rebuild for a 
stronger future.
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In the event of, and for the purpose of winding up of the 
Company, the amount capable of being called up from each 
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liability of National Voting Delegates was $ 100 (2018: $ 100).

2. Other items 
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Attendances by each director during the year were as follows:
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with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, for the year 
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Auditor's Independence Declaration

TO THE DIRECTORS OF TENPIN BOWLING AUSTRALIA LTD

As auditor for the audit of Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd for the year ended 31 December 2019, I declare that, to 
the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been: 

(i)  no contraventions of the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the 
audit; and 

(ii)  no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 

Jason Croston, FCA

Registered Company Auditor

Brisbane

SRJ Walker Wayland

DatedL 19th May 2020

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Statement of Financial Position 
31 December 2019 
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Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2019 

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2019 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2019 

The financial report covers Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd. as an individual entity. Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd. is a not-
for- profit Company limited by guarantee, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. 

The functional and presentation currency of Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd. is Australian dollars. Comparatives are 
consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated. 

1  Basis of Preparation 

In the Directors' opinion, the Company is not a reporting entity since there are unlikely to exist users of the financial 
report who are not able to command the preparation of reports tailored so as to satisfy specifically all of their 
information needs. This special purpose financial report has been prepared to meet the reporting requirements of 
the Corporations Act 2001. 

2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 (a)  Income Tax 

  The Company is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 . 

 (b)  Revenue and other income 

  Revenue is recognised when the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that 
economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company and specific criteria relating 
to the type of revenue as noted below, have been satisfied. 

  Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is presented net of 
returns, discounts and rebates. 

  All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST). 

  Grant revenue 

  Grant revenue is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the 
entity obtains control of the grant, it is probable that the economic benefits gained from the grant will 
flow to the entity and the amount of the grant can be measured reliably. 

  When grant revenue is received whereby the entity incurs an obligation to deliver economic value directly 
back to the contributor, this is considered a reciprocal transaction and the grant revenue is recognised in 
the statement of financial position as a liability until the service has been delivered to the contributor, 
otherwise the grant is recognised as income on receipt. 

  Interest revenue 

  Interest is recognised using the effective interest method. 

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 (b) Revenue and other income 

  Rendering of services

  Revenue in relation to rendering of services is recognised depending on whether the outcome of the 
services can be estimated reliably. If the outcome can be estimated reliably then the stage of completion 
of the services is used to determine the appropriate level of revenue to be recognised in the period.

  If the outcome cannot be reliably estimated then revenue is recognised to the extent of expenses 
recognised that are recoverable.

  Other income

  Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Company is entitled to it.

 (c) Goods and services tax (GST)

  Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except 
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

  Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST.

  The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as part of receivables or 
payables in the statement of financial position .

  Cash flows in the statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of cash 
flows arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation 
authority is classified as operating cash flows.

 (d)  Financial instruments

  Financial instruments are recognised initially using trade date accounting, i.e. on the date that the 
Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

  On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs (except for 
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed as 
incurred).

  Impairment of financial assets

  At the end of the reporting period the Company assesses whether there is any objective evidence that a 
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

  Financial assets at amortised cost

  Impairment on receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance account, all other impairment 
losses on financial assets at amortised cost are taken directly to the asset.

  Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against other expenses in profit or 
loss.

 (e)  Cash and cash equivalents

  Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments which 
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change 
in value.

 (f)  Employee benefits

  Provision is made for the Company's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by 
employees to the end of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are expected to be wholly settled 
within one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled .

  Employee benefits expected to be settled more than one year after the end of the reporting period have 
been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits. 
In determining the liability, consideration is given to employee wage increases and the probability that the 
employee may satisfy vesting requirements. Changes in the measurement of the liability are recognised in 
profit or loss.

3  Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

 The directors make estimates and judgements during the preparation of these financial statements regarding 
assumptions about current and future events affecting transactions and balances.

 These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing the financial 
statements, however as additional information is known then the actual results may differ from the estimates.

 The significant estimates and judgements made have been described below.

 Key estimates - receivables

 The receivables at reporting date have been reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence that 
any of the receivables are impaired. An impairment provision is included for any receivable where the entire balance 
is not considered collectible. The impairment provision is based on the best information at the reporting date.
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services can be estimated reliably. If the outcome can be estimated reliably then the stage of completion 
of the services is used to determine the appropriate level of revenue to be recognised in the period.

  If the outcome cannot be reliably estimated then revenue is recognised to the extent of expenses 
recognised that are recoverable.
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3  Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

 The directors make estimates and judgements during the preparation of these financial statements regarding 
assumptions about current and future events affecting transactions and balances.

 These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing the financial 
statements, however as additional information is known then the actual results may differ from the estimates.

 The significant estimates and judgements made have been described below.

 Key estimates - receivables

 The receivables at reporting date have been reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence that 
any of the receivables are impaired. An impairment provision is included for any receivable where the entire balance 
is not considered collectible. The impairment provision is based on the best information at the reporting date.
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

Opinion

We have audited the financial report of Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd, which comprises the statement of financial position as 
at 31 December 2019, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows 
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statement, including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the 
directors’ declaration.

In our opinion the financial report of Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd has been prepared in accordance with the Corporations Act 
2001, including:

(a)  giving a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at 31 December 2019 and of its performance 
for the year ended on 31 December 2019; and

(b)  complying with Australian Accounting Standards to the extent described in Note 1, and the Corporations 
Regulations 2001.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting 
Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant 
to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 
Code.

We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to the directors 
of the Company, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of the audit report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter – Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to Note 1 to the financial report, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial report has been 
prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the Company’s financial reporting responsibilities under the Corporations Act 2001. As a 
result, the financial report may not be suitable for another purpose. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for other information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
Director’s Report for the year ended 31 December 2019 but does not include the financial report or our auditor’s report 
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the Director’s Report and accordingly we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the Director’s Report and, in doing so, 
consider whether the Director’s Report is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and 
have determined that the basis of preparation described in Note 1 to the financial report is appropriate to meet the 
requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

Independent audit report to the members of Tenpin Bowling Australia LTD material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of the financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

n Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting, from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.

n Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal control.

n Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by Company.

n Conclude on the appropriateness of directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based, on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
31 December 2019 of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

n Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and whether 
the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Jason Croston 
SRJ Walker Wayland 
Director 

Date: 19th May 2020

Address: Unit 3, 27 South Pine Road, BRENDALE QLD 4500 

Independent auditor's report 

25



Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

Opinion

We have audited the financial report of Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd, which comprises the statement of financial position as 
at 31 December 2019, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows 
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statement, including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the 
directors’ declaration.

In our opinion the financial report of Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd has been prepared in accordance with the Corporations Act 
2001, including:

(a)  giving a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at 31 December 2019 and of its performance 
for the year ended on 31 December 2019; and

(b)  complying with Australian Accounting Standards to the extent described in Note 1, and the Corporations 
Regulations 2001.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting 
Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant 
to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 
Code.

We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to the directors 
of the Company, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of the audit report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter – Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to Note 1 to the financial report, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial report has been 
prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the Company’s financial reporting responsibilities under the Corporations Act 2001. As a 
result, the financial report may not be suitable for another purpose. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for other information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
Director’s Report for the year ended 31 December 2019 but does not include the financial report or our auditor’s report 
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the Director’s Report and accordingly we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the Director’s Report and, in doing so, 
consider whether the Director’s Report is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and 
have determined that the basis of preparation described in Note 1 to the financial report is appropriate to meet the 
requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

Independent audit report to the members of Tenpin Bowling Australia LTD material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of the financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

n Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting, from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.

n Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal control.

n Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by Company.

n Conclude on the appropriateness of directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based, on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
31 December 2019 of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

n Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and whether 
the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Jason Croston 
SRJ Walker Wayland 
Director 

Date: 19th May 2020

Address: Unit 3, 27 South Pine Road, BRENDALE QLD 4500 

Independent auditor's report 

25



The start of 2020 has been an extraordinarily tough 
time for Australians, including all of us committed to 
sport. 

The impact of bushfires and the COVID-19 pandemic 
have been confronting for communities, where we 
all know sport plays such an important role.

At the Australian Sports Commission (ASC), 
comprising Sport Australia and the Australian 
Institute of Sport (AIS), our energy is focused on 
supporting our partners through these times as we 
continue to advocate the importance of sport to our 
economy, productivity, health, wellbeing and culture.

We believe whole-heartedly that when we get 
through this challenging period, sport will play a 
prominent role in lifting the nation's energy and 
spirits again.

Times such as these can also make us more 
appreciative of what we do have and of the success 
we have achieved.

Success in sport is always hard fought. But it's a fight 
Australian high-performance sport welcomes as it 
continues to achieve success.  

Last year the wonderful Ash Barty won the French 
Open and became our first female No1 tennis player 
since her idol, Evonne Goolagong Cawley, in 1976. 
Javelin-thrower Kelsey Lee-Barber set personal bests 
throughout the year and took the title at the IAAF 
World Championships in Doha. Dylan Alcott added 
three more Grand Slam quad wheelchair singles 
trophies to the cabinet and Sailing duo Matt Belcher 
and Will Ryan claimed the men's 470 World 

Championship. In the pool, our swimmers won seven 
gold medals at the FINA World Championships, 
placing Australia fourth on the medal tally. 

This year our inspiring women's cricket team won a 
fifth World T20 title, drawing a record crowd of 
86,174 to the MCG. How fitting that this historical 
moment fell on International Women's Day. These 
results are a testament to the tenacity and passion 
of athletes, coaches, sports staff and sporting 
organisations, which know we have all the skills and 
abilities to achieve success. 

I am proud too of the service our organisation 
provides to Australian sport each year, on behalf of 
the Australian Government.

The ASC, through Sport Australia and the AIS, 
delivers 25,000 grants a year.

The AIS, funds and prepares our Olympic, Paralympic 
and Commonwealth Games to represent us at the 
highest level in international competition.

In the past few years, we have enhanced our support 
to athlete wellbeing and engagement, a move that is 
essential, especially in the current environment.

Sport Australia invests in sports participation 
programs, from our national Sporting Schools 
program for younger children through to the Better 
Ageing program aimed at Australians aged 65 and 
over.

So many of these grants fuel aspirations. Our Local 
Sporting Champions program supports 9,000 
children a year to reach for their sporting dreams.

Our Women Leaders in Sport program and the AIS 
Talent program provide opportunities for women to 
progress their professional development in all roles 
across sport.

We continue to work with sports to modernise 
traditional governance structures in Australian 
sporting organisations and we continue to encourage 
environments that are inclusive, diverse, safe and 
welcoming, making sport the benchmark for a more 
equitable society. 

This was to be the year of the 2020 Olympics and 
Paralympics in Tokyo. Instead, it has been postponed 
to 2021, with the Olympic Games to be held from 23 
July to 8 August 2021 and the Paralympics from 24 
August to 5 September 2021.

We have already witnessed a great deal of positivity 
from athletes who now need to re-set. I'm confident, 
as a united sport system, we will do the same.

AUSTRALIAN SPORTS COMMISSION 

John Wylie AM
Chair - Australian Sports Commission
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Jason Belmonte continued to 
dazzle the world with his bowling 
prowess on the international stage. 
Navigating through a challenging and 
minimised season, Jason found a 
way to continue flying our flag in the 
world’s elite bowling competition – 
the Professional Bowlers Association 
(PBA) Tour.

Beginning the year, Jason was recog-
nised by the sport’s most prestigious 
magazine – Bowlers Journal Interna-
tional. The publication named Jason 
as the Male Bowler of the Decade for 
2010s.

The recognition heralded the start 
of momentous career highlights in 
a shortened and interrupted PBA 
season. Jason would go on to add 
three more titles to his ever-growing 
collection. Two of the three would be 
major titles: the U.S. Open and PBA 
World Championship.  

One achievement that had eluded 
the great to this point was capturing 
the prestigious U.S. Open title. In 
February, Jason would cross yet an-
other event off his bucket list to raise 
the famous eagle trophy and don 
the legendary green jacket, the win 
delivering bowling's coveted Super 
Slam of titles.

Jason scored his second major of 
the PBA Tour season with another 
history-making victory in the PBA 
World Championship in March. The 
excitement of his third consecutive 
PBA World Championship title was 
shared by his wife and family who 
travelled half-way around the world 
to support their number one man.

The two major victories would extend 
his lead as the sport's all-time major 
titleholder, with 13 career major 
titles. 

The third title claimed in 2020 was 
the PBA World Series of Bowling XI 

Chameleon Championship, the back 
to back victory delivering career title 
number 25.

Topping off a stellar year, Jason also 
won the 2020 GEICO Chris Schenkel 
Player of the Year Award. The honour 
is Jason’s sixth Player of the Year 
award recognition. Twelve years on 
tour, 25 career titles that include an 
all-time high 13 career majors, the 
legend of Jason Belmonte continues 
to roll on. We are immensely proud 
of Jason's achievements and his     
ongoing role as Ambassador for TBA's 
key development programs Bowl 
Patrol and Bowl Abilities.

2020 was a year no one will forget. The emergence and profound impact of COVID-19 forced change to 
occur in more ways than one. 

belmonte legend 
rolls on

jason belmonte extended his lead as the 
pba's all time major titleholder.

Yet, in some ways, things 
remained the same. 

13 
major titles

Jason Belmonte holding the 2020 U.S. Open Champion 
Trophy.PBA.COM
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Clearly, 2020 will be remembered as an 
extraordinary year.  The impact of the 
global pandemic has been significant. 

Tenpin Bowling centres (like many 
businesses) were hit with the unique 
situation of having to close due to 
government restrictions. As a result, 
bowlers were unable to bowl at their 
local centre. This meant interrupted 
leagues, cancellation of events and 
tournaments and no international 
competition in 2020. The social hub 
for participants across the country was 
taken away for us.  However, the love 
and passion for the sport have shone 
through, and as a community, we have 
accepted this as a challenge, and TBA 
view this experience as a platform for 
significant optimism in relation to the 
future of the sport in Australia.

The financial position of TBA is strong 
enabling the organisation to adapt to 
some ongoing uncertainty post 2020.  
We recorded a $319,327 profit which 
was a very pleasing result built from 
some unique circumstances due to the 
global pandemic. This included the 
reduction hours for staff in 2020 when 
government restrictions were applied 
across the country, the ongoing Fed-
eral and State / Territory government 

support as well as a drop in operational 
costs due to limited events and activity.

A key outcome of the global pandemic 
in 2020 was the importance of the 
partnership and relationship we have 
with the government at all levels. This 
relationship proved critical in ensuring 
the sport had up to date information 
on government restrictions whilst 
also having a direct line to raise issues 
and concerns regarding policy or 
regulation. Our partnership with Sport 
Australia continues to be critical.  Our 
relationship through the State and Ter-
ritory associations with their respective 
governments is also extremely impor-
tant, and this was evident in 2020 when 
we experienced a significant change in 
the way we operated as a community.

TBA continued to work on improve-
ments to the governance of the sport. 
Through Sport Australia Impact 
funding, all State and Territories were 
converted to consistent chartered 
accounts. This standardised financial 
system will benefit the sport in working 
with partners such as Sport Australia, 
whereby we can provide an aggregated 
financial view across the sport. This has 
enabled TBA to work closely with State 
and Territories to simplify the system 
and support volunteer Boards and 
committees across the country. 

My optimism for the future of the sport 
is built off the development of a new 
three-year strategic plan for Tenpin 
Bowling in Australia.  This plan was 
constructed following engagement 
with State and Territory associations. 
The vision of “a thriving Tenpin Bowl-
ing industry that engages and connects 
communities through skill and play” 
resonates with me as it captures the 
experience a bowler has at a Tenpin 

Bowling centre as the key ingredient. 
The participant experience and the 
centre operator sit at the heart of this 
strategy, and we have identified four 
pillars of success. They are: 

Business of Bowling – “profitable cen-
tres providing awesome experiences to 
all customers” 
  
Playful Connections – “more people 
playing the sport and connecting 
through Tenpin Bowling” 
 
A Striking Force – “provide opportuni-
ties for elite bowlers to excel and sup-
port them to optimise their talent” 
 
Pinned Together – “all stakeholders 
within the sport collaborating and 
driving to an agreed outcome and clear 
goals” 

As we know, a strategic outlook is only 
as good as the systems, processes 
and structure that sits beneath it in 
bringing it to life.  Following the adop-
tion of the new strategic plan, TBA 
re-structured the operations to align 
with the strategy.  The appointment of 
Rohan O’Neill, Damien Smith and Sue 
Wharekawa into senior roles with expe-
rience outside the sport is significant.  I 
am excited about the leadership team 
who will provide new ideas, enthusi-
asm, and professionalism to our opera-
tions.  To highlight this approach, it 
was extremely pleasing to see our Term 
4 Sporting Schools results where 44 
schools and close to 4,500 participants 
were involved in coach or teacher led 
Tenpin Bowling programs.  It was our 
biggest Sporting Schools term ever!  

It would be remiss of me not to ac-
knowledge and thank our long-serving 
CEO Cara Honeychurch. Cara was Chief 

Executive Officer for 10 years, and she led 
the operations of the organisation through 
some challenging times, none more so than 
in 2020. Cara’s bowling pedigree is well 
established, as is now her sport manage-
ment credentials, having navigated through 
a global pandemic. Along with Cara’s 
departure in November 2020, senior staff in 
Kelly Warren and Chris Rushton both moved 
on from TBA, with our best wishes, having 
contributed positively to the organisation 

over many years. 

On behalf of the TBA Board, I would like to 
acknowledge and thank our State and Terri-
tory partners who play a key role in provid-
ing opportunities for bowlers to excel and 
participate in the sport.  I would also like to 
acknowledge the TBA staff who responded 
to the uncertainty and changes of 2020 with 
resilience whilst maintain a professional 
approach to their work. 

Finally, a big thank you to the centre opera-
tors (independent and non-independent) 
and TBA members across the country.  
Whilst 2020 was an extremely challenging 
year for many of you, I believe the future 
of the sport is bright, and I look forward to 
leading TBA and supporting the vision of ‘a 
thriving Tenpin Bowling industry that en-
gages and connects communities through 
skill and play!’ 
Jerome Joseph - TBA Chairman



Geoff Bowness

Non-Executive Director (Elected 26th May 2018)

Experience Geoff has over 40 years’ experience in the sport as a High Performance 
coach at State, National and International levels and 35 years as a pro shop owner 
and operator. Through over 30 years’ experience as an educator, Geoff brings 
extensive experience in the areas of educational transformation, planning and 
budgeting. Geoff is also involved as the Head Coach of the National Youth Training 
Squad, a member of the TBA Governance Committee, NSW TBA Advisory Commit-
tee member, TBA Technical Committee Member and NSW TBA Head Coach for the 
Youth Division.

Graeme Cox

Non-Executive Director (Appointed 25 May 2019)

Experience Graeme represents the independent bowling centres, with over 20 
years’ experience managing bowling centres and a passion for developing the sport, 
Graeme brings a wealth of proprietor experience to the Board. Graeme is the IBCA 
nominee on the TBA Board.

Hish Fernando

Non-Executive Director (Appointed 25 May 2019)

 

Experience Hish is the CEO of Storyflik, a digital business focused on improving cul-
ture through neuropsychology and storytelling. Hish is a management consultant 
with a technology background, specialising in data analytics and data governance. 
His tech businesses have seen him working across sports such as Tennis, Cricket 
and Rugby Union. He is a Director on several boards and passionate about creating 
skills-based volunteering. Hish is also the Chair of the Governance Committee.
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Jerome Joseph 

Chairman (Appointed 27th June 2020 and voted as Chairperson 3rd July 2020)

Experience: Jerome is CEO/Executive Director of BRC Life, a company that is part 
of the BRC Capital group of companies. With over 25 years of total business P&L 
responsibility within the Food Service Distribution, Food Manufacturing, Hospitality 
and Facilities Management /Outsourced Service sectors. Jerome is a highly skilled 
operational senior executive who has worked with leading 500 organisations across 
Australia and Asia. Jerome also holds a number of board appointments and this 
includes Board Member, St Vincent’s Health Australia Foundation Victoria, Advisory 
Board Member UltraLite Health Management and Chairman Segen Recruitment. 
Jerome is also a member of the Finance Committee.

Shane Bernhardt

Vice Chairman (Elected 26th May 2018 and voted as Vice Chairperson 3rd July 2020) 

Experience: Shane has over 40 years’ experience as a player, coach and administra-
tor in the sporting industry. As the General Manager of Community Cricket with the 
South Australian Cricket Association, Shane has 18 years’ experience developing 
strategies for the sustainable growth of cricket participation as well as leading crick-
ets’ volunteers in developing inclusive, welcoming and child safe association and 
club structures. Previously, Shane has been a director on the Tenpin SA Board. Shane 
is also a high performance coach in cricket and tenpin bowling. Shane is also Chair of 
the Finance Committee, a member of Governance Commitee and Head Coach of the 
National Junior Training Squad.

Board of
directors 
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Morty Douglass

Non-Executive Director (Elected 27th June 2020)

Experience Energetic and empathetic, Morty is one of tenpin bowling’s most active 
volunteers – he is actively involved with bowlers at every level including grass-roots, 
all-abilities and elite. With broad-ranging communication skills, proactive TBAQ 
Board member for over 17 years and Queensland Adult Committee leader for 10 
years, Australian and State representative, and experienced Tournament Director 
and promoter, Morty has unique insights and abilities that span the bowling com-
munity at large.

Jo Babic 

Non-Executive Director Elected 27th 
June 2020

Resigned from the Board 10th March 
2021

Dean Brostek 

Non-Executive Director

Appointed 21st September 2017

Resigned from the Board 19th June 
2020

Sally Jarvis

Non-Executive Director

Elected 25th May 2019

Resigned from the Board 15th May 2020

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless otherwise stated.

Board of
directors 

Renee Woolley 

Non-Executive Director (Appointed 17th August 2018) 

Experience: Experienced Regional Manager with over 13 years management experi-
ence working in the entertainment, retail, hospitality and sport industry. Renee is 
currently State Operations Manager for Zone Bowling and Timezone Victoria and 
Tasmania. Renee is the National League Manager at Zone Bowling with a primary 
focus to increasing participation and bowler satisfaction. Renee is the Zone Bowling 
nominee on the TBA Board.
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1.           General information

Strategy for achieving the objectives

To achieve these objectives, the Company has adopted the following strategies:

Objective 1: Maximise financial and operational sustainability

•           Create strong partnerships with industry, government and other key  organisations

•           Develop and implement business models that generate alternative forms of revenue

•           Understand our assets and commercial opportunities

•           Work with State Associations to maximise opportunities through a one management model

Objective 2: Grow sustainable participation & increase opportunities for Australians to be more physically active 
through tenpin bowling

•           Engage with schools and be a sport of choice for children

•           Provide exceptional opportunities and be a leading sport for people with a disability

•           Provide exceptional opportunities and be a leading sport for older Australians

•           Continually review and update our participation programs to secure the future of our sport

•           Develop new fans through our digital strategy & improve engagement with existing members

Objective 3: Deliver world class High Performance programs

•           Create outstanding athletes, coaches and administrators and develop outstanding people

•           Attract and deliver world class events & revolutionise our National Championships

•           Continuously improve leadership pathways for bowlers, coaches and administrators

directors' 
report
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directors' 
report
1. General information

Principal activities

The principal activity of Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd. during the financial year was to manage the sport of Tenpin Bowling 
in Australia. This includes:

1. Maintain and enforce the rules of the sport as governed by World Bowling

2. Develop and administer coaching programs

3. Develop programs and work collaboratively with industry to grow grass roots participation

4. Ensure bowling centres conform with the technical requirements of the sport as governed by World Bowling

5. Conduct National Championships that cater for bowlers of all abilities for juniors, youth, adult, senior and bowlers with a 
disability

6. Select national teams to represent Australia at both World Championship and other international events

7. Promote the sport through partnerships with proprietors, sponsors and the media

No significant changes in the nature of the Company's activity occurred during the financial year.

Objectives

The Company's strategic objectives are:

• Maximise financial and operational sustainability

• Grow sustainable participation & increase opportunities for Australians to be more physically active through tenpin bowl-
ing

• Deliver world class High Performance programs

10



The digital transformation of sport in Australia was thrust 
upon all sports in 2020. With no opportunity to meet in 
person to play or participate, sport needed to innovate and 
explore alternative ways. TBA had some success in maintain-
ing engagement via our Bowl at Home program that included 
video based instructional demonstrations for learning how 
to bowl. The COVID-19 hub on the TBA website was regularly 
updated and addressed significant variances in State and 
Territory regulations.

TBA entered into an agreement with Strike 3 to in essence re-
define, reinvigorate, and combine the previous four separate 
national championships into one stand alone event. The 
Australian National Championships and Devil’s Lair were can-
celled in 2020 due to the pandemic, however the 2021 event 
is in full swing with a number of new rules and initiatives that 
aim to provide an improved experience for bowlers. There 
have also been initiatives to improve the process for volun-
teers with a joint project to develop online entries through 
the Tenpin Results platform.

The competition management membership system with 
Tenpin Results remained an important tool in 2020 despite 
the pandemic. More and more tournaments are using the 
software to run their event, with the return to bowling in the 
2nd half of 2020 indicating a better then anticipated number 
of participants.

TBA continued to work on the governance of the sport. 
Through Sport Australia Impact funding, all State and Ter-
ritories were converted across with consistent chartered 
accounts in pace across the country. This standardised finan-
cial system will benefit the sport in working with partners 
such as Sport Australia, whereby we can provide an aggre-
gated financial view across the sport. We are grateful for the 
support of Sport Australia in enabling TBA to work closely 
with State and Territories to simplify the system and support 
volunteer Boards and committees across the country.

In October 2020, TBA endorsed a new strategic plan. This 
plan was constructed following engagement with State and 
Territory associations. It is a three-year strategic plan, where 
the vision is for “a thriving tenpin bowling industry that 
engages and connects communities through skill and play”. 
Four pillars of success were identified. They are:

- Business of Bowling – profitable centres providing awesome 
experiences to all customers

- Playful Connections – more people playing the sport and 
connecting through tenpin bowling

- A Striking Force – provide opportunities for elite bowlers to 
excel and support them to optimise their talent

- Pinned Together – all stakeholders within the sport collabo-
rating and driving to an agreed outcome and clear goals

The year also saw a number of changes to TBA staffing with 
many years of experience leaving the organisation. Cara Hon-
eychurch was Chief Executive Officer for 10 years and had led 
the operations of the organisation through some challenging 
times, none more so than in 2020. Cara’s bowling pedigree is 

well established as is now her sport management credentials 
having navigated through a global pandemic. Along with 
Cara’s departure in November 2020, senior staff in Kelly War-
ren and Chris Rushton both moved on from TBA with our best 
wishes having contributed positively to the organisation over 
many years.

With this movement of staff comes new opportunity and 
fresh ideas and enthusiasm. Rohan O’Neill and Damien Smith 
have been appointed into senior roles from outside of the 
sport of Tenpin bowling, however both bring specific skills 
and experiences to the sport that we anticipate will build 
positively on the previous work of TBA.
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1. General information

Review of operations

2020 will be remembered as an extraordinary year. A global 
pandemic that crippled economies across the world and re-
stricted movement and access and impacted heavily on the 
tenpin bowling industry and the members and participants. 
Tenpin bowling centres (like many businesses) had a major 
impact as a result of government restrictions and we will be 
closely monitoring the rebound in 2021 as people begin to 
more freely across the country.

Financially, TBA reported a surplus ($319K), a reassuring 
result given the ongoing uncertainty and challenges faced as 
a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. This increase in retained 
equity, and strong cash reserves, places TBA in a good posi-
tion to insulate against future financial shocks as the pan-
demic continues to impact our community and the world.

In an effort to reduce the operating expenditure of the organ-
isation, in response to COVID-19, TBA temporarily reduced 
the total number of workforce hours.

All revenue categories were decreased with the exception 
of Federal Government support in the form of JobKeeper 
and the ATO Cashflow Boost. Pleasingly, investment into the 
Bowl Patrol, Sporting Schools and Bowl Abilities programs 
was maintained, despite disruptions to schools, communities 
and businesses over the year.

A key finding from the global pandemic for TBA was the 
importance of the partnership and relationship we have with 
government at all levels. This relationship proved critical in 
ensuring the sport had up to date information on govern-
ment restrictions, whilst also having a direct line to raise 
issues and concerns regarding policy or regulation. Our 
partnership with Sport Australia is very important as is our 
relationship through the State and Territory associations 
with their respective governments.

Naturally the global pandemic had a major impact on partici-
pation, major events both locally and internationally and on 
the social connectedness of the tenpin bowling community. 
TBA brought in modified rules as a result of COVID-19, rules 
that continue to be in operation given the uncertainty glob-
ally.

Sport registration membership remained steady as people 
returned to bowling at different times across the country, 
with 20,862 registered members in 2020. Understandably, 
this was a decline from 2019 and TBA instigated an additional 
reduction of almost 20% in the early bird campaign for 2021 
to acknowledge that many jurisdictions in Australia were 
unable to offer tenpin bowling for the year due to lockdowns 
associated with the global pandemic.

On a positive note, the Sporting Schools program in Term 4 
recorded its highest participation term to date with 4236 par-
ticipants across 44 schools. This exposure of the sport to new 
audiences and potential bowlers is critical as we aim to con-
vert these experiences into active participants and members. 
With more than 50% of existing members over the age of 50 
and junior members accounting for just 10%, TBA is commit-
ted to ensuring the long-term viability of the sport through 
creating engaging and relevant programs to introduce tenpin 
bowling to the next generation.

From an international and high-performance perspective, 
access to international events was heavily impacted by the 
global pandemic. However, it is worth noting the perfor-
mances and recognition of Australia’s number one male 
bowler in Jason Belmonte continued to shine. In a COVID 
impacted PBA season, Belmonte would once again find a 
way and prove he was the best player in the world. Belmonte 
would top the PBA 2020 rankings in competition points, scor-
ing average, and earnings after capturing three PBA titles, in-
cluding two majors. Belmonte’s impressive year of accolades 
was topped off after receiving his sixth PBA Player of the Year 
award, reinforcing Belmonte’s legendary status in the sport.

COVID restrictions provided scope and a need to adapt and 
utilise online technologies to keep connected and engaged 
with our National Training Squad’s (NTS) throughout a dif-
ficult period. Throughout the year, several activities and ini-
tiatives were actioned to keep members engaged whilst not 
being able to physically bowl in international events. ‘Zoom’ 
calls were a frequent occurrence throughout the year and 
highlighted by experiences such as hosting special guests. 
One of those special guests was Jason Belmonte, who pro-
vided insight and advice to several squads throughout the 
year. From a coaching perspective, online conferences were 
conducted in partnership with Kegel to connect and develop 
accredited coaches.
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Auditor's independence declaration

The lead auditor's independence declaration in accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, for the year 
ended 31 December 2020 has been received and can be found on page 11 of the financial report.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors:

Director: Director:

Dated this 18th day of May 2021 Dated this 18th day of May 2021
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directors' 
report
Members' guarantee
Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd. is a company limited by guarantee. In the event of, and for the purpose of winding up of the 
Company, the amount capable of being called up from each National Voting Delegate and any person or association who 
ceased to be a National Voting Delegate in the year prior to the winding up, is limited to $ 10, subject to the provisions of the 
Company's constitution.

At 31 December 2020 the collective liability of National Voting Delegates was $ 100 (2019: $ 100).

2. Other items

Meetings of directors

During the financial year, 10 meetings of directors were held. Attendances by each director during the year were as follows:

Director Attended Entitled to 
Attend

Jerome Joseph 10 10

Shane Bernhardt 10 10

Geoff Bowness 10 10

Renee Wooley 9 10

Dean Brostek 5 5

Graeme Cox 8 10

Sally Jarvis 3 3

Hish Fernando 10 10

Jo Babic 5 5

Morty Douglass 5 5

14



statement of profit & Loss 
& other comprehensive 
income For the year ended 31 december 2020

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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auditor's independence 
declaration

INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

As auditor for the audit of Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd for the year ended 31 December

2020, I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

(i) no contraventions of the independence requirements of the Corporations Act

2001 in relation to the audit; and

(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to

the audit.

Jason Croston, FCA

Registered Company Auditor

Brisbane

SRJ Walker Wayland

Dated: 18 May 2021



statement of
changes in equityFor the year ended 31 december 2020

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

19

statement of 
financial position 31 december 2020

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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notes to the
financial statements
For the year ended 31 december 2020

The financial report covers Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd. as an individual entity. Tenpin Bowling 
Australia Ltd. is a not-for-profit Company limited by guarantee, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.

The functional and presentation currency of Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd. is Australian dollars. 

Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated.

1      Basis of Preparation

In the Directors' opinion, the Company is not a reporting entity since there are unlikely to exist 
users of the financial report who are not able to command the preparation of reports tailored so as 
to satisfy specifically all of their information needs. This special purpose financial report has 
been prepared to meet the reporting requirements of the Corporations Act 2001.

2      Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a)       Income Tax

The Company is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the  Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 .

(b)       Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that 
economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company and specific criteria 
relating to the type of revenue as noted below, have been satisfied.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is presented 
net of returns, discounts and rebates.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).

Grant revenue

Grant revenue is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when 
the entity obtains control of the grant, it is probable that the economic benefits gained from the 
grant will flow to the entity and the amount of the grant can be measured reliably.

When grant revenue is received whereby the entity incurs an obligation to deliver economic value 
directly back to the contributor, this is considered a reciprocal transaction and the grant revenue 
is recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability until the service has been 
delivered to the contributor, otherwise the grant is recognised as income on receipt.

Interest revenue
Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.

statement of
Cash flows For the year ended 31 december 2020

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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notes to the
financial statements
2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(e) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments which are readily convert-
ible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

(f) Employee benefits

Provision is made for the Company's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to the end 
of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are expected to be wholly settled within one year have been measured at the 
amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled .

Employee benefits expected to be settled more than one year after the end of the reporting period have been measured at the 
present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits. In determining the liability, consideration 
is given to employee wage increases and the probability that the employee may satisfy vesting requirements. Changes in the 
measurement of the liability are recognised in profit or loss.

3 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The directors make estimates and judgements during the preparation of these financial statements regarding assumptions 
about current and future events affecting transactions and balances.

These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing the financial state-
ments, however as additional information is known then the actual results may differ from the estimates.

The significant estimates and judgements made have been described below.

Key estimates - receivables

The receivables at reporting date have been reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence that any of the 
receivables are impaired. An impairment provision is included for any receivable where the entire balance is not considered 
collectible. The impairment provision is based on the best information at the reporting date.

For the year ended 31 december 2020
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(b) Revenue and other income

Rendering of services

Revenue in relation to rendering of services is recognised depending on whether the outcome of the services
can be estimated reliably. If the outcome can be estimated reliably then the stage of completion of the services is used to 
determine the appropriate level of revenue to be recognised in the period.

If the outcome cannot be reliably estimated then revenue is recognised to the extent of expenses recognised that are recover-
able.

Other income
Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Company is entitled to it.

(c) Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except where the amount of 
GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as part of receivables or payables in the state-
ment of financial position.

Cash flows in the statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows arising from 
investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classified as operating 
cash flows.

(d) Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised initially using trade date accounting, i.e. on the date that the Company becomes party 
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs (except for instruments mea-
sured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed as incurred).

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of the reporting period the Company assesses whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or 
group of financial assets is impaired.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Impairment on receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance account, all other impairment losses on financial as-
sets at amortised cost are taken directly to the asset.

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against other expenses in profit or loss.
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independent 
Auditors report
To the Directors of Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report Opinion

We have audited the financial report of Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd, which comprises the statement of financial position as 
at 31 December 2020, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows 
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statement, including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the 
directors’ declaration.

In our opinion the financial report of Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd has been prepared in accordance with the Corporations Act 
2001, including:

(a) giving a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at 31 December 2020 and of its performance for the year 
ended on that date; and

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards to the extent described in Note 1, and the Corporations Regulations 
2001.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are fur-
ther described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional 
and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit 
of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to the directors 
of the Company, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of the audit report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter – Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to Note 1 to the financial report, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial report has been 
prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the Company’s financial reporting responsibilities under the Corporations Act 2001. As a 
result, the financial report may not be suitable for another purpose. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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director's  
declaration
The directors of the Company declare that:

1. The financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 12 to 24, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and:

a. comply with Australian Accounting Standards; and

b. give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 December 2020 and of the performance for the year ended on that 
date of the Company.

2. In the directors' opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and 
when they become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.
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• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related dis-
closures made by Company.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based, on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Com-
pany’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw atten-
tion in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Other Information
The directors are responsible for other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Direc-
tor’s Report for the year ended 31 December 2020 but does not include the financial report or our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the Director’s Report and accordingly we do not express any form of assur-
ance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the Director’s Report and, in doing so, con-
sider whether the Director’s Report is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and 
have determined that the basis of preparation described in Note 1 to the financial report is appropriate to meet the require-
ments of the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the prepa-
ration of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going con-
cern, disclosing as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the 
directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material mis-
statement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 
a high level assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of the financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and maintain pro-
fessional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one result-
ing, from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.
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A message from the Chair of the Australian 
Sports Commission – Josephine Sukkar AM 

It is my great honour to be appointed Chair of the Austra-
lian Sports Commission.
 
Like so many Australians, sport has been a cornerstone 
of my life and has shaped me in ways I could never 
have imagined. I am passionate in my belief in sport’s 
unrivalled ability to unite, inspire, and build healthier, 
stronger communities and I am committed to ensuring 
that every Australian who wants to be part of a sports 
community, in any role they see fit to participate, enjoys 
the extraordinary benefits and grows as a result of their 
engagement with the sport of their choice.
 
2020 was a year like no other, and while it has required 
an incredible resilience to get to this point, our sports 
will continue to be challenged in 2021 and beyond as we 
emerge from the pandemic. However, we know sport will 
play a crucial role in the nation’s rebuilding efforts, which 
presents us with great opportunities as well.
 
There is already much to look forward to. Nothing inspires 
and invokes our Aussie pride quite like an Olympic and 
Paralympic Games, and we will continue to put the health 

and safety of our athletes front and centre as they finalise 
their preparations for Tokyo in July and August. After waiting 
an extra year, we can’t wait to finally see our green and gold 
athletes in action.
 
The announcement earlier this year of the IOC’s recommenda-
tion of South-East Queensland as its preferred bid candidate 
for the 2032 Olympic and Paralympic Games has provided 
another significant injection of optimism across our sector. For 
the young boys and girls enjoying their sport and dreaming 
of representing their country, this is an announcement that 
makes the possibility of a home Games more tangible and real. 
 
Between Tokyo and what we all hope will be confirmation of a 
successful Brisbane bid, some of the world’s biggest sporting 
events will converge on our shores, presenting more wonder-
ful opportunities for Australian sport to thrive over the next 
decade and beyond. 
 
We’ll never forget the astonishing scenes when the Australian 
Women’s cricket team claimed the ICC Women’s T20 World 
Cup in Melbourne last year, and our Men’s team will have their 
chance to replicate that feat when they host the ICC Men’s 
T20 World Cup in 2022. Next year Australia will also host the 
FIBA Women’s World Cup of Basketball, then in 2023, the FIFA 
Women’s World Cup. 2027 also presents another golden op-
portunity, with our bid to bring the Rugby World Cup back to 
Australia for the first time since 2003. And this is just to name 
a handful of the world class sport on offer in the coming years 
on top of our local, state and national competitions.

The Australian Sports Commission (ASC), comprising Sport 
Australia and the Australian Institute of Sport (AIS), is proud 
to support sport at all levels throughout Australia, on behalf 
of the Australian Government. While we support our athletes 
competing at the pinnacle of world competition, we continue 
to focus on nurturing and developing sport at the community 
level with the help of our partners across the industry.
 
The sporting pyramid needs to be built on a strong base. When 
we are able to grow the grassroots of sport by focussing on 
our participants and volunteers and get that formula right, our 
high performance programs ultimately flourish. This is pivotal 
time for our sector but out of the recent uncertainty comes 
an opportunity to refocus our goals and consider the role that 
each of us can play in rebuilding a stronger, leaner and healthi-
er sports industry. 

Josephine Sukkar AM  

message from australian 
sports commission
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The 2021 year will once again be re-
membered as a year heavily impacted 
by the global pandemic. Whilst the clo-
sures of industry were mostly across 
the eastern seaboard, the challenging 
environment particularly in travelling 
and planning events meant the 2nd 
half of calendar was heavily disrupted 
given 60% of Australian tenpin bowling 
centres were closed. 

However, with the commencement 
of a new organisational strategy and 
new look executive leadership team, 
there were several positive outcomes 
achieved.

The vision of “a thriving Tenpin Bowl-
ing industry that engages and connects 
communities through skill and play” 
continues to drive our operations. In 
2021 we incorporated a philosophy 
that we were committed to confronting 
the challenges of COVID-19 with an 
approach to do what we can to enable 
“bowlers to bowl”.  Whether it be a 
local Monday night league, a Ranked 
event or the Australian National Cham-
pionships, our focus was sharp and 
where safe and appropriate, we would 
enable tenpin bowling to take place.  

The four pillars underpinning the 
strategic plan for Tenpin Bowling Aus-

tralia (TBA) continue to form the basis 
of everything we do. Key highlights 
included: 
 
Business of Bowling 

• Sport Registration was up 2.1% on 
the 2020 figure for a total of 21,295 
members

• The TBA Group buying platform 
was established with six inaugu-
ral partners in 2021. We thank 
Talent Cube, Green Peak Solar, 
Schweppes, Restock, Gearlock, 
Safe 365 and TWP for their support 
of tenpin bowling in Australia and 
this new initiative.

 
Playful Connections 

• Our participation offering in 
schools was up 59.1% and was the 
biggest ever year of the program.

• Bowl Patrol expanded globally 
with the announcement of an MOU 
with the International Bowling 
Federation to support the drive 
of this program across all federa-
tions.

• Inclusion and diversity program-
ming was supported through 
strategic partnerships with organ-

isations such as Scope, Welcoming 
Australia and the successful Com-
municare / Bowl Abilities partner-
ship in WA.  

 
A Striking Force

• Sam Cooley had a breakthrough 
year on the PBA circuit with his 
first tour win and subsequent 
nomination for PBA player of the 
year. Sam, a previous winner of the 
Qubica AMF World Cup and several 
TBA Ranked Events led the Aussie 
charge in the PBA throughout 
2021. 

• No international events were par-
ticipated in by Australia because 
of the global pandemic, however 
Australia did manage to feature at 
the World Championships in Dubai 
where Jason Belmonte attended 
to promote the sport at World 
Expo Dubai 2020. Jason’s ambas-
sadorial role continues to play a 
positive role in promoting tenpin 
bowling in Australia

• The Australian National Champi-
onships saw for the first-time men 
and women compete in the same 
competition of the Walter Rachuig 
Trophy. Whilst up and coming stars 

Cameron Stein and Rebekah Commane 
won the prestigious Australian Masters 
in Hobart. 

 
Pinned Together 

• The Board set up a Governance and 
Organisational Enhancement plan with 
Sport AUS, with the inclusion of several 
key Board policies and processes em-
bedded in 2022

• From a communications perspective, 
TBA’s engagement and productivity 
grew across all social platforms in 2021. 
E.g. Facebook productivity grew 16% 
with engagement growing 21% in 2021 
compared to previous year.

• TBA invested in the development of the 
online entry process via TenpinResults.  
Feedback initially has been positive, 
particularly in saving time for volun-
teers who manage and administer 
events.

Forming partnerships remains critical to 
the success of sport and business. We are 
pleased to report that 2021 has formed 
what we believe is a wonderful platform for 
TBA. Government partnerships continue 
to build, with the Federal Government and 
Sport AUS support a key feature. We would 
like to thank the Chairperson of Sport AUS 

Josephine Sukkar and Acting CEO for Sport 
AUS Robert Dalton for their leadership and 
outstanding support of national sporting 
organisations over the last 12 months.

At a State and Territory level, several 
arrangements are in place with various 
State departments. We thank all State and 
Territory governments for their role in 
supporting sport and active recreation.  We 
acknowledge the role government at all lev-
els plays in supporting not only the develop-
ment of policy, but also the implementation 
via various programs and funding support 
opportunities.    

We would like to acknowledge and thank 
our State and Territory associations who 
continue to commit time effort and re-
sources to providing opportunities for bowl-
ers to excel and participate in the sport.  In 
addition, we would like to thank the Board 
members who once again contributed to 
the sport through their volunteering at a 
national level.  Additionally, we’d like to 
acknowledge the TBA staff who responded 
to continued uncertainty and changes in 
2021, particularly having worked through 
the difficulties of 2020. The team performed 
admirably, with resilience and professional-
ism in challenging times. 

A big thank you to the centre operators 
(independent and Zone Bowling) as well 

as all the TBA sport registered members 
across the country. The 96 registered 
centres across the country continue to sup-
port the sport through leagues, TBA sport 
registration and events.  TBA actively sought 
funding from government to support bowl-
ing centres affected by lockdowns, with the 
NSW and Victorian government providing 
direct support and assistance to registered 
centres via TBA.  

From an events perspective, the arrange-
ment with Strike 3 Bowling delivered a 
new format and approach to the Australian 
National Championships. Having previously 
split the events across the year, Strike 3 
Bowling combined the events into a festival 
of bowling in Hobart. Given the rather 
unique and fast changing circumstances, 
Strike 3 Bowling did an incredible job in 
delivering the Australian National Cham-
pionships with flair and innovation in line 
with the philosophy of “enabling bowlers to 
bowl.”

We believe the future of the sport is positive 
and we look forward to a fruitful 2022 as 
we continue to strive towards the vision 
of engaging and connecting communities 
through tenpin bowling.

5



Jerome Joseph 

Non-Executive Director - Chairman (Appointed 27 June 2020 and voted as Chairperson 
3 July 2020)

Qualifications: 

• Member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors (MAICD) 

• AICD Sport Australia Director Education Certificate 

• AICD Foundations of Directorship Certificate 

Experience: Jerome is CEO/Executive Director of BRC Life, a company that is part 
of the BRC Capital group of companies. With over 25 years of total business P&L 
responsibility within the Food Service Distribution, Food Manufacturing, Hospitality 
and Facilities Management /Outsourced Service sectors. Jerome is a highly skilled 
operational senior executive who has worked with leading 500 organisations across 
Australia and Asia. Jerome also holds a number of board appointments and this 
includes Board Member, St Vincent’s Health Australia Foundation Victoria, Advisory 
Board Member UltraLite Health Management and Chairman Segen Recruitment. 

Special responsibilities: Board Appointed Director, Board Member Oceania Bowling 
Federation, Member of Finance, Audit & Risk Committee

Shane Bernhardt

Non-Executive Director - Vice Chairman (Elected 26 May 2018 and voted as Vice Chair-
person 3 July 2020) 

Qualifications: 

• Member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors (MAICD) 

• Graduate AICD Company Directors Course (GAICD) 

• AICD Sport Australia Director Education Certificate 

Experience: Shane has over 40 years’ experience as a player, coach and administra-
tor in the sporting industry. As a General Manager with the South Australian Cricket 
Association for over 19 years, Shane has extensive experience developing strategy as 
well as sustainable cricket associations and club structures. Most recently, Shane has 
been a director on the Tenpin SA Board. Shane is also a high performance coach in 
cricket and tenpin bowling. 

Special responsibilities: Member Elected Director, Chair of Finance, Audit & Risk 
Committee and Head Coach TBA 18 National Training Squad

Board of
directors 
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Geoff Bowness

Non-Executive Director (Elected 26 May 2018)

Qualifications:

• NSW Diploma of Teaching (Secondary School) 

• Bachelor of Design and Technology of Industrial Arts (Education) 

• AICD Sport Australia Director Education Certificate 

Experience: Geoff has over 40 years’ experience in the sport as a High Performance 
coach at State, National and International levels and 35 years as a pro shop owner 
and operator. Through over 30 years’ experience as an educator, Geoff brings exten-
sive experience in the areas of planning and budgeting. 

Special responsibilities: Member Elected Director, Member of Governance Commit-
tee, and Head Coach TBA 21 National Training Squad

Hish Fernando

Non-Executive Director (Appointed 25 May 2019)

Qualifications:

• Member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors (MAICD) 

• AICD Sport Australia Director Education Certificate 

• AICD Foundations of Directorship Certificate 

• Bachelor of Science, Mathematics 

Experience: Hish is the CEO of Storyflik, a digital business focused on improving 
culture through neuropsychology and storytelling. Hish is a management consultant 
with a technology background, specialising in data analytics and data governance. 
His tech businesses have seen him working across sports such as Tennis, Cricket and 
Rugby Union. He is a Director on several boards and passionate about creating skills-
based volunteering opportunities 

Special responsibilities: Board Appointed Director, Chair of Governance Committee, 
Chair of Technology and Digital Transformation Commitee
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Renee Woolley 

Non-Executive Director (Appointed 17 August 2018) 

Qualifications: AICD Sport Australia Director Education Certificate

Experience: Experienced Regional Manager with over 14 years management experi-
ence working in the entertainment, retail, hospitality and sport industry. Renee is 
currently State Operations Manager for Zone Bowling (previously AMF Bowling) and 
Timezone Victoria and Tasmania with 17 venues and a team of more than 550.    



Matt Too'mua

Non-Executive Director (Elected 21 July 2021)

Qualifications: 

• Member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors (MAICD) 

• AICD Sport Australia Director Education Certificate 

• AICD Foundations of Directorship Certificate 

• Masters of Business Administration (MBA) 

Experience Over the past 13 years, Matt has gone on to be one of Australia’s most 
prolific sports professionals, both domestically and internationally. Matt has accumu-
lated 54 caps for the Australian Wallabies, headlined by 2 Rugby World Cups and has 
fulfilled many leadership appointments as Captain and Vice-Captain as well as being 
a member of the Wallabies Leadership Group. Matt is the president of the Rugby 
Union Players Association and on the board of Pacific Rugby Players Welfare.  

Special responsibilities: Board Appointed Director, Member Governance Committee

Morty Douglass

Non-Executive Director Elected 27th 
June 2020

Resigned from the Board 21st July 2021

Graeme Cox

Non-Executive Director

Appointed 25th May 2019

Resigned from the Board 25th October 
2021

Jo Babic

Non-Executive Director

Elected 27th June 2020

Resigned from the Board 10th March 
2021

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless otherwise stated.

Board of
directors 
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Finance Audit & Risk Committee 

1. Shane Bernhardt (Chair)

2. Jerome Joseph

3. Anthony Moore

4. Rohan O'Neill

5. Sue Wharekawa

Governance Committee 

1. Hish Fernando (Chair)

2. Geoff Bowness

3. Matt Too'mua

4. Rohan O'Neill



directors' 
report
1. General information

Principal activities
   
The principal activity of Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd. during the financial year was to manage the sport of Tenpin Bowling in Austra-
lia. This includes: 

1. Maintain and enforce the rules of the sport as governed by the International Bowling Federation 
2. Develop and administer coaching programs 
3. Develop programs and work collaboratively with industry to grow grass roots participation 
4. Ensure bowling centres conform with the technical requirements of the sport as governed by the International Bowling Federa-

tion  
5. Conduct National Championships that cater for bowlers of all abilities for juniors, youth, adult, senior and bowlers    with a dis-

ability 
6. Select national teams to represent Australia at both World Championship and other international events  
7. Promote the sport through partnerships with proprietors, sponsors and the media
 
No significant changes in the nature of the Company's activity occurred during the financial year. 

Objectives   

The Company's strategic objectives are: 

• Business of Bowling – profitable centres providing awesome experiences to all customers
• Playful Connections – more people playing the sport and connecting through tenpin bowling
• A Striking Force – provide opportunities for elite bowlers to excel and support them to optimise their talent 
• Pinned Together – all stakeholders within the sport collaborating and driving to an agreed outcome and clear                            goals 

The three-year strategic plan was launched in October 2020 with the vision for “a thriving tenpin bowling industry that engages and 
connects communities through skill and play”. 

Review of operations 

Despite the optimism leading into 2021, the year will be remembered as a challenging one as the impact of COVID-19 continued 
in many parts of the country.  Tenpin bowling centres (like many businesses) across the eastern seaboard, were heavily impacted 
because of government restrictions, with the country only opening to international travel in November 2021.   

Financially, Tenpin Bowling Australia (TBA) reported a deficit of $87,791. With no Job Keeper when compared with 2020, the Board 
ensured operations would continue particularly given the surplus of $319,000 in 2020 and despite some challenging external envi-
ronment influences on operations.  This should hold the sport in good stead for 2022 where investment will continue to ensure the 
sport can rebound and thrive.  The strong cash reserves ensure that TBA is well placed to continue to adjust and adapt to a new ‘liv-
ing with COVID’ environment. 

In terms of personnel, the Board restructured the operations in May 2021 and promoted Rohan O’Neill to Chief Executive and 
Damien Smith to Chief Operating Officer.  In addition, the Board secured the services of Sue Wharekawa as Chief Finance Of-
ficer and Company Secretary.   

10

1.           General information

Sport registration membership improved on 2020 with 21,295 registrations (up 2.1%). Total games bowled across leagues were also 
up, although the impact of lockdowns in NSW and Victoria were significant for those jurisdictions. From an event perspective, the 
Ranked Event calendar proceeded based on TBA’s philosophy of enabling ‘bowlers to bowl’ wherever possible, although the 2nd half 
of 2021, no Ranked Events were held as 60% of the country’s population were in lockdown due to COVID-19. 

From a participation perspective, Sporting Schools participation across the country delivered record participation (up 59.1%).  This 
is a credit to the TBA personnel driving engagement with schools who took a proactive approach to driving activity in schools. 
Victoria led the way with over 3000 Sporting Schools participants in 2022 and TBA was pleased to receive notification that this Sport 
Australia funded program will continue in 2022.  

Bowl Patrol and Bowl Abilities continue to further establish themselves in a cluttered and competitive sport and entertainment mar-
ket.  Bowl Patrol in particular was strong with an increase of 50.8% on 2020 figures. Embedding the entry level program in operations 
across the country takes time particularly when other sports have well-established modified participation offerings that are well over 
25 years old.  The importance of this offering is clear, with only 8% of TBA membership under 20 years old.  Doing nothing here is not 
an option and it’s pleasing to see record growth Sporting Schools and improvement in Bowl Patrol registrations. 

From a high-performance perspective, Australia did not compete in any international events in 2021.  However, in partnership with 
Strike 3, the Australian National Championships were held in Hobart.  The incredible adaptability and flexibility of Strike 3 to ensure 
the event could occur despite a changing environment was extraordinary.  Innovation was the order of the day with the Walter 
Rachuig Trophy combining the male and female divisions for the first time in the history.  Athletes starved of events in 2020 were 
rewarded with an opportunity to bowl in the event. Additionally, the Australian Masters saw two of our up-and-coming athletes in 
Cameron Stein from Queensland and Rebekah Commane from Victoria claim the title. 

Overseas, 2021 will be a year remembered from an Australia perspective as a breakout year for Sam Cooley on the Professional 
Bowlers Association (PBA) tour.  Sam claimed his first PBA victory at the PBA Cheetah Championship and performed admirably on 
the tour. Jason Belmonte’s status as the major drawcard for tenpin bowling was again evident when he was invited to the Interna-
tional Bowling Federation (IBF) World Championships in Dubai. Despite Australia not sending a team due to the lead up international 
travel restrictions, Jason was able to attend the event at the last minute to promote the sport at the World Expo Dubai. This exposure 
remains an important aspect of the sport’s push for Olympic inclusion at either LA 2028 or Brisbane 2032. 

From a digital perspective, TBA managed to grow engagement and productivity significantly across the key social media assets and 
the TBA website.  In addition, TBA invested in the development of the online entry system through Tenpin Results.  This investment 
has already delivered savings across hundreds of hours of volunteer time to delivered and administer events.  With approximately 
300 accredited events each year in Australia, the benefit of saving time for volunteers is at the forefront of the enhancements to the 
competition management system and we should see further improved outcomes in 2022 because of this initiative. 
  
Overall, despite a difficult year as the world battled through a global pandemic, TBA operationally were able to ensure opportunities 
presented were grasped whilst being well placed to continue to build the reputation of the sport and adapt to a changing environ-
ment. 

directors' 
report
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directors' 
report
Members' guarantee 

Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd. is a company limited by guarantee. In the event of, and for the purpose of winding up of the Company, 
the amount capable of being called up from each National Voting Delegate and any person or association who ceased to be a Na-
tional Voting Delegate in the year prior to the winding up, is limited to $ 10, subject to the provisions of the Company's constitution. 

At 31 December 2021 the collective liability of National Voting Delegates was $ 100 (2020: $ 100). 

2. Other items

Meetings of directors

During the financial year, 7 meetings of directors were held. Attendances by each director during the year were as follows:

Director Attended Held

Jerome Joseph 7 7

Shane Bernhardt 7 7

Geoff Bowness 7 7

Renee Wooley 7 7

Hish Fernando 7 7

Matt Too'mua 5 6

Graeme Cox 4 4

Morty Douglass 3 3

Jo Babic 1 1
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Auditor's independence declaration

The lead auditor's independence declaration in accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, for the year ended 
31 December 2021 has been received and can be found on page 11 of the financial report. 

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors:

Director: Director:

Dated this 29th day of April 2022 Dated this 29th day of April 2022

13
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auditor's independence 
declaration

 

 

 
 

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION 
 
 
As auditor for the audit of Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd for the year ended 31 December 
2021, I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been: 
 

(i) no contraventions of the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 
2001 in relation to the audit; and 
 

(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to 
the audit. 

 
 

…. 
Jason Croston, FCA 
Registered Company Auditor 
Brisbane 
SRJ Walker Wayland 
 
 
Dated:  6 May 2022

statement of profit & Loss 
& other comprehensive 
income For the year ended 31 december 2021

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

15



statement of 
financial position 31 december 2021

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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statement of
changes in equityFor the year ended 31 december 2021

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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statement of
Cash flows For the year ended 31 december 2021

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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notes to the
financial statements
For the year ended 31 december 2021

The financial report covers Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd. as an individual entity. Tenpin Bowling 
Australia Ltd. is a not-for-profit Company limited by guarantee, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.

The functional and presentation currency of Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd. is Australian dollars. 

Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated.

1      Basis of Preparation

In the Directors' opinion, the Company is not a reporting entity since there are unlikely to exist users of the financial report 
who are not able to command the preparation of reports tailored so as to satisfy specifically all of their information needs. 
This special purpose financial report has been prepared to meet the reporting requirements of the Corporations Act 2001.

2      Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a)       Income Tax

The Company is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the  Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 .

(b)       Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that economic benefits asso-
ciated with the transaction will flow to the Company and specific criteria relating to the type of revenue as noted below, have 
been satisfied.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is presented net of returns, discounts 
and rebates.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).

Grant revenue

Grant revenue is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the entity obtains con-
trol of the grant, it is probable that the economic benefits gained from the grant will flow to the entity and the amount of the 
grant can be measured reliably.

When grant revenue is received whereby the entity incurs an obligation to deliver economic value directly back to the contrib-
utor, this is considered a reciprocal transaction and the grant revenue is recognised in the statement of financial position as a 
liability until the service has been delivered to the contributor, otherwise the grant is recognised as income on receipt.

Interest revenue
Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.



2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(b) Revenue and other income

Rendering of services

Revenue in relation to rendering of services is recognised depending on whether the outcome of the services can be estimated 
reliably.  If the outcome can be estimated reliably then the stage of completion of the services is used to determine the appro-
priate level of revenue to be recognised in the period.

If the outcome cannot be reliably estimated then revenue is recognised to the extent of expenses recognised that are recover-
able.

Other income
Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Company is entitled to it.

(c) Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except where the amount of 
GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as part of receivables or payables in the statement 
of financial position.

Cash flows in the statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows arising from in-
vesting and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classified as operating cash 
flows.

(d) Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised initially using trade date accounting, i.e. on the date that the Company becomes party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs (except for instruments mea-
sured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed as incurred).

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of the reporting period the Company assesses whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or 
group of financial assets is impaired.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Impairment on receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance account, all other impairment losses on financial assets 
at amortised cost are taken directly to the asset.

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against other expenses in profit or loss.
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notes to the
financial statements
For the year ended 31 december 2021

notes to the
financial statements
2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(e) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments which are readily convert-
ible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

(f) Employee benefits

Provision is made for the Company's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to the end 
of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are expected to be wholly settled within one year have been measured at the 
amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled.

Employee benefits expected to be settled more than one year after the end of the reporting period have been measured at the 
present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits. In determining the liability, consideration 
is given to employee wage increases and the probability that the employee may satisfy vesting requirements. Changes in the 
measurement of the liability are recognised in profit or loss.

3 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The directors make estimates and judgements during the preparation of these financial statements regarding assumptions 
about current and future events affecting transactions and balances.

These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing the financial state-
ments, however as additional information is known then the actual results may differ from the estimates.

The significant estimates and judgements made have been described below.

Key estimates - receivables

The receivables at reporting date have been reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence that any of the 
receivables are impaired. An impairment provision is included for any receivable where the entire balance is not considered 
collectible. The impairment provision is based on the best information at the reporting date.

For the year ended 31 december 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Directors of Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd. 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial report of Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd, which comprises the 
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statement, including a summary of significant accounting policies, 
and the directors’ declaration. 

In our opinion the financial report of Tenpin Bowling Australia Ltd has been prepared in 
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:  

(a) giving a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at 31 December
2021 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards to the extent described in Note 1,
and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the 
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in 
Australia.  We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 
Code.  

We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which 
has been given to the directors of the Company, would be in the same terms if given to the 
directors as at the time of the audit report. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion.  

Emphasis of Matter – Basis of Accounting 

We draw attention to Note 1 to the financial report, which describes the basis of accounting. 
The financial report has been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the Company’s financial 
reporting responsibilities under the Corporations Act 2001. As a result, the financial report 
may not be suitable for another purpose. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
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Other Information 

The directors are responsible for other information.  The other information comprises the 
information included in the Director’s Report for the year ended 31 December 2021 but does 
not include the financial report or our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the Director’s Report and accordingly we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the Director’s 
Report and, in doing so, consider whether the Director’s Report is materially inconsistent with 
the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.  

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information, we are required to report that fact.  We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Report 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that 
gives a true and fair view and have determined that the basis of preparation described in 
Note 1 to the financial report is appropriate to meet the requirements of the Corporations Act 
2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters relating to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend 
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a 
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing 
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
the financial report. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
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opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting, from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Company.

Conclude on the appropriateness of directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based, on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

Jason Croston 
SRJ Walker Wayland 
Director 

Date: 

Address: Unit 3, 27 South Pine Road, BRENDALE QLD 4500 

6 May 2022



A message from the Chair of the Australian 
Sports Commission – Josephine Sukkar AM 
The Australian Sports Commission (ASC), comprising Sport 
Australia and the Australian Institute of Sport (AIS), is proud 
to lead, support and grow Australian sport at all levels. 

On behalf of the Australian Government, we nurture and 
develop community sport through areas such as volunteer-
ing, community coaching and governance. Our vision in 
high performance sport is to create sustainable success that 
inspires all Australians.

We are living through tumultuous times and a global pan-
demic, but we are supporting Australian sport to thrive. 

Across 2021-22 we oversaw an unprecedented four Olympic 
and Paralympic campaigns in the space of eight months. An 
equal-record 17 gold medals at the Tokyo Olympics, followed 
by a record four medals at the Beijing Winter Olympics, is 
testament to how our athletes and sports are excelling.

More so, it has been inspiring to see how our Olympics, 
Paralympic and Commonwealth Games athletes continue 
to represent Australia so proudly with humility and respect, 
reinforcing their status as important role models.

The upcoming Birmingham Commonwealth Games in 2022 pro-
vides another opportunity to inspire Australians to get involved in 
sport.

The unprecedented challenge of the global COVID-19 pandemic 
has required incredible resilience as a society and within our 
sport sector. We know sport is playing a crucial role in the nation’s 
rebuilding efforts.

In March 2022, we welcomed our new CEO, Kieren Perkins OAM, 
who will oversee Sport Australia and the AIS. His role will be con-
necting Australian sport from our grassroots sporting fields to our 
international representatives.

This connection is crucial, and we are immensely proud of our 
many programs and initiatives that support this involvement with 
sport. 

Through our Participation Grants, Sporting Schools program, 
Regional Sport Events Fund, Local Sporting Champions and Local 
Para Champions program we’re helping Australians of all ages and 
abilities get active and lead happier, healthier lives.

The ASC is a strong advocate for greater diversity in sport. As one 
example, our Women Leaders in Sport (WLIS) programs, with 
support of the Office for Women, provides women with valuable 
leadership development opportunities on and off the field.

Our focus in on building sustainable success. Every action we take 
today must have positive and lasting impact well into the future 
as we lead a new era towards Brisbane 2032 and beyond.

Funding is critical to high performance sport and we thank the 
Australian Government for their ongoing commitment. The AIS 
has already committed funding to sports for the entire 2024 Paris 
Olympic and Paralympic cycle. This $257m announcement is 
historic and meets the needs of sports to plan ahead with greater 
certainty. By the end of this year, we’ll give the same certainty to 
our Winter Games team for 2026.

We care about people in sport. We’re putting athletes first because 
we want them to be successful in sport and life.

We are providing $14.6m a year in direct funding to athletes via 
our dAIS grants, but this is complemented by world-class athlete 
support in mental health and wellbeing services. As one example, 
the AIS Mental Health Referral Network received 444 referrals in 
2021, a rise of 68 per cent.

Additionally, the AIS is supporting our athletes and sport through 
innovation and technology, medicine and sport science, wellbeing 
and community engagement, coaching and leadership, as well as 
high performance facilities.

The announcement of a home Olympic and Paralympic Games in Brisbane in 2032 provides an incredible opportunity to unite Aus-
tralia through sport. It can be a catalyst to drive participation and strengthen our volunteer workforce, as well as identify, develop, 
support and progress talented athletes.

Brisbane 2032 has become a beacon to aim towards, aligning our sports, our infrastructure and our communities to leave a positive 
legacy for Australia.

This is a pivotal time for our sector and the green and gold runway provides an opportunity to consider the role that each of us can 
play in making Australia stronger through sport.

On behalf of the ASC, thank you to everyone who contributes to Australian sport with the aim of making it better for all. 

Josephine Sukkar AM  

message from australian 
sports commission

32 33



unit 7/2 Kent place, south melbourne 
Tel: (07) 3262 4455 Fax: (07) 3262 5544

Email: tenpin.bowling@tenpin.org.au 
Website: www.tenpin.org.au

www.facebook.com/TenpinBowlingAustralia
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